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PART I - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Business Development

Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. (“GERI” or the “Company”) was incorporated on
May 18, 1994 as Fil-Estate Land, Inc. to consolidate the real estate interests of the Fil-
Estate Group of Companies. The Company went public in November 1995 when its
common shares were listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

In 2011, Alliance Global Group, Inc. (‘AGI”) acquired a majority stake in Fil-Estate
Land, In¢. and re-launched the Company as Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. to engage in
the development of integrated tourism estates. In 2014, GERI was consolidated under
Megaworld Corporation when the latter acquired AGI’s stake in the Company.

Description of Business

The Company is primarily engaged in the development of integrated tourism and
leisure estates and intcgrated lifostyle communities consisting of residential, retail,
hotel and/or leisure components with nature as an amenity. Its key developments are
Boracay Newcoast in Malay, Aklan, Twin Lakes in Laurel, Batangas, Sta. Barbara
Heights in Tloilo, Southwoods City in Laguna and Cavite, Alabang West in Las Pinas,
Metro Manila, Eastland Heights in Antipolo City, Rizal, The Hamptons Caliraya in
Lumban-Cavinti, Laguna and The Fifth in Pasig City, Metro Manila. The Company
undertakes its development business by itself or in joint venture with landowners.
Among the Company’s subsidiaries are joint venture corporations: i) Twin Lakes
Corporation (“TLC™), which was incorporated on 02 March 2011 to develop Twin
Lakes in Laurel, Batangas; ii) Oceanfront Properties, Inc. (“OPI”), which was
incorporated on 12 October 2010 to develop parts of Boracay Newcoast; and iii)
Southwoods Mall, Inc. (“SMI”), which was incorporated on 18 July 2013 1o develop
the Southwoods Mall and Office Towers in Southwoods City.

The Company’s developments are marketed by Megaworld Global-Estate, Inc., a
subsidiary incorporated on 14 March 2011, and the Company’s in-house marketing
group. Another subsidiary, Fil-Esiate Urban Development Corporation (“FEUDC™),
which was incorporated on 06 March 2000, is engaged in the operation of hotels in
Fairways and Bluewater, a resort complex integrated with Boracay Newcoast.

Prior to 2011, Fil-Estate Land, Inc. subsidiaries Fil-Estate Properties, Inc. (“FEPT”)
and Fil-Estate Golf and Development, Inc. (“FEGDI™), incorporated on 13 February
1990 and 06 March 1990, respectively, had engaged in the development of residential
subdivisions, condominium buildings, commercial lots, and golf clubs,

Bankruptcy, Receivership or Similar Proceedings

Neither the Company nor its significant subsidiaries have heen involved in
bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceeding.



Material Reclassification, Merger. Consolidation or Purchase or Sale of a
Significant Amount of Assets (not ordinary)

As of December 31, 2018, FEPI sold an agpregate of 85% ownership interest in
Boracay Newcoast Hotel Group, Inc. (“BNHGI”), a hotel development company
incorporated on 17 July 2012. FEPI has a remaining stake of 15% in BNHGI.

Products
GERI together with its subsidiaries (the “GERI Group™) have a diversified real estate
inventory including residential and commercial lots, residential condominium units,

condominium hotel units, and golf club sharcs.

Percentape of sales or revenues and net income contributed by foreign sales

Sales to the foreign market accounted for 7% of the consolidated real estate sales for
the year 2018.

Distribution Methods of Products

Real estate products in GERI developments are promoled and marketed to a wide
range of clients by GERTs in-house marketing group and marketing subsidiary,
Megaworld Global-Estate, Inc. (“MGEI”). Real estate products in FEPI and FEGDIT
developments are sold thru third party real estate brokers.

Suppliers

The Company has a broad base of suppliers. The Company is not dependent on one
or a limited number of suppliers.

Customers

GERI has a broad market base that consists of end-users and investors, both from the
local and foreign markets.

The Company targets the A and B markets with special niche products such as

integrated tourism and leisure estates and integrated lifestyle communities with
residential, commercial and leisure components.

Competition

Significant competitors of the Company in its real estate development business
inclnde Ayala Land Premiere, Alveo, Filinvest Premiere, Landco and SM Prime.

The Company competes with other developers in the acquisition of land or
development rights to land in key growth areas in the country.



The Company aims to be the leading developer of integrated tourism and leisure
estates in the Philippines. The Company’s tourism projects are strategically located in

Boracay and Laurel, Batangas and feature strategic master-planned communities
mntegrated with resort amenities.

"The Company believes that its land bank, its real estate development experience, its
innovative real estate offerings and the solid financial backing of its parent,
Megaworld Corporation, are its competitive advantages. Its massive landbank in
tourist destinations such as Boracay Island, and Laurel and Nasugbu, Batangas gives
il a lead over its competitors and has enabled the Company to be a pioneer in master-
planned integrated tourism developments.

Transactions with and/or dependence on related partics

The Company and its subsidiaries, in their regular conduct of business, have entered
into transactions with associates and related parties including investments in and
advances granted to or obtained from subsidiaries, associates and other related parties
for purposes of working capital requirements. For more information, see Note 24 to
the Audited Financial Statements.

Amount spent on research and development activities and its percentage to
revenunes

The Company incurs minimal amounts for development research activities, which do
not amount tc a significant percentage of revenues.

Intellectual Property

The Company believes that its operations and that of its subsidiarics arc not
dependent on any trademark, patent, copyright, license, franchise or royalty
agreement. Nonetheless, the Company has trademark registrations and/or applications
for its corporate name and key projects.

Government Approvals / Regulations

The Company secures various government approvals such as the ECC, development
permits, license to sell, etc. as part of the normal course of its business.

Development Permit and License to Sell

The Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board (“HLURB”) is the planning, regulatory
and quasi-judicial national government body tasked to regulate land use and, real
estate and housing development.

A registered owner or developer of a parcel of land who wishes to converl the same
into a subdivisicn project shall apply with the Tocal Government Unit (“LGU")
concerned for the approval of subdivision Development Permit. The owner/developer
shall subsequently apply for Certificate of Registration and license to Sell with
HLURB prior to the selling of units/house or lots.



On the other hand, an owner/developer of a condominium project is required to apply
for Development Permit, Certificate of Registration and License to Sell with the
HLURB prior to actual development and selling of units therein.

Agrarian Reform Law

The Comprehensive Agrarian Reform Law covers: (a) alicnable and disposable lands
of the public domain devoted to or suitable for agriculture, (b) land owned by the
Government devoted to or suitable for agriculture. No person may own or retain,
directly or indirectly, any public or private agricultural land, in excess of five (5)
hectares. A limit of three (3) hectares may be awarded to each child of the
landowners, subject to certain qualifications. The law allows the conversion of
agricultural lands to non-agricultural use when the land ceases to be economically
feasible and sound for agricultural purposes. Furthermore, the Department of
Agrarian Reform Administrative Order No. 01 s. 1990 provides that any such
classification or re-classification made after June 15, 1988 shall be subject to
Deparimen{ ol Agrarian Reform (“DAR™) approval.

Enviranmental Compliance Certificate

Any project in the Philippines that poses a potential environmental risk or impact
(e.g., golf courses, beach resorts, developments adjacent to watershed areas, etc.) is
required to secure an Environmental Compliance Certificate (“ECC”) from the
Department of the Environment and Natural Resources — Environmental Management
Board (“DENR-EMB”).

An ECC is issued by DENR-EMB after a positive review of the project’s application.
This certificate indicates that the proposed project or undertaking will not cause a
significantly negative impact on the Philippine environment. The ECC contains
specific measures and conditions that must be met by the project proponent before
and during the operation of the project. In some cases, conditions are listed to be
performed during the project’s abandonment phase to lessen identified potential
environmental impacts.

An LCC also certifies that the proponent has complied with all the requirements of the
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) System and has committed to implement its
approved environmenta! management plan. Compliance with the terms and conditions
of the ECC is monitored by the appropriate DENR regional office and failure to
comply may lead to penalties and sanctions being imposed, including fines and / or
temporary cessation of project operation.

Effect of Existing and Probable Government Regulations

Republic Act No. 7279 (“Urban Development Housing Act”), as amended by
Republic Act 10884 (“Balanced Housing Development Program Amendments”™),
requires developers of proposed subdivision projects to develop an area for socialized
housing equivalent to at least 15% of the total subdivision area or lotal subdivision
project cost and at least five (5%) of condominium area or project cost, at the option
of the developer; in accordance with the standards as provided by law.



Tax Regulations

On May 24, 20035, the President of the Philippines signed into law Republic Act No.

9337 (RA 9337), which, effective November 1, 2005, introduced the following
changes, among others:

a.

b.

Increase in the corporate income tax rate from 32% to 35% with a reduction
thereof to 30% beginning January §, 2009;

Grant of authority to the Philippine President to increase the 10% value added
tax (VAT) rate to 12%, subject to compliance with certain economic
conditions. The 12% VAT took effect on February 1, 2006; and

Revenue Regulations No. 16-2011 increasing the amount of threshold amounts
for sale of residential lot, sale of house and lot effective January 01, 2012. Sale
of residential lots with gross selling price of 1,919,500 or less, and residential

house and lots with gross selling price of 3,199,200 or less, are not subject to
Value Added Tax (VAT)

On December 17, 2017, Republic Act No. 10963 or the “Tax Reform for
Acceleration and Inclusion (TRAIN)” was approved which amended several
provisions of RA 9337 and is effective January 1, 2018. One of the amendments
introduced by the said law is the lowering of the threshold amocunt for VAT
recognition purposes of sale of residential Jot and sale of house and lot. Sale of
residential lots with gross selling price of P1,500,000 or less, and residential
house and lots with gross selling price of P2,500,000 or less, are not subject to
Value Added Tax (VAT); Provided that beginning January 01, 2021, the VAT
exemption shall only apply to sale of real properties not primarily held for sale
to customers, sale of real property utilized for socialized housing as defined by
Republic Act No. 7279, sale of house and lot, and other residential dwellings
with selling price of not more than P2,000,000.

The Maceda Law

The Maceda iLaw applies to all transactions or contracts involving the sale or
financing of real estate on installment payments (including residential condominium
units but excluding industrial and commercial lots). Under the provisions of the law,
where a buyer of real cstate has paid at least two years of installments, the buyer is
entitled to the foflowing rights in case he/she defaults in the payment of succeeding
installments:

a.

To pay, without additional interest, the unpaid installments due within the lotal
grace period earned by him, which is fixed at the rate of one (1) month grace
period for every one (1) year of installment payments made. However, the
buyer may exercise this right only once in every five (5) years during the term
of the coniract and its extensions, if any.

If the contract is cancelled, the seller shall refund to the buycr the cash
surrender value of the payments on the property cquivalent to 50% of the total

payments made, and in cases where five (5) years installments have been paid,



an additional 5% every year (but with a total not to exceed 90% of the total
payments).

Where a buyer has paid less than two years of installments, the buyer is entitled to pay
the outstanding amount due without interest within a grace period of sixty (60) days
from the date the installments became due.

The Company accords buyers their rights under the law and in certain cases, made
appropriate refunds to some buyers,

Zoning and Land Use

The Department of Agrarian Reform {DAR) has issued regulations to effect the
provisions of the Agrarian Reform Law in the Philippincs. Under the law, all land
classified for agricultural purposes as of or after June 1, 1988 cannot be converted to
non-agricultural use without the prior approval of the DAR.

Land use may also be limited by the zoning ordinances of Local Government Uniis.
Lands may be classified as commercial, industrial, residential or agricultural, While a

procedure for change of allowed land use is available, this process maybe lengthy and
cumbersome.

The Company diligently adheres to the provision of the agrarian reform law and local
ordinances in cases where a certain project requires the conversion of the land use.

Environmental Laws

Development projcets that are classified by law as environmentally critical or projects
within statutorily defined environmentally critical areas arc required to obtain an
Environmental Compliance Certificate (ECC) prior to commencement of
development. The Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR)
through its regional offices or through the Environmental Management Bureau
(EMB), determines whether a project is environmentally critical or located in an
cnvironmentaily critical area. As a requisite for the issuance of an ECC, an
environmentally critical project is required to submit an Environmental [mpact
Statement (EIS) to the EMB while & project in an environmentally critical area are
generally required to submit an Initial Environmental Examination (IEE) to the proper
DENR regional office.

GERI has an environmental compliance feam which monitors and maintains
compliance by its developments with applicable Philippine environmental laws and
regulations. There are no compliance issues which would have a material effect on
GERTI’s capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position in the property market.

Emplovees

As of December 31, 2018, GERI group has a total of 832 employees, divided into:



Top Management - 8
Middle Management - 109
Rank and File - 713

The Company expects to increase its number of employees in the next 12 months in
accordance with operational requirements.

The employees are not subject to any collective bargaining agreements, There has
been no employee union since the start of Company's operations.

In addition to basic salary and 13™ month pay, other supplemental benefits provided
by GERI to its employees include: retirement benefits as mandatcd by faw, vacation
and sick leave benefits, rice subsidy, and HMO health care coverage.

Risk Factors Relating to the Company

Highly Competitive Business Environment

The Company faces increased competition from other developers who undertake
residential subdivisions and vertical rcsidential, commercial and office projects,
particularly in key cities of the Philippines where several of the Company’s present
and future projects are located.

Notwithstanding increased competition in the industry, GERI intends to enhance its
position as one of the leading property developers of integrated tourism estates in the
Philippines. The track record of the Company and the Megaworld group and the
Company’s strategic land bank are perceived to be major advantages against this
anticipated growth in competition.

Demand for Real Estate Project Developments Related to Leisure and Recreation

The Company engages, among others, in the development of integrated tourism and
lcisure estates as well as integrated lifestyle communities. Demand for such projects is
perceived to be significantly affected by any major natural calamity or adverse change
in the economic and political conditions of the country.

The Company engages in the development of mixed-use developments in different
market segments and geographic areas in order to diversify its real estate portfolio,

Limitations on Land Acquisition

As other developers race to acquire choice locations, it may become more difficult to
locate parcels of suitable size in location and al prices acceptable to the Company that
will enhance its present land bank. In this regard, the Company continues to explore
joint ventures as an alternative to building its land bank and identifying properties that
can be developed under project agreements with landowners.,
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Legal Issues or Disputes on Projects

The implementation of projects entered into by the Company may be affected by any
legal issues generally arising from the ownership of the real estate properties. Certain
properties preseutly being developed or proposed for development in the immediate

term are currently the subject of legal proceedings whose resolution is still
indeterminate.

The Company is endeavoring to resolve such legal issues at the shortest time possible.
Nevertheless, these disputed projects are not expected to negatively impact the
Company’s business or its financial condition.

Government Approvals, Licenses and Permits

The implementation of projects requires various government permits, approval and
clearances from various municipal, city, regional and national government authorities
and offices, such as, among others, the Development Permit, Certificate of
Registration, License to Sell and in certain instances, the Environment Compliance
Certificate. Accordingly, any delays in obtaining such government permits, approvals
and clearances may affect the Company’s projects,

The Company is taking every effort to ensure that it will comply with all the
requirements in a timely and orderly manner in securing the approval, permits and
licenses. It intends to secure the necessary documentation within a reasonable period
of time.

Political and Economic Factors

In general, the profitability of the Company depends on the overall demand for
Company’s products which in turn is affected by political and economic factors. Any
political instability in the future may have a negative effect on the viability of real
estate companies. Economic factors such as substantial increases in interest and
financing costs may dampen the overall demand for Company’s products in the
future, thus affecting the Company’s profitability.

Credit Risk

Generally, the Group’s credit risk is attributable to trade receivables, advances to
related party and other financial assets. The Group maintains defined credit policies
and continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credit risk
controls. We don’t transfer title or turnover without full payment. The Group’s
policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties. In addition, for a significant
proportion of sales, advance payments are received to mitigate credit risk.

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying

amount of the financial assets as shown in the consolidated statements of financial
position.
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Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt
servicing payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows arising
from day-to-day business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a
day-to-day and week-to-week, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30~day projection.

Long-term needs for a six-month and one-ysar period are ideniified monthly.

The Group maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 60-day periods.
Excess cash is invested in time deposits or short-term marketable securitics. Funding
for long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of
commiited credit facilities and the ability to sell long-term financial assets.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s interest rate risk management policy centers on reducing the overall
interest expense and exposure to changes in interest rates.

The Group follows prudent policies in managing its exposures to interest rate
fluctuation, and constantly monitors its cxposure to fluctuation in interest rates to

estimate Lhe impact of interest rate movements on its interest expense.

Foreion Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in Philippine pesos, its functional
currency. Exposure to currency exchange rates ariscs mainly from the Group’s U.S.
dollar-denominated cash and cash equivalents, which have been used to fund ncw
projects.

In Management’s assessment the foreign currency risks related to these U.S dollar-
denominated cash and cash equivalents are not material.

As of December 31, 2018, the Group has no outstanding foreign denominated loans.
TTEM 2. PROPERTIES
The GERI Group has a landbark of approximately 2,550 hectares.

These land bank held for future development are strategically located in various parts
of the country, but a large portion is located in Sta. Barbara in Iloilo, Boracay, Laurel
and Nasugbu in Batangas, Southwoods, Laguna, Cagayan de Oro and Tanza, Cavite.

The inventory portfolio of the Company consists mainly of inventory also
strategically located in various parts of the country but mainly in oilo, Boracay,
Nasugbu and Laurel, Batangas, Laguna and Las Pifias. Real estate and golf club and
resort shares for sale and land held for future development are valued at the lower of
cost or net realizable value in conformity with PAS 2 “Inventories™. Cost includes the
acquisition cost of the land plus all costs directly attributable to the acquisition for
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projects where the Company is the landowner, and includes actual development cost
incurred up to balance sheet date for projecis where the Company is the developer.
Net realizable value is the selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost to
complete and to market. A valuation allowance is provided for real estate and golf
club and resort shares for sale and land held for future development when the net
realizable values of the properties are less than the carrying costs.

The GERI Group has adequate landbank for its long-term development requirements.

It is, however, open to new land acquisitions in strategic growth areas. Funding for
these acquisitions will be internally generated.

In 2018, GERI Group has adopted PIC Q&A 2018-11, Classification of Land by Real
Estate Developer, retrospectively. PIC Q&A 2018-11 requires real estate developers
to classify land based on management’s intention and apply the appropriate
accounting treatment as rcquired by relevant standards. Tn previous years, land,
including other costs and expenses related to the transfer of title of the property, were
presented as Land for Future Development and only reclassified to Property
Development Costs account (a real estate inventory account), when the development
of the property starts. Upon the adoption of PIC Q&A 2018-11, parcels of land with
no definite plan of future use was reclassified to Investment Property and parcels of
land with intention by management to develop into residential or commercial
properties for sale are reclassified to Real Estate for Sale.

The GERI Group has real estate inventories in its various developments including the
following:

LIMITATIONS .
PROJECT NAME LOCATION ON OWNERSHIP DEVELOPER

LUZON

A. Melro Manila
Alabang West Las Pifias City Joint Venture GERI
The Fifth Pasig City Joint Venture GERI
8 Sto. Domingo Place Quezon City Joint Venture FEPI
Cathedral Heights Quezon City Joint Venture FEPI/FEUDC
Capitol Plaza Quezon City Co-developrment FEPI
Parco Belio Muntiniupa City Joint Veniure FEPL
Puerto Del Mar Lucena City _Joint Venture FEI'l

B. Laguna
Holland Park Bifian, Laguna Joint Venture GERI
Tulip Gardens Bifian, Laguna Joint Venture GERI
The Hamptons at Calfraya Cavinti, Laguna Joint Venture GERI
Caliraya Springs Cavinti, Laguna Joint Venture FEPI
Palacio Real Calamba, Laguna Joint Venture FEP1
Riverina San Pablo City Joint Venture FEPI

C. Cavite
Pahara at Southwoods GMA, Cavite Joint Venture GERI
Holiday Homes Gen, Trias, Cavite Joint Venture FEPI
Mango Orchard Plantation Naic, Cavite o Joint Venture FEPI
Manila Southwoods Carmona and GMA Cavite Joint Venture FEGDI/FEFI
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D. Batangas

Domaine Le Jardin

Laurel, Batanpas None Twin Lakes
Lucerne at Domaine Le Jardin ! Laurel, Batangas None Twin Lakes
Vineyard Residences Laurgl, Batangas None Twin Lekes |
The Belvedere Laurel, Batangas None Twin Lakes
Vinevard Manor Laurel, Batangas None Twin Lakes
Magnificat Exccutive Village | Lipa, Batangas Joint Venture FEP!
Newport Hills Lian, Batangas Joint Venture FEPL
Nasugbu Harbour Town Nasughbu, Batangas Joint Venlure FEPI
Residencia Lipa Lipa, Batangas Joint Venture FEPI
Tierra Vista Lipa, Batangas Joint Venture FEPI
Palmridge Point Talisay, Batangas Foint Venture FEPI
| Windsor Heights Tagaytay Joint Venture FEPI
E. Bulacan
Goldridge Estate Guiguinto, Bulacan Joint Venture FEPI
Plaridel Heights Plaridel, Bulacan Joint Venture FEP1
F. Antipolo City
Forest Hills (now Eastland | Antipolo City Joint Venture FEPI
Heights)
G. Baguio City
Northpointe Baguio City Joint Venture FEP1
H. Naga City, Camarines Sur
Monte Cielo De Naga Naga City Joint Venture TFEPI
Monte Cielo De Pefiafrancia | Naga City Joint Venture FEF1
YISAYAS _
1. Malay, Aklan
Belmant Hotel Boracay Malay, Aklan None GERI
Chancellor Hotel Boracay Malay, Aklan None GERI
Newcoast Boutique Hotel Valay, Aklan Joint Venture GERI/OPI
Newcoasl Shophouse Districl | Malay, Aklan Joint Venture GERI/OPT
Newcoast Village Malay, Aklan None OPI
 Oceanway Residences Malay, Aklan Nonc GERI
Ocean Garden Villas Malay, Aklan None GERI
Savoy Hotel Boracay Malay, Aklan None GERI
Fairways & Bluewater Boracay, Aklan None FEPT
I, Tuilo
Sta. Barbara Heights | Sta. Barbara, Iloilo Joint Venlure GERI
Residential Estate
MINDANAO
K. Cagavan De Oro
Mountain Meadows Cagayan De Oro Joint Venture FEP]
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The GERI Group has hotel properties in Boracay and Laurel, Batangas as listed
below:

A. Fairways and Bluewater in Boracay, Malay, Aklan

——
BUILPING NAME —|
Vilia Maria
[ Vifla Margarita
Villa Michaela
Villa Lucia
Villa Catalina
Villa Vittoria
Villa Muligan

B. Twin Lakes Tlotel in Laurel, Balungas

The GERI Group has retail and office buildings for lease, as Hsted below:

BUILDING NAME LOCATION
Southwoods Mall Bifian, Laguna
Southwoods Office Towers Bifian, Laguna
Twin Lakes Shopping Village Laurel, Batangas
Renaissance 1000 (Office Tower) | Pasig City

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to certain lawsuits or claims arising from
the ordinary course of business. The management and legal counsel believe that the
eventual liabilities under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material
effect on the consolidated financial statements, and thus, no provision has been made
for these contingent liabilities.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY
HOLDERS

Except for the matters taken up during the Annual Meeting of Stockholders, there was

no other matter submitted to a vote of security holders during the period covered by
this report, through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise.

PART II - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 5, MARKET FOR ISSUER’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDERS’ MATTERS

Market price information

The common shares of the Company are traded on the Philippine Stock Exchan ge
(“PSE”) under the symbol of GERI.
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Philippinc Stock Exchange
Closing Price per Share (8) 1.13
as of December 28, 2018

2019 ‘High Low
First Quarter 1.35 1.08
2018 High Low
First Quarter 1.58 1.5
Second Quarter 122 1.17
Third Quarter 1.15 1.10
Fourth Quarter 1.13 1.05
2017 High Low
First Quarter 0.98 0.97
Second Quarter 1.31 1.23
Third Quarter 1.53 1.51
Fourth Quarter 1.44 1.42
2016 |

First Quarter 1.06 ' 1.04
Second Quarter 0.99 0.97
Third Quarler 1.02 1.00
Fourth Quarter 1.00 0.99

The market capitalization of GERI as of 28 December 2018 based on the closing price
at Phpl.13 per share of GERI’s shares at that date, was approximately Php12.414
billion. The price information as of the close of the latcst practicable trading date
April 11, 2019 is Php1.39 per share.

Stockholders
GERI has a total of about 4,231 common shareholders as of December 31, 2018.

TOP 20 STOCKHOLDERS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018

NO. OF % OF

STOCKHOLDER'S NAME SHARES OWNERSHIP
1 | MEGAWORLD CORPORATION 9,042,732,139! 82.31%
2 | PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (FILIPINO) 1,737,389,411 15.81%
3 | FIL-ESTATE MANAGEMENT INC. 47,022,059 0.43%
4 | F. YAP SECURITIES, INC. 32,947.000 0.30%
51 PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (FOREIGN) 27,405,062 0.25%
6 | GREENFIELD DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 8,640,000 0.08%

! Data refers to direct and indirect shares. Direct shares consist of 8,859,398,139 while indirect shares
cansist of 183,334,000,
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7| JOHN T. LAO 8,000,100 0.07%

8 | THE ANDRESONS GROUP INC. 8,000,000 0.07%

9 | LUCIO W. YAN 5,755,000 0.05%
10 | ROMEO G. ROXAS 3,716,000 0.03%
11 | AVESCO MARKETING 3,512,106 0.03%
12 | WILBUR CHAN 2,611,825 0.02%
— | GILMORE PROPERTY MARKETING
13 | S SSOCIATES, NG 1,983,000 0.02%
14 | FEDERAL HOMES, INC. 1,939,860 0.02%
15 | FRITZ L. DY 1.813.500 0.02%

DYNALAND PROPERTIES & DE
16| D $ & DEVELOPERS, (,700,001 0.02%
17 |ROBERT JOHN L. SOBREPENA 1.617.485 0.02%
18 | MAXIMINO 5. UY &/OR LIM HUE HUA 1.478.400 0.01%
19 | EQL PROPERTIES, INC. 1.317.420 0.01%
20 | BINGSON U. TECSON 1,239,000 0.01%
Dividends

Payment of dividends, either in the form of cash or stock, will depend upon the
Company's eamnings, cash flow and financial condition, ameng other factors. The
Company may declare dividends only out of its unrestricted retained earnings. These
represent the net accumulated earnings of the Company with its capital unimpaired,
which are not appropriated for any other purpose. The Company may pay dividends in
cash, by the distribution of property, or by the issue of shares of stock. Dividends paid
in cash are subject to the approval by the Board of Directors. Dividends paid in the
form of additional shares are subject to approval by both the Board of Directors and at
least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock of the shareholders at a sharchoiders’
meeting called for such purpose.

The Corporation Code prohibits stock corporations from retaining surplus profits in
excess of 100% of their paid-in capital stock, except when justified by definite
corporate expansion projects or programs approved by the Board of Directors, or
when the corporation is prohibited under any loan agreement with any financial
institution or creditor from declaring dividends without its consent, and such conscnt
has not yet been secured, or when it can be clearly shown that such retention is
necessary under special circumstances obtaining in the Corporation.

The retained earnings account as of December 31, 2018 amounting to Php10.08
hillion, Php8.6 billion in December 31, 2017 and Php7.13 billion in December 31,
2016 are restricted from being declared as dividends to the extent of the undistributcd
net earnings of subsidiaries and associates. No declaration of cash dividends was
made in the last three (3) years.




Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities (including recent _issuance of

securities constituting an exempt transaction

On 23 September 2011, the Board of Directors of the Company approved an
Executive Stock Option Plan, which was ratified on 8 November 2011 by

stockholders representing at least 2/3 of the outstanding capital stock of the
Company.

Pursuant to the ESOP, on February 16, 2012, the Company granted the option
to its key company directors and executives to subscribe to 100 million shares
of the Company, at an exercise price of Php1.93 (1st Tranche). On the basis
of the sale to less than twenty persons, A Notice of Exempt Transaction (SEC
Form 10.1) was filed with the SEC on March 21, 2012.

On 18 February 2013, the Company granted another option 1o key company
executives to subscribe to an additional 100 million common shares of the
Company at an exercise price of Phpl.69 (2" tranche). On the basis of the
sale to less than twenty persons, A Notice of Exempt Transaction (SEC Form
10.1) was filed with the SEC on 21 March 2013.

On 7 March 2014, the Company granted options to key company executives to
subscribe to 100 million common shares of the Company at an exercise price
of Phpl.50 (3™ tranche). On the basis of the sale to less than twenty persons,
A Notice of Exempt Transaction (SEC Form 10.1) was filed with the SEC on
March 18, 2014,

On 9 March 2015, the Company granted another option to key company
executives to subscribe to an additional 50 million common shares of the
Company at an exercise price of Phpl.65 (4™ tranche). On the basis of the
sale to less than twenty persons, a Notice of Exempt Transaction (SEC Form
10.1) was filed with the SEC on April 7, 20135.

On 17 June 2016, the Company granted another option to key company
executives to subscribe to an additional 50 million common shares of the
Company at an exercise price of Phpl.00 (51 tranche). On the basis of the
sale to less than twenty persons, a Notice of Exempt Transaction {SEC Form
10.1) was filed with the SEC on July 15, 2016.

No underwriters were involved in the sales of the above unregistered or exempt
securities.



ITEM 6.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN

OF OPERATION
Key Performance Indicators
LIQUIDITY RATIOS
December 31,2018 | December 31, 2017, January 1, 2017,
as restated as restated
Current Ratio 3.93 4.46 5.51
Quick Ratio 1.11 0.92 [.17

Current Ratio (Current Assets/ Carvent Liabilities)
Liquidity ratio measures a company’s ability to pay short-term obligations.

Quick Ratio (Cash and cash equivalonts + Current Trade receivables + Contraci Assets/ Current
Liabifities)

It measures a company’s ability to meet its short-term obligations with its most liquid

assets.

LEVERAGE OR LONG-RANGE SOLVENCY RATIOS

| December 31,2018 | December 31, 2017,
as restated

Debt to Total Assets 32% 34% 32%
Equity to Total Assets 08% 66% 68%
Debt to Equity 48% 51% 47%
Asset to Dquity 1.48 1.51 147

Debt to Total Assets
It shows the creditors’ contribution to the total resources of the organization.

Equity to Total Assets
It shows the extent of owners’ contribution to the total resources of the organization.

Debt to Eqguity
It relates the exposure of the creditors to that of the owners.

Asser To Equity (Total Assets/Total Owner's Equity)
It measures the company’s leverage.

January 1, 2017,
as restated

ACTIVITY RATIOS
December 31, 20183 | December 31,2017, | December 31, 2016,
as restated as restated
Agsets Turnover 13.84 % 11.79% 9.66%

Assets Turnover

It measures the level of capital investment relative to sales volume.
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PROFITABILITY RATIOS

December 31,2018 | December 31,2017, | January 1, 2017,

. as restated I as restafed
| Return on Equity 5.79% 5.97% 4.48%
 Return on Assets 3.25% 3.26% 2.52%
| Earnings per Share P0.136 20.132 £0.093

Return on Equity (Net Income/Equity Attributable to Parent Company’s sharecholders)
It tests the productivity of the owners® investments.

Return on Assets (Net Income/Total Assets)
This ratio indicates how profitable a company is relative to its total assefs.

Earnings per Share (EPS)
[t indicates the earnings for each of the common shares held.

INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO

December 31,2018 | December 31,2017, | December 31, 2016,
as restated as resfated

Interest Coverage 21335 £23.33 Bi9.71

Interest Coverage Ratio (Earnings before Interest and Income Tax/Interest Expense)
It measures how easily a company can pay interest on an outstanding debt.

Others

As of the year ended December 31, 2018, there are no material events and
ungertainties known to management that would have an impact on the future
operations such as:

a. Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have an
- impact on the Company;

b. Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such
commitment and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures;

¢. Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
cxpected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the net
sales/revenues/income from continuing operations;

d. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s
continuing operations;

e. Causes for any material changes from period to period in one or more line item of
the Company’s tinancial operations;

f.  Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
the operations;

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial
Conditions

In 2018, the Group adopted PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers in

accordance with PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors.

The Group’s adoption of PFRS 15 has resulied in changes in its accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements,
The Group has applied PFRS 15 retrospectively to all outstanding contracts as of
January 1, 2017 in accordance with the standard’s transitional provisions.

The Group also adopted the following Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC)
Question & Answer (Q&A) retrospectively in accordance with PAS 8:

* PIC Q&A No. 2018-11, Classification of Land by Real Estate Developer,
requires real estate developers to classify land based on management’s
infention and apply the appropriate accounting treatment as required by
relevant standards,

e DIC Q&A No. 2018-12, PFRS 15 Implementation Issues Affecting the Real
Estate Industry, provides guidelines on the application of PFRS 15 for real
estate transactions. Relative to this, in accordance with SEC Memorandum
Circular (MC) No. 14 series of 2018, the Company has deferred the application
of certain provisions of PIC Q&A No. 2018-12 particularly those with respect
to the accounting for significant financing component and the cxclusion of
uninstalled materials and land in the calculation of percentage of completion.

e PIC Q&A No. 2018-15, PAS 1- Classification of Advances te Contractors in
' the Nature of Prepayments: Current vs. Non-current, clarifies how the advances
to contractors should be classified in the statement of financial position

The effects of the adoption of PFRS 15 and various PIC Q&A on the assets, liabilities
and equity accounts are shown in Note 2.1 of the Audited Financial Stalements,

Also, the Group changed its collection critetion in revenue recognition from 25% to
10%. The Group reassessed the historical payment pattern of its customer and
determined the 10% as estimate that collection of total contract price is reasonably
assured. This change in percentage of collection threshold was adopted in 2018 and
applied prospectively.

Review for the vear ended December 31, 2018

Results of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2018 the Group®s consolidated net income

amounted to Php 1.72 billion, a 13.8% increase from December 31, 2017 net income
of Phpl.51 billion (inclusive of Php113 million non-reeurring gain). Without the non-
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recfurring gain, net income increased by 23% vear-on-year. There is no non-recurring
gain for the year cnded December 31, 2018.

Consolidated total revenues amounted to Php7.5 billion. The bulk of revenues came
from real estate sales, rental income, hotel operations, and finance and other income.
The Group’s registered sales came from salc of lots in Newcoast Shophouse District,
Newcoast Village in Malay, Aklan, Sta, Barbara Heights in lloilo City, Twin Lakes
Domaine Lo Jardin, Lucerne at Domaine Le Jardin in Laurel, Batangas, Pahara at
Manila Southwoods, Alabang West in Daang Hari, Las Pifias and sale of
condomintum units in Oceanway Residences One, Savoy Hotel, Belmont Hotel and
Chancellor Hotel in Boracay, Holland Park in Manila Southwoods and Vineyard
Residences and Manor in Twin Lakes, Tagaytay.

Total cost and expenses amounted to Php5.8 billion, mainly from cost of real estate
sales, cost of rentals and services, cost of hotel operations, and operating expenses
resulting from aggressive marketing activities as well as other administrative and
corporate overhead,

Financial Condition

The Growp’s financial position remained stable and with adequate capacity to supporl
its growth. Total Assets of Php46billion as of December 31, 2018 compared to
Php44.6 billion as of December 31, 2017 posted an increase of Php1.4 billion or 3%.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by 44% mainly due to payment of construction
costs, partial payment of Interest bearing loans and borrowings and partial redemption
of preferred shares, from Php3.2 billion as of December 2017 to Php1.8 billion as of
December 2018. Trade and other receivables increased by 57% mainly due to increase
in installment sales recognized from completed projects. Contract assets increased by
50%, from Php2.4 billion as of December 2017 to Php3.5 billion as of December
2018 due additional sales from uncompleted projects with higher percentage of
completion than percentage of collection. Advances to related parties decreased by
25% due to payments made by related parties and impairment of certain advances that
were recorded in books prior to 201 1. Investment property increased by 11% duc to
new land acquisition and additional construction costs of Twin Lakes Hotel and
Southwoods Office Towers. Other current and non-current assets decreased by 16%,
from Php3.9 billion as of December 2017 to Php3.2 billion as of December 2018,
mainly due to decrease in Advances to contractors and suppliers.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings decreased by 20% or Php995 million as of
December 2018 as compared to December 2017 due to partial payment of principal of
interest bearing loan. Trade and other payables increased by 18% mainly due to
increase in payables to contractors and suppliers. Customer’s Deposits decreased from
Phpl.5 billion as of December 31, 2017 te Php1.2 billion as of December 31, 2018 or
20% mainly due te adoption prospectively of the new percentage of coliection in
recognizing installment sales. Coniract liabilities increased by 9% due to additional
sales from uncompleted projects with lower percentage of completion than percentage

of collection. Advances from related parties increase by 7% due to additional
advances from parent company. Redeemable preferred shares decreased by 20% due
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to initial redemption of Twin Lakes Corporation. Deferred Tax Liability also
increased from Php829.7 million in December 2017 to Php1.27 billion in December
2018, The 53% increase is due to increase in taxable temporary difference., Retirement
benefit obligation decreased by 22% from Phpé3 million in December 2017 to Php50
ntillion in December 2018 due to lower accrual of retirement benefit. Other non-

current liabilities increased from Phpl.11 billion to Php1.23 billion mainly due to
increase in retention pavable.

Shareholders’ Equity increased from Php29.4 billion to Php31.1 billion mainly due to
net income for the year,

Material Changes in the year ended December 31, 2018 Financial Statements
(Increase/decrease of 5% or more versus December 31, 2017 as restated)

Financial Position

* 44% decrease in Cash and cash equivalents - due to payment of construction
costs, partial payment of Interest bearing loans and borrowings and partial
redemption of preferred shares.

s 57% increase in Trade and other receivable — mainly due to increase in
installment real estate sales recognized from completed projects.

* 50% increase in Contract assets — due to additional sales from uncompleted
projects with higher percentage of completion than percentage of coliection.

» 25% decrease in Advances to refated parties — due to payments made by
related parties and impairment of certain advances that were recorded in books
prior to 2011

» 11% Iincrease in Investment property — due to new land acquisition and
additional construction costs of Twin Lakes Hotel and Southwoods Otfice
Towers.

» 16% decrease in other current and non-current assets — due to deercase in
advances to contractors and supplicrs.

e 20% decrease in Inferest-bearing loans and borrowings — due to partial
payment of principal of interest bearing ican.

e 18% increase in Trade and other payables — mainly due to increase in payables
to contractors and suppliers.

e 20% decrease in Customer’s deposit — mainly due to adoption prospectively of
the new percentage of collection in recognizing installment sales

e 9% increase in Contract liabilities — due to additional sales from uncompleted
projects with lower percentage of completion than percentage of collection

¢ 7% increase in Advanccs from rclated parties — due to additional advances
from parent company,

® 20% decrease in Redeemable preferred shares — due to initial redemption of
Twin Lakes Corporation

e 53% increase in Deferred tax liabilities — due to increase in taxable temporary
difference

o 22% decrease in Retirement benefit obligation — due to lower accrual of
retirement benefit

* 12% increase in other non-current liability — mainty due te increase in
retention payvable.



Results of Operations

21% increase in Real estate sales — due to adoption prospectively of the new
percentage of collection in recognizing installment sales.

165% increase in Rental income — mainly due to increase in occupancy and
additional leasable area because of completion of Southwoods Office Towers
at Southwoods City in Laguna and land lease of Landers at Alabang West in
Las Pifias

36% decrease in Hotel Operations — mainly due to Boracay closure for 6
months.

153% increase in Finance and other income — due to increase on interest
income on real estaie sales.

100% decrease in Gain on sale of investment on associate — due to no sale of
investment for the period

27% increase in Cost of real estate sales — due to increase on real estate sales
for the peried

45% increase in Cost of rental and services — mainly due to increase in
depreciation from additional property held for lease and increase in cost of
services.

28% decrease in Cost of hotel operations — mainly due to decrease in hotel
revenue.

22% increase in Operating expenses — mainly due to increase in marketing and
commission expenses and other administrative expenses.

440% increase in Equity share in net losses of associates — due to increase in
net loss of associates recognized for the year.

86% increase in Finance cost and other charges — due to interest expense from
the additional loan obtained in last quarter of 2017.

20% increase in Income tax expense due to increase in taxable income

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial

Conditions

Review for the year ended December 31, 2017, as restated

Results of Operations
(Comparing balances for the year ended December 31, 2017, as restated and for
the year ended December 31, 2016, as restated)

For the year ended December 31, 2017 as restated, the Group’s consolidated net
income amounted to Php1.51 billien (inclusive of Php113 million non-recurring gain),
a 33% increase from December 31, 2016 as restated net income of Phpl.14 billion
(inclusive of Php82.5 million non-recurring gain). Without the non-recurring gain, its
net income rose to Phpl.4 billion, a 33% increase year-on-year.
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Consolidated total revenues amounied to Php6.2 billion. The bulk of revenues came
from real estate sales, hotel operations, rental income and finance and other
income.The Group’s registered sales came from sale of lots in Newcoast Shophouse
District, Newcoast Village in Malay, Aklan, Sta. Barbara Heights in Hoilo City, Twin
Takes Domaine Le Jardin, Lucerne at Domaine Le Jardin in Laurel, Batangas, Pahara
at Manila Southwoods, Alabang West in Daang Hari, Las Pifias and sale of
condominium units in Oceanway Residences One, Savoy Hotel, Belmont Hotel and
Chancellor ITlotel in Boracay, Holland Park in Manila Southwoods and Vineyard
Residences in Twin Lakes, Tagaytay.

Total cost and expenses amounted to Php4.6 biltion, mainly from cost of real estate
sales, cost of hotel operations and operating expenses resulting from aggressive
marketing activities as well as other administrative and corporate overhead,

Financial Condition

{Comparing balances as of December 31, 2017 as restated and as of Janunary 1,
2017 as restated)

The Group’s financial position remained stable and with adequate capacity to support
its growth. Total Assets of Php44.6 billion as of December 31, 2017 as restated,
compared to Php40.6 billion as of January 1, 2017 as restated, posted an increase of
Php4 billion or 10%.

Trade and other receivables increased by 48% mainly due to increase in installment
real estate sales recognized from completed projects. Contract assets incrcased by
43% due to additional sales from uncompleted projects with higher percentage of
completion than percentage of collection. Advances to real estale property owners
increased by 13% due to advances made to real properly owners in relation to a joint
venture agreement. Investment in associates decreased by 18% due to sale of partial
ownership interest in BNHGI. Investment property increased by 18% due to on-going
construction of building intended for lease and reclassification from Property, plant
and equipment of office building for lease. Property, plant and equipment decrcased
by 6% due to the reclassification.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings increased by 29% or Phpl.l billion as of
December 2017 as restated due to additional interest bearing loan. Trade and other
payables increased by 32% mainly due to increase in payables to contractors and
suppliers. Customer’s Deposits decreased from Phpl.7 billion as of January 1, 2017
as restated to Phpl.5 billion as of December 31, 2017 as restated or 15% decrcase due
to recognized installment sales for the period. Advances from related parties increase
by 79% due to additional advances from parent company. Due to joint venture
partners decreased by 16% due to payment to joint venture partners. Deferred Tax
Liability also increased from Php557.9 million as of January 1, 2017 as restated to
Php329.8 million in December 2017 as restated. The 49% increase is due to increase
in taxable temporary difference. Retirement benefit obligation increased by 5% from
Php61 million in January 1, 2017 as restated to Php64 million in December 2017 as
restated due to accrual of additional retirement benefit. Other non-current liabilities
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increased from Php1.06 billion to Phpl.11 billion mainly due to increase in retention
payable.

Shareholders’ Equity increased from Php27.7 billion to Php29.4 billion due to net
income for the year.

Material Changes in the year ended December 31, 2017 as restated Financial
Statements

Financial Position
{Increase/decrease of 5% or more versus as of January 1, 2017 as restated)

48% increase in Trade and other receivable — mainly due to increase in
instailment sales recognized during the year.

43% increase in Contract assets - due to additional sales from uncompleted
projects with higher percentage of completion than percentage of collection.
13% increase in Advances to rcal estate property owners — due to increase in
advances made to rcal property owners in relation to a joint venture
agreement,

18% decrease In Investment in associates — due to sale of partial ownership
interest in BNHGI

18% increase in Investment property — due o on-going construction of
building intended for lease and reclassification of office building for lease.

6% decrease in Property, plant and equipment — due to reclassification made
to Investment property.,

29% increase in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings — due to additional
Interest bearing loan.

32% increase in Trade and other payables — mainly due to increase in payables
to contractors and suppliers.

15% decrease in Customer’s deposit — due to installment sales recognized for
the period.

79% increase in Advances from rclated parties — due to additional advances
from parent company.

16% decrease in Due to joint venture partners — due to pavment to joint
venture partners.

49% increase in Deferred tax liabilities — due to increase in taxable temporary
difference

5% increase in Retirement benefit obligation — due to accrual of additional
retirement benefit

5% increase in Other non-current liability — mainly due to increase in retention
payable,

Results of Operations
(Increase/decrease of 5% or more versus December 31, 2016 as restated)

-

34% increase in Real estate sales — mainly due to increase in percentage of
completion of on-going projects.



* 54% increase in Rental income — mainly due to increase in occupancy of
leasable area and opening of Southwoods Mall at Southwoods City in Laguna.

* 23% increase in Service income — due to increase in income from golf course
maintenance

» 37% increase in Gain on sale of investment in associate — due to a higher
income realized from sale of owncrship interest in one associale

* 30% decrease in Finance and other income — due to decrease on interest
income on real estate sales

» 25% increase in Cost of real estate sales — due to increase in real estate sales
recognized for the year.

» 40% increase in Cost of rental and services — mainly due to increase in
depreciation from additional investment property and cost of services.

¢ 24% increases in Operating expenses - mainly due to increase in marketing
and commission expenses and other adminisiralive expenses.

¢ 94% decrease in Equity share in net losses of associates — due to decrease in
net loss of associates recognized for the vear.

* 83% increase in Finance cost and other charges — due to interest cxpense from
additional interest bearing loan and day one loss.

» 44% increase in Income tax expense due to increase in taxable income

Review for the vear ended December 31, 2016

Resulis of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2016 the Group’s consolidated net income
amounted to Php 1.08billion (inclusive of Php82.5 million non-recurring gain), a
27.51% increase from December 31, 2015 nct incomc of Php 848.8million (inclusive
of Phpl81.3 million non-recurring gain). Without the non-recurring gain, its net
income rose to Php 1.0 billion, a 49.8% increase year-on-year.

Consolidated total revenues amounted fo Php3.7 billion. The bulk of revenues came
from real estate sales, hotel operations, realized gross profit on prior year sale, rental
income and finance and other income .The Group’s registered sales came from sale of
lots in Newcoast Shophouse District, Newcoast Boutique Hotel in Malay, Akian, Sta.
Barbara Heights in Iloilo City, Twin Lakes Domaine Le Jardin in Laurel, Batangas,
Pahara at Manila Southwoods, Alabang West in Daang Hari, Las Pifias and sale of
condominium units in Newcoast Oceanway Residences, Savoy Hotel and Belmont
Hotel in Boracay, Holland Park in Manila Southwoods and Vinevard Residences in
Twin Lakes, Tagaytay.

Total cost and expenses amourted to Php4,7 billion, mainly from cost of real estate
sales, cost of hotel operations, deferred gross profit on real estate sales and operating
sxpenses resulting from aggressive marketing activities as well as other administrative
and corporate overhead.
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Financial Condition

The Group’s financial position remained stable and with adequate capacity to support
its growth. Total Assets of Php44 billion as of December 31, 2016 compared to Php40
billion as of December 31, 2015 posted an increase of Php4.7 biilion or 12%.

Cash and cash equivalents increased by 7% from Php2.9 billion as of December 2015
to Php3.1 billion as of December 2016. Trade and other receivables increased by 26%
mainly due to increase in installment real estate sales for the period. Advances to
related parties decreased hy 6% due to collection of Advances to related parties. Real
estate and resorts shares for sale increased by 10%, from Phpl2 billion as of
December 31, 2015 to Phpl3.2 billion as of December 31, 2016, mainly due to
completion of on-going developments and new project launched for the year.
Investment in associates decreased by 19% due to sale of partial ownership interest in
BNHGI. Investment property increased by 107% due to on-going construction of
building intended for lease. Prepayments and other assets increased by 12% from
Php3.4 billion in December 2015 to Php3.8 billion in December 2016 mainly due to
increase in advances to contractors and suppliers as down payment for services to be
rendered and goods to be delivered in relation to various construction of real estate
projects.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings increased by 96% or Phpl.9 billion as of
December 2016 as compared to December 2015 due to additional interest bearing
loan. Trade and other payables decreased by 12% mainly due to payments made to
contractors and suppliers. Reserve for property development increased by 24% due to
increase in accrual of development cost for the year. Deferred income on real estate
sales increased by 21% due to deferred gross profit from sales recognized for the year,
Deferred Tax Liability also increased from Php465.6 million in December 2015 to
Php343.3 million in December 2016. The 17% increase is due to increase in taxable
temporary difference. Retirement benefit obligation increased by 32% from Php46
millicn in December 2015 to Php61 million in December 2016 due to accrual of
additional retirement benefit. Other non-current liabilities increased from Php0.69
billion to Phpl.06 billion mainly due to additional accrual of interest on redeemable
preferred shares and incrcase in retention payable.

Shareholders’ Equily increased from Php25.8 billion to Php27.5 billion due to net
mcome for the year.

Material Changes in the year ended December 31, 2016 Financial Statements
(Increase/decrease of 5% or more versus December 31, 2015)

Financial Position

¢ 7% increase in Cash and cash equivalents — mainly due to proceeds of
additional interest bearing loan to finance various project development of the
Group.

¢ 26% increase in Trade and other receivable — mainly due to increase in
installment sales booked during the year.
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» 6% decrease in Advances to related parties — due to collection of Advances to
related parties

s 10% increase in Real estate and resort shares for sale — due to increase in
completion of on-going developments and new project launched for the year.

* 19% decrease in Investment in associates — due to sale of partial ownership
interest in BNHGI

e 107% increase in Investment Property — due to on-going construction of
building intended for lease.

¢ 12% increase Prepayments and other assets — mainly due to increase in
advances to contractors and suppliers as down payment for services to be
rendered and goods to be delivered in relation to various constructions of real
estate projects.

* 96% increase in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings — due to additional
interest bearing loan of parent company.

* 12% decrease in Trade and other payables — mainly due to payments made to
contraciors and suppliers

* 24% increase in Reserve for property development — due to additional accrual
of development cost

» 21% increase in Deferred income on real estate sales — due to deferred gross
profit from real estate sales recognized for the year

¢ 17% increase in Deferred tax liabilities — due to increase in taxable temporary
difference

e 32% increase in Retirement benefit obligation — due to accrual of additional
retirement benefit

® 52% increase in Other non-current liability — mainly due to additional accrual
of interest on redeemable preferred shares and increase in retention payable.

Results of Operations

6% increase in Real estate sales — due to aggressive marketing,
o 75% increase in Rental income — mainly due to increase in occupancy of

leasable area.

¢ 13% increase in Hotel operations — mainly due to increase in hotel occupancy

e 25% increase in Realized gross profit on prior years’ real estate sales — due to
increase in percentage of completion of on-going projects.

» 10% decrease in Service income — due to decrease in income from golf course
maintenance

*  55% decrease in Gain on sale of investment in associate — due 1o lower income
realized from sale of ownership interest in one associate

¢ 30% increase in Finance and other income — due to increase in realized
interest income from amortization of Installment contract receivables

» 14% increase in Cost of real estate sales — due to Increase in real estate sales
recognized for the year.

e 21% increase in Cost of hotel operations — mainly due to increase in hotel
revente,
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¢ 16% decrease in Cost of services — mainly due to decreasc in service income.
*  22% decrease in Deferred gross profit on real estate sajes — mainly due to real

estate sales recognized for the period from projects with higher percentage of
completion

* 58% decrease in Equity share in net losses of associates — due to decrease in
net loss of associates recognized for the year,

® 6% increase in Finance cost and other charges — due to interest expense from
additional interest bearing loan.

* 31% increase in Income tax expense due to increase in taxable income
ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018,
December 31, 2017, and December 31, 2016 of the Company are incorporated herein
duly signed by the external auditors.

ITEM 8. CIIANGES IN AND DISAGRFEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCL.OSURE

Independent Public Accountants

In compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 8, Series of 2003, and the
Company’s Manual of Corporate Governance, which require that the Company’s
external auditor be rotated or the handling partner changed every five (5) years or
carlier, the Company’s Board of Directors approved, on June 28, 2019, the
designation of Punongbayan and Araullo as the external auditor for the audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2018,

For the years 2016 to 2020, the partner designated is Mr. Renan Piamonte, an Audit
and Assurance partner of Punongbayan and Araullo.

Changes in Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

There are no disagreements with the auditors on any matter of accounting principles
or practices, financial statement disclosure, or anditing scope or procedure, which, if
not resolved to their satisfaction, would have caused the auditors to make reference
thereto in their reports on the financial statements of the Company at its subsidiaries.

External Audit Fees and Services

For the audit of the registrant’s financial statements and services that are normally
provided by the external auditors in connection with statutory and regulatory filings
for the calendar year report of 2018, 2017, and 2016, fee was approximately Phpl.358
million, Php1.294 million, and Php1.232 million, respectively.
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No other assurance and related services have been rendered by the external auditors to
the registrant other than the items discussed above.

PART (I - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
ITEM 9. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The table sets forth each member of the Company’s Board:

Name i Age Citizenship Position
Andrew L. Tan 69 Filipino Chairman & CEQ
Lourdes T, Gutierrez- 55 Filipino Managing Director
Alfonso
Monica T. Salomon 50 Filipino President
Ferdinand T, Santos 68 Filipino Director
Wilbur L. Chan 59 Filipino Director for Clubs and Hotels
Jesus B. Varela 62 Filipino Lead Independent Director
Cresencio P. Aquino 65 Filipino Independent Director
Alain A, Sebastian 43 Filipino Director
Kevin Andrcw L. Tan 39 Filipino Director

The table below sets forth GERI’s executive officers in addition to its executive
directors listed above (as of December 31, 2018):

Name Age Citizenship Position
Latlani V. Villanueva 39 Filipino Chief Finance Officer and
Compliance Officer
Maric Emelyn Gertrudes 54 Filipino EVP for Legal
C. Martinez
Jennifer L. Romualdez 49 Filipino SVP — Head of Operations
Karen B. Maderazo 40 Filipino VP for Human Resources
; and Corporate Admin
' Dominic V. Isberto 44 Filipino Corporate Secretary
' Rolando D. Siatela 58 Filipino Asst, Corporate Secretary

Board of Directors

ANDREW 1. TAN, Filipino, 69 years old, was first elected as Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 12 January 2011, He is also
the Chairman of the Board of Alliance Global Group, Inc. since 2006 and of
Emperador Inc. since 28 August, 2013, He has broad experience in the real estate,
food and beverage, and quick scrvice restaurants industries. Dr. Tan is concurrently
the Chairman of the Board and President of Megaworld Corporation. He is also the




Chairman of Empire East Land Holdings, Inc., Suntrust Properties, Inc., and a director
of Travellers International Hote! Group, Inc., Fairways & Bluewater Resort Golf &
Country Club, Inc. and Twin Lakes Corporation. He is also a Vice Chairman and
Treasurer of Golden Arches Development Corporation, the holder of the McDonald’s
Philippine franchise. Dr. Tan graduated Magna Cum Laude from the Un iversity of the
East with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Business Administration,

LOURDES T. GUTIERREZ-ALFONSO, 55 years old, was first elected as Director
of the Company on 30 June 2011. Effective 01 March 2015, she was appointed as the
Company’s Managing Director in a concurrent capacity to oversee the Company's
business performance and lead in the formulation of overall strategic direction, plans,
and policies for the Company. She is currently the Chief Operating Officer of
Megaworld Corporation. Ms. Gutierrez joined Megaworld in 1990. She is a Certified
Public Accountant and is a member of Megaworld’s Management Executive
Commitiee. Ms. Gutierrez graduated Cum Laude from the Far Fastern University
with the degree of Bachelor of Science major in Accounting. She is the Chairman of
Megaworld’s property management arm, First Oceanic Property Management, Inc.
and Eastwood Cinema 2000, Inc. She is currently the Director and Vice Chairman of
suntrust Properties, Inc. and a director of Megaworld Cebu Properties, Inc.,
Megaworld Resort Estates, Inc., Occantown Properties, Inc., Prestige Hotels &
Resorts, Inc. and Lucky Chinatown Cinemas. Inc., Oceanfront Properties, Inc.,
Megaworld Global-Estate, Inc., Twin Lakes Corporation, and Fil-Estate Urban Dev’t
Corp. She is & trustee and Corporate Secretary of Megaworld Foundation, Inc.

MONICA T. SALOMON, 50 years old, has served as Director, President, and Chicf
Operating Officer of the Company since 01 March 2015. Prior to joining GERI, she
was Head of Megaworld’s Corporate Management Division and spearheaded strategic
real estate acquisitions and joint ventures for the Megaworld Group. She was also a
member of Megaworld’s Management Executive Committee, which is responsible for
the development and execution of the Group’s corporate strategies, policies and
initiafives. She holds directorships in various Megaworld and GERI subsidiaries
significant of which are Twin Lakes Corporation, Megaworld Global-Fstate, Inc.,
Southwoods Ecocentrum Corp., Southwoods Mall, Inc., Prestige Hotels & Resorts,
Inc., Luxury Global Hotels and Leisure, Inc.,, Oceanfront Properties, Inc.., and
Megaworld Foundation, -Inc. She cbtained her Bachelor of Laws in 1994 from the
University of the Philippines.

WILBUR 1. CHAN, Filipino, 59 years old, was first elected as Director of the
Company on 12 January 201 1. He also serves as Director for Hotels and Clubs and is
currently the Chairman of Fairways & Bluewater Resorts Golf & Country Club, Inc.
and Fil-Estate Urban Development Corporation. He is also Director in Southwoods
Ecocentrum Corporation and Uni-Asia Properties, Inc. He has a Masteral Degree in
Business Management at Asian Institute of Management, Master Degree in Natjonal
Security Administration (Silver Medalist) at National Defense College of the
Philippines and a Degree in Command & General Staff Course at Command &
General Staff College.

FERDINAND T. SANTOS, Filipino, 68 years old, was elected as Director of the
Company since its incorporation in [994. He served as the Company’s President until
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his retirement on 28 February 2015. He is also the President of Fil-Estate
Management Inc., Fil-Estate Development Inc., Fairways & Bluewater Resort Golf &
Country Club, Inc., Newport Hills Golf Club, Inc., St. Benedict Realty &
Development Inc., Royal Jade Memeorial Inc,, and Mt. Zion Memorial Inc. He
graduated from Arellano University with Bachelor of Arts degree in 1970 and took
his Bachelor of Laws at San Beda College where he graduated Valedictorian and

Magna Cum Laude in 1974. He was a topnotcher in the 1974 Philippine Bar (21
Place).

KEVIN ANDREW L. TAN, 39 years old, was elected as Director on 26 June 2014.
He is the Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman of Alliance Global Group and
Chief Sirategy Officer of Megaworld Corporation. He is concurrently a director of
listed companies, Emperador Inc. and Empire East Land Holdings, Inc., and of non-
listed companies, Emperador Distillers, Inc., Alliance Global Brands, Inc., Anglo
Watsons Glass, Inc., Yorkshire Holdings, Inc., The Bar Beverage, Inc., Emperador
Brandy, Inc., Southwoods Ecocentrum Corp., Twin Lakes Corporation and
Southwoods Mall, Inc. He has over 11 years of experience in retail leasing, marketing
and operalions having served as head of Megaworld Lifestyle Malls for over 11 years,
Mr. Tan holds a Bachelor of Science Business Administration degree, major in
Management, from the University of Asia and the Pacific.

ALAIN A, SEBASTIAN, Filipino, 43, was formerly an Assistant Vice President of
Megaworld Corporation where he was primarily responsible for various business
development activities of Megaworld. He previously acted as director and corporate
secretary for some of Megaworld’s subsidiaries and affiliates and several of its
building administration companies. He was previously a director of Global-Estate
Resorts, Inc. from June 2014 until February 28, 2015, Prior to Megaworld, he worked
at Globe Telecom as Head of SME Segment Marketing. A seasoned relationship and
project manager, he has held key roles in marketing, [linance, and sales, He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Management Economics from the Ateneo de Manila University
as well as a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the Asian Institute of
Management.

JESUS B. VARELA, Filipino, 62 years old, was clected as Lead Independent
Director on 30 June 2016. He is also an Independent Director of Megaworld
Corporation, Ile graduated with an Economics degree in 1979 from Ateneo de Manila
University. He attended (raining courses in Labor Administration and Policy
Formulation under the International Labor Organization/ARPLA program, the
Corporate Planning Course at the Center for Research Communication, Foreign
Exchange Training by Metro Bank and Forex Club of the Philippines, Systems
Analysis by the Presidential Management Staff, Asian Productivity Seminar and other
in-house seminars conducted by the Department of Labor and the Development
Academy of the Philippines. He is presently the Chairman of Committee on Trade,
and Bureau of Customs Consultative Group of Philippine Chamber of Commerce and
Industry. He is also the Director General of International Chamber of Commerce
Philippines. Currently, he is the President of Philippine Greek Business Council,
Philippine Peru Business Council and Advancement of Workers® Awareness
Regarding Employment (AWARE) Foundation, Inc. He is also Member of Committee
for Accreditation of Cargo Surveying Companies. Apart fiom his previous
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government experience, he used to be the Managing Director of SAS Iloldings Co.,
Vice President- International Operations of Catleya Manning Corp. and President ol
Manila Center. He also previously worked as a Marketing Director for FELA Sales

International and a Management Consultant of ABL Consultancy and Management
Services, Inc.

CRESENCIO P. AQUINQ?, Filipino, 65 years old, is currently thc Managing
Partner of The Law Firm of CP Aquino & Partners, He is a graduate of San Sebastian
College Manila with degrees in Bachelor of Arts and Bachelor of Laws. Atty. Aquino
has extensive experience in both the public and private sectors as follows: Director of
Clark Development Corporation from 2012 to 2016, Tndependent Director of Global-
Estate Resorts, Inc. from 2010 to 2012, Independent Director of Suntrust Home
Developers, Inc. from 2009 to 2012, Corporate Legal Counsel of MBF Card and One
Card Corporation from June 1998 to May 2004, Special Assistant and Chief Legal
Counsel of the Government Service Insurance System from September 1992 to June
1998, member of the Board of Directors of the Meat Packaging Corporation of the
Philippines from September 1992 1o June 1998, Personnel and Administrative
Manager, Corporate Secretary and Chief Legal Counsel of ComSavings Bank from
September 1992 to June 1998, Executive Director of the Department of Interior and
Local Government (D1L.G) from 1998 to 1992, and Ex-Officio Commissioner of the
DILG with the Housing and Land Use Regulatory Beard also for the same period.
Atty. Aquino has extensive experience in public service, investment banking,
corporate practice specializing in joint venture undertaking, corporate restructuring,
real estate funds, mergers and acquisitions, risk management, innovative
restructuring, due diligence & valuations and enhancing shareholder value, He was
formerly an Associate Professor with the San Sebastian College. Atty. Aquino has
been a member of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines since 1978 and is also a
member of the Capitol Bar Association, Knights of Columbus and the Lawyers
League of the Philippines.

Kev Executive Officers

LAILANI V. VILLANUEVA, Filipino, 39 years old, is the Chief Finance Officer
and Compliance Officer. Effective 27 March, 2019, she was also appointed as
Treasurer of the Company to replace Mr. Alain Sebastian who resigned as Treasurer.
She is a Certified Public Accountant with over 19 years of experience in accounting
and finance. Prior to joining the Company, shc was connected with Megaworld
Corporation as a Senior Accounting Manager from 2007 until 2010. In 2011, she
joined Global-Estate Resorts, Tnc. as Comptroller. She is concurrently the Chief
Financial Officer of Fairways and Bluewater Resort Golf and Country Club, Inc.,
Director and Chief Finance Officer of Southwoods Ecocentrum Corporation, Director
of Southwoods Mall Inc. and Megaworld Global Estate Inc. Ms. Villanueva graduated
from the College of the Immaculate Concepcion with a degree of Bachelor Science in
Accountancy.

2 Atty. Cresencio P. Aquino was elected as Independent Diirector on February 15, 2018 to serve the
unexpired lerm of Mr. Gerardo C. Garcla, who passed away on January 26, 2018,
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MARIE EMELYN GERTRUDES C. MARTINEZ, © ilipino, 54 years old, is the
Executive Vice President for Legal. She is also a Director of Fil-Estate Properties,
Inc. and the Assistant Corporate Secretary of Fairways and Bluewater Resort Golf and
Couniry Club, Tnc. Before joining GERI, she was the Chief of Staff of the Office of
COMELEC Commissioner Augusto C. Lagman. She was a Partner in Ponce Enrile
Reyes & Manalastas (PECABAR) Law Offices and in Nisce Mamuric Guinto Rivera
& Alcantara Law Offices. She was admitted to the Bar in 1991 after obtaining her
Bachelor of Laws degree from University of the Philippines and her Bachelor of Arts
major in Economics from the same university.

JENNIFER L. ROMUALDEZ, Filipino, 49 years old, is the Senior Vice President
for Operations of GERI. She joined GERI on 1 July 2012 as Contracts and
Procurement Head and in September 2012, she was appointed as Head of Project
Management. Previously, she worked for Megaworld Corporation for nine (9) years
in various capacities in the areas of procurement, contracts, construction management
and interior design. After her Megaworld stint she served as Corporate Manager for
Quantity Surveying & Tender of Ding Feng Real Estate Devclopment Co.,
Ltd., Assistant Director for Marketing-Interior Design & Graphics of Ho Cheng
(China) Co. Ltd., both in Shanghai, PRC and Consultant for the HCG Beijing
Flagship Showroom project. She graduated from the University of the Philippines in
Diliman, Quezen City with a degree in Bachelor of Science Major in Architecture,
She completed and passed the Philippine Licensure Fxamination for Architects in
1993,

KAREN B. MADERAZO, Filipino, 40 years old, is the Vice President for Human
Resources and Corporate Admin. She joined GERI on October 1, 2013. Prior to
joining the Company, Ms. Maderazo served as the Senior Manager for Human
Resources Division of Megaworld Corporation from May 2005 to September 2013.
She also worked for Suyen Corporation from June 2003 to February 2005 as Training
Specialist of the Personnel Department. She graduated from Centro Escolar
University with a degree in Bachelor of Science in Psychology. She also took up 36

units of Master’s degree in Psychology from Centro Escolar University from 2000 to
2003.

DOMINIC V. ISBERTO, 44 years old, Filipino, was elected as the Corporate
Sccretary and Asst. Corporate Information Officer of the Company on 12 January
2011. He is also the Corporate Secretary of publicly-listed Alliance Global Group,
Inc.,, and Emperador Inc., and of non-listed companies Twin Lakes Corporation,
Suntrust Properties, Inc. and Eastwood City Estates Association, Inc. He is currently a
Vice President for Corporate Compliance of Megaworld Corporation, where he is
primarily responsible for corporate advisory, compliance and regulatory matters,
preparation and review of lease agreements, loan agreements, and other corporate
contracts and agreements and the handling of legal cases. Mr. Isberto has experience
in litigation and banking and corporate law. He has a degree in Management
Engineering from the Ateneo de Manila University and obtained his Bachelor of Laws
degree from the University of the Philippines.

ROLANDO D. SIATELA, 58 years old, Filipino was clected as Assistant Corporate
Secretary of the Company on 12 January 2011. He concurrently serves in PSE-listed




companies, Alliance Global Group, Inc., Megaworld Corporation and Emperader Inc.
as Assistant Corporate Secretary, and in Suntrust Home Developers, Inc. as Corporate
Sceretary and Corporate Information Officer. He is also the Assistant Vice President
of Megaworld Corporation. Prior to Jjoining Megaworld Corporation, he was
employed as Administrative and Personnel Officer with Batarasa Consolidated, Inc.
He is a member of the board of Asia Finest Cuisine, Inc., serves as Corporate

Secretary of ERA Real Estate Exchange, Inc. and Oceanic Realty Group International,
Ine,

Significant Employees

The Corporation considers its entire workforce as significant emplovees. The
Corporation relies on the contribution of all employees to achieve its corporate
objectives.

Family Relationships
Chairman Andrew L. Tan is the father of director Kevin Andrew L. Tan.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings (over the past 5 vears)

The Company has no knowledge of any of the following events that occurred during
the past five (5) years up to the date of this report, which are material to an evaluation
of the ability or integrity of any director or executive officer:

2. None of them has been involved in any bankruptcy petition.

b. None of them has been convicted by final judgment in a criminal proceeding or
being subject to a pending criminal proceedin g both domestic and foreign.

¢. None of them has been subject to any order, Judgment or decree of any court of
competent jurisdiction (domestic or foreign) permanently or terporarily,
enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting their involvement in any type
of business, securities, commodities or banking activities,

d. None of them has been found by a domestic or foreign court of competent
Jurisdiction (in a civil action), the commission or comparable foreign body or a
domestic or foreign exchange or other organized trading market or self-regulatory
organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law or regulatiomn.
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ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

KEY EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

NAME POSITION YEAR SALARY Other Annnal
Compensation
A. Five Most Highly Estimate
Compensated 2019 24.1 Million 5.5 Million
Officers
Monica T, Salomon President
Wilbur L. Chan Director for Hotels
und Clubs

Emelyn C. Martinez EVP-Legal
Jennifer L. Ronmualdez | SVP - Operations
Lailani V. Villanueva Chief Finance Officer

B. All other officers 13.2 Million 2.6 Millien
and directors as a

group unnamed

NAME POSITION YEAR SALARY Other Annual
: Compensation
A. Five Most Highly
Compensated 2018 22.5 Million 4.5 Million
Officers
Moniea I'. Salomon President
Wilbur L. Chan Director for Ilotels
atd Clubs

Emelyn C, Martinez EVP-Legal )
Jennifer L. Romualdez | SVP - Operations
Lailani V. Villanueva Chief Finance Officer

B. All other officers
and directors as a 12.3 Million 2.5 Million
group unnamed
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NAME POSITION YEAR SALARY | Other Annual

Compensation
A. Five Most Highly
Compensated 2017 21.4Million 4.3Million
Officers
Monica T, Salomon President
Wilbur L. Chan Director for Hotels

and Clubs

Emelyn C. Marlinez EVP-Legal
Jennifer L. Romualdez | SVP  Operations
Lailani V. Villanue\:a Chlef Finance Officer

B. All other officers

and directors as a 12.4Million 2.8Million
group unnamed i

The Company adopts a performance-based compensation scheme. The total annual
compensation of the President and top four highly compensated executives amounted
to Php27 million in 2018, and Php25.7 miltion in 2017. The projected total annual
compensation for the current year is Php29.6 million.

The total annual compensation paid to all senior personnel from AVP and up are all
payable in cash. The total annual compensation includes the basic salary and 13th
month pay.

The Company has no other arrangement with regard to the remuneration of its
existing officers aside from the compensation received as herein stated.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
The Directors receive rcasonable per diem.

On September 23, 2011, the Board of Directors of the Company approved an
Executive Stock Option Plan and this was approved on November 8, 2011 by
stockholders holding at least 2/3 of the outstanding capital stock. The purpose of the
Plan is to enable the key Company executives, directors and senior officers who arc
largely responsible for its further growth and development to obtain an ownership
interest in thc Company, thereby encouraging long-term commitment to the
Company. The Plan is being administered by the Corporate Governance Committee of
the Board.

Under the Plan, the Company shall initially reserve for exercise of stock options up to
500 million common shares of the Company’s outstanding shares to be issued, in
whole or in part, out of the authorized but unissued shares. Stock options may be
granted within ten (10) years from the adoption of the Plan and may be exercised
within seven (7) years from date of grant. The exercise price shall be at a 15%
discount from the volume weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares for
twelve (12) months immediately preceding the date of grant. The options shall vest
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within three (3) years from date of grant and the holder of an option may exercise
only a third of the option at the end of each year of the three (3) year period. The
Company shall receive cash for the stock options.

Pursuant to this ESOP, on February 16, 2012, the Company granted the option to its
key company directors and executives to subscribe to 100 million shares of the
Company, at an exercise price of Phpl.93 (1% Tranche). On February 18, 2013, the
Company granted another stock option to the same set of directors and officers for the
same number of shares (100 million shares) at an exercise price of Phpl.69 (2™
Tranche). On March 7, 2014, the Company granted another stock option to the same
set of directors and officers for the same number of shares {100 million shares) at an
exercise price of Phpl.50 (3™ Tranche). On March 9, 2015 and June 17, 2016, the
Company granted another stock option to certain key officers of the company for 50
Million shares for each tranche at an exercise price of Phpl.65 (4" Tranchc) and
Phpl.00 (5% Tranche), respectively.

The PSE approved the Company’s application for the listing of 100,000,000 common
shares {1st 1ranche), an additional 100,000,000 common shares (2nd Tranche), an
additional 100,000,000 common shares (3™ Tranche), an additional 350,000,000
common shares (4% Tranche), and an additional 50,000,000 common shares (st
Tranche) on May 25, 2012, January 28, 2014, June 17, 2014, July 24, 2015, and
November 11, 2016, respectively.

An Option Holder may exercise in whole or in part his vested Option provided, that,
an Option exercisable but not actually exercised within a given year shall accrue and
may be exercised at any time thereafter but prior to the expiration of said Option’s
Life Cycle.

As of 31 December 2018, none of the Option Holders has cxcrcised the options
granted to them under the ESOP, and no underlying shares have been subscribed nor
tully paid for by the Option Holders in connection therewith.

ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Securitv Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners
Security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners owning more than 5% of

any class of the Corporation's voting securities as of 31 December 2018 are as
follows:
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Name of = Citizenship

Title of | Name, address No. of Shares | Percent
Class of record owner | Beneficial Held (Based in
and relationship | Owner and total
with issuer Relationshi shares)
p with
Record
Owner
Common | Megaworld Megaworld Filipino 9,042,732,139 82.31%
Shares Carporation Corporation
30th Floor,
Alliance Global
Tower, 36% St
comer 1%
Avenue, Uptown
Bonifacio,
Taguig City
Common | PCD Nominee Various Filipino 1,737,389,411 15.81%
shares Corporation shareholders
{Filipino)
6/F MKSE Bldg.
Ayala Avenue,
Makati City

Other than the persons identified above, there are no other beneficial owners of more
than 5% of the Company’s outstanding capital stock that are known to the Company.

Security Ownership of Management

As of December 31, 2018 common shares owned by all directors and executive
officers of GER], representing original issues and stock dividends are as follows:

Amount and
Title of Name of Beneficial nature of Citizenship | Percent
Class Owner Beneficial of Class
Ownership
Common Dr. Andrew L. Tan 2 (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Common Ferdinand T, Santos 30,007 (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Common Wilbur L. Chan 2,611,826 (direct) Filipino 0.02%
Common Jesus B. Varela 1 (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Common Monica T. Salomon 1 (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Common Alain A. Sebastian 1 (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Common Lourdes T. Gutierrez- 2 {direct) Filipino 0.00%
Allonso
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Common Kevin Andrew L. Tan 2 {direct) Filipino 0.00%
Common Cresencio P. Aquino? 1 {direct) Filipino 0.00%
Other Executive Officers
Common Lailani V. Villanueva 0 Filipino nfa
Common Marie Emelyn Gertrudes 0 Filipino nfa
C. Martinez
Common Jennifer L. Romualdez 0 Filipino n’a
Common Karen B. Maderazo 0 Filipino n/a
Common Dominic V. Isherto 0 Filipino n/a
| Common Rolando D, Siatela 0 Filipino n/a

Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

The Company knows of no persons holding more than 5% of common shares under
voting trust or similar agreement.

Changes in Control

On 22 December 2010, the Company signed a Subscription Agreement with Alliance
Global Group, Inc. (AG!) paving the way for AGI to subscribe to 5 billion common
shares of the Company at a subscription price of One Peso (P1.00) per share for a
total subscription price of P5 billion, Philippine currency, to be issued out of an
increase in the capital stock of the Company from P5 billion to P10 billion. On 20
January 2011, said increase was approved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

On June 30, 2011, the stockholders of the Compary representing more than 2/3 of the
outstanding capital stock of the Company ratified the P5 billion subscription of AGI
which subscription represents sixty percent (60%) of the outstanding capital stock of
the Company.

On 23 September 2011, the Board of Directors of Company approved the increase in
authorized capital stock of the Company from Ten Billion Pesos
(Php!10.000,000,000.00) divided into Ten Billion (10,000,000,000) common shares
with a par value of One Peso (Phpl.00) each to Twenty Billion Pesos
(Php20,000,000,000.00) divided inte Twenty Billion (20,000,000,000) common
shares with a par value of One Peso (Phpl.00) each.  The shareholders ratified the
increase on 8 November 2011.

On 21 June 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the subscription
by Megaworld Corporation (Megaworld) to Two Billion Five Hundred Million
(2,500,000,000) shares of the increase in capital stock of the Company, at the price of
Two Pesos and Twenty Six (Php2.26) per share for an aggregate subscription price of
Five Billion Six Hundred Fifty Million Pesos (Php3,630,000,000.00).

3 Atty. Cresencio P. Aquino was clected as [ndependent Director on February 15, 2018 to serve the
unexpired term of Mr. Gerardo C. Gareia, who passed away on January 26, 2018.
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On 08 May 2014, in a move to consolidate all of AGI's properly development
businesses, Megaworld acquired AGI’s 49.2% stake in the Company to increase its
holdings to 74.96%, officially making GERI a subsidiary of Megaworld.

On 20 June 2014, Megaworld acquired an additional 5.44% stake in GERI through a
tender offer increasing its holdings to 80.40%.

On 03 December 2015, Megaworld further acquired an additional 0.24% stake in
GERI, increasing its holdings to 82.2468%.

In February and March 2016, Megaworld acquired additional stake in GERI
increasing its holdings to 82.311% of the Company.

There has been no change in the control of the Company since it became a subsidiary
of Megaworld.

ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group, in its regular conduct of business, has entered into transactions with
associates and other related parties principally consisting of advances and
reimbursement of expenses, purchase and sale of real estate properties, construction
contracts, and development, management, marketing, leasing and administrative
service agresments.

Advances granted to and obtained from subsidiaries, associates and other related
parties are for purposes of working capital requircments.

However, no other transaction was undertaken or to be undertaken by the Group in
which any Director or Executive Officer, or any member of their immediate family
was or to be involved or had or will have a direct or indirect material interest.

No single Director or Executive Officer, or any member of their immediate family
owns or holds more than 10% of the Company's voting shares.

GERI employees are required to promptly disclose any business and family-related
transactions with the Company to ensure that polential conflicts of interest are
surfaces and brought to attention of management.
PART IV —- EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
ITEM 13. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON SEC FORM 17-C
2.) Exhibits
The following exhibit is incorporated by reference in this report:

2018 Consolidated Audited Financial Statements
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No other exhibits, as indicated in the Index to Exhibits are either applicable to
the Company or require no answer.

h.) Reports on SEC Form 17-C

The following reports on SEC Form 17-C were among those filed during the last six
months period covered by this report:

1. Standard Disclosures

Public Ownership Report

Foreign Ownership Report

List of Top 100 Stockholders

Notice of Annunal Stockholders” Meeting

Attendance of GERI Directors and Officers on ACGR Seminar

28 fune 2018 Organizational Board Meeling — election of Corporate
Officers

28 June 2018 Annual Stockholders” Meeting & Election of Board of
Directors '

Certification of Independent Director

Compliance Report on Corporate Governance

2. Press Releases

8 March 2018 Press Release - “Alabang West starts turnover of lots as
property value soars by 50%”

2 April 2018 Press Release — “Megaworld’s (GER] Net Income Up 45%
to P1.6B in 2017”

15 May 2018 Press Release — “Megaworld’s GERI Q1 earnings up
27% as rental revenues tripled”

11 June 2018 Press Release — “Megaworld’s GERI to build ‘The Fifth’®
residential condo in Ortigas”

28 June 2018 Press Release — “GERI to Open P1.5B Twin Lakes Hotel
in Tagaytay this year”

9 July 2018 Press Release — “GERI Launches 2nd Residential Property
at Southwoods City”

7 August 2018 Presss Release — “GERI’s 1TH Net Income Up 18% to
P749M”

8 November 2018 Press Release — “Megaworld’s GERT 9-mos profit
grew 6% to P1.3B~
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the
Corporation Code, this report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned,

thereunto duly authorized in Taguig City on , 2019,
By: -
Atty. Monica T. Salomon Lailani V. Villaniueva
President Chief Finance Officer
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS. INC.

16™ Fioor, Afliance Glohal Tower, 36" St. cor. 117 Avc., Uptown Bonilicio Taguig City 1634 Philippines
Telephone No. 328-4374

CERTIFICATE ON THE COMPILATION SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I hereby certify that I am the Certified Public Accountant who performed the compilation
services related to the preparation and presentation of financial information of an entity in
accordance with an applicable financial reporting framework and reports as required by
accounting and auditing standards for Global-Estate Resarts, Inc. and subsidiaries for the
period ended December 31, 2018,

In discharging thls responsibility, I hereby declare that, [ am the Manager, of Global-Estate
Resorts, Inc,

Furthermore, in my compilation services for preparation of the Finandial Statements and
notes to the Financial Statements, I was not assisted by or did not avail of the servicas of
Punongbayan and Araullo who/which is the external auditor who rendered the audit
opinion for the said Financial Statements and notes to the Financial Statements.

I hereby declare, under penalties of perjury and violation of the Revised Accountancy Law,
that my statements are true and correct.

ﬁ?ﬁ ﬂ/ﬂ 4

Christian RJ'Sta. Rita

Professional Identification Card Number: 0126297
Valid Until December 12, 2019

Accreditation Number: 5358

0 VOAPR g 897 056
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ___ day of ‘"2 o TAGUIG CITY

affiant exhibiting to me his Unified Multi-Purpose ID CRN 0111-0516957-3 issued on
in valid until .
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS. INC.

16" Flocr, Alliance Global Tower, 36® St. cor. 118 Ave., Uptown Bonifacio Taguig City 1634 Philippines
Telephone No. 328-4374

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Global-Estate Resorts Inc and Subsidiaties is tesponsible for the
preparaton and fair presentation of the financial statements, including the schedules attached
therein, for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as
management detetmines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the group’s ahility
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management eithet intends to liquidate the
group or to cease operations, ot has no realistic alternative to do so.

The Board of Ditectors is responsible for overseeing the group’s financial reporting process,

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has audited
the financial statements of the group in accotdance with Philippine Standards on Audiling, and
in their report to the stockholders, have cxpressed their opinion on the fairness of presentation
upon completion of such audit.

Andi\L. Tan

Chairman of the Board (‘,

i

Monica T. Salomon
President

“pibdss

Chief Finance Officer

Signed this gih day of April , 2019
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Punonghayan & Arqullo
20th Floor, Tower 1

The Enterprise Center
6766 Ayulag dvenue

1200 Maokatt City
Philizpines

Report of Independent Auditors

T+563 2988 2088

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
GIobaI-Estate Resorts, inc. and Subsidiaries
(A Subsidiary of Megaworid Corporation)
16" Floor, Alliance Global Tower

36 Street cor. 111 Avenue

Uptown Bonifacio, Taguig City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financia) statements of Globai-Estate Resorts, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, and consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes In equity and consolidated statements of cash flows far each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, and notes to the consclidated financial
staterments, including a summary of significant accounting palicies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financiai statements present fairly, in all materiai
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
and their consolidated financial performance and their consolidated cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2018 in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
respansibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines
(Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audits of the
consolidated financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fuifiled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements ang thf—@ . le? ; ; BUE ]
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appr, pf‘?éfg ﬁ;éﬁ {‘gqrp ;ﬁg @Rgss'g \GWIE

opinion. LARLE -AxF “E IS ASSISTANCE DIVISION
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Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most sighificance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. This matter was addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinien thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Adoption of PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, on Real Estatas Sales
Description of the Matter

The Group adopted PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, using the fuil
retrospective approach to ali open contracts as of January 1, 2016. The adoption of PFRS 15 is
significant to aur audit as the new standard materially affects the Group’s recognition of revenue
from real estate sales which is one of the core sources of income of the Graup.

In addition, the adoption requires appiication of significant judgments and estimates which affect
the amounts of transactions and balances reported in the consclidated financial statements both
in the current period and in the comparative prior periods presented. Areas affected by the
adoption which require significant judgments and estimates inciude determining when a contract
will qualify for revenue recognition and measuring the pregress of the development of real estate
projects which defines the amount of revenue to be recognized. These areas were significant to
our audit as an error in appiication of judgments and estimates could cause 3 material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s policy for revenue recognition is rmore fully described in Note 2 to the consolidated
financiat statements. :

How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit

We obtained an understanding of the new revenue recognition poficy of the Group and checked
its compliance with the provisions of PFRS 15 and related issuances by the Philippine
Interpretations Committee and the Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC). We have aiso
tested the reasonableness of judgments and estimates made in relation to the adoption of the
new standard.

Our procedures in testing the appropriateness of pricr period adjustments inciude testing the
mathematicai accuracy and completeness of supporting contract summary, review of
reascnableness of prior period adjustments, and performing overall analytical review of actual
results,

tn relation to identification of contracts, we have tested sample agreements for compliance with
a set of criteria for revenue recognition. Qur procedures inciude testing of controls over contract
approval and direct examination of agresments. We have alsg tesied the reascnableness of
management's judgment in determining the probability of collection of the consideration in a

contract which involves a historical analysis of customer paym ) -and-behavi
e _O:%HEFF MAL REVENUE ]
Ml ! . ol T LY Tl
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Relative to the measurement of progress towards compiete satisfaction of perfarmance obligation
using the input method, we have tested the progress reported for the year in reference to the
actuai costs incurred relative to the total budgeted project development costs. Our procedures
include test of controls over recording of costs and direct examination of supporting documents.
We have also performed physical inspection of selected projects under development to
determine if the compietion based on costs is not inconsistent with the physical com pletion of the
project. In testing the reasonableness of budgetary estimates, we have ascertained the
qualification of project engineers who prepared the budgets and reviewed the actual performance
of completed projects with reference of their budgeted costs.

Other information

Management is responsibie for the other information. The other information comprises the
information inciuded in the Group's Securities and SEC Form 20-S (Definitive Information
Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2018, butdoes
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The SEC
Form 20-I8, SEC Form 17-A and Annuai Report for the year ended December 31, 2018 are
expected o be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial staterments does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the ather information identified above when it becomes availabie and, in daing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is respensible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financia)
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as managernent determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial staternents that are free from
material misstatemesnt, whether due to fraud or errar,

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management Is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concerr, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic aiterrative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsibie for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

rRUREAU OF NTERYA DEVENUE
CMRCE A TATE U spAviee
LARGE A v 2 e B uapiave o
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurancs about whether the consclidated financial
statements as a whale are free from materia misstatement, whether due to fraud ar efror, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high tevel of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonabiy be expected to
influence the ecenomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consclidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consciidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsgive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control,

+ FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materiai uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conciude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in cur auditors’ repert to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadsquate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» PEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consctidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financiai statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 3 Nng-ether_ma
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit find ngs. InGlug ’%; a'ﬁyy'_‘ ificand, oo
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit, | LARC Taxsoeg U0 ENS BERYe
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought tc bear on our independence
and, where applicable, related safeguards, '

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report uniess law or regulation precludes pubiic disciosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so wouid reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement pariner on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
Renan A, Piamonte.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

(&

By: Renan 4. Piamonte
Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0107805
TIN 221-843-037
PTR No. 7333700, January 3, 2019, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 1363-AR-1 (until Mar. 1, 2020)
Flrm - No. 0002-FR-5 (until Mar. 26, 2021)
BIR AN 08-002511-37-2016 (until Oct. 3, 2019}
Firm's BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Jul. 24, 2021)

April 8, 2019
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSID oo B
{A Subsidiary of Megaworld Comporation)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL FOS @D APR ' ’ 2
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DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(With Corresponding Figurcs as of January 1, 2017) o
{Amouns in Philippine Pesos} P thiivtu BUBIEL | [ REVIEW OF | J
\ . FORM ANDAON ENTY i/
4
Drecember 31, January 1,
2017 2017
December 31, (As Restated — {As Restated -
Notes 2018 See Note 2) See Note 2)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 P 1,771,302,12% P 3,158,177,984 P 3,109,892 350
Trade and other receivebles - ner 6 4,317,791,166 2,015,706,405 1,917,200,8548
Contract asgets 18 2,394,582,192 774,308,379 845,955,887
Advances to real estate PIOPCILY owhcTs 9 185,671,144 179,603,536 163,616,888
Advances to related parties 24 765,235,995 1,020,348,025 1,007,420,295
Inventones 7 17,933,958,120 18,388,210,932 17,624,007, 644
Prepayments and other varrent assets - net § 2,711,194,621 3,320,337.961 3,106,991,701
Tota! Current Assets 30,079,735,2568 28,856,693,422 27,786,085,821
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables - net § 1,011,835,265 1,380,997,282 382,929,459
Contract assets 18 1,135,598,493 1,586,225,489 805,944,802
fdvances to real estate property owners 9 1,054,255,698 1.013,808,080 800,413,924
Investments in agsociates - net 10 841,219,811 846,312,138 1,030,731,569
Investment property - net 1 10,537,722,720 9,493,077,514 8,038,893,403
Property and equipment - net 12 835,946 902 862,032,986 920,325,994
Other non-current assets - net 13 533,712,009 348,363,208 766,681,720
Total Non-current Assets 15,950,205,898 15,731,716,997 12,835,920,871
TOTAL ASSETS P 46,030,031,1656 b 44,588,410,410 B 40,622,006,602

BUREAU OF iNTERNAJ PEVENUE
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Advances from related parties
Redeerneble preferred shares
Custamers” deposits

Total Curcent Lizbilites

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loang
Contract linbilities
Due to joint ventre partners
Redeemnable preferred shares
Cuszomers’ deposits
Retirement kenefit obligation
Deferred tax habilities - net
QOther non-carrent habilities

Total Non-current Liabilities
Total Liabilkties

EQUITY
Equity anributeble to shareholders of
the Corrpany:
Capiral stock
Additiongl paid-in capital
Revaluation reserves
Retained earmings

Nen-controllmg interest
Total Equiy

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

-2-

December 31, January 1,
2017 2017
December 31, (As Restated — (As Restated -
Nuotes 2018 See Note 2 See Note 2)

14 P 1,574,456,462 P 1,086,538,462 P 721,153,845
15 3,599,%88,181 3,045,140,124 2,302,858,053
18 272,728,734 18,939,519 11,836,124
% 1,001,894,838 939,557,166 525,334,676

25 251,597,580 251,597,580 .
2 961,429,898 1,121,764,599 1,480,263,157
7,662,005,693 6,463,545,450 5,041,445,856
4 2,466,308,898 3,969,391,025 3,205,929 487
18 796,103,382 961,655,540 999,350,231
18 395,424,643 396,374,951 471,057,666
25 754,792,740 1,006,390,320 1,257,987,900
2 221,175,156 349,446,254 251,368,702
22 49,995 320 63,688,766 60,775,015
= 1,272,105,459 829,756,854 557,961,438
17 1,232,214,997 1,105,502,031 1,056,345,199
7,208,117 ,595 B,682,205,741 7,860,775,638
14,970,123,288 15,145,842, 191 12,902,221 494
2 10,386,000,000 16,986,000,000 10,986,000,000
: 4,147,139,274 4,747,739,274 4,747,739,274
2z 37,130,791 16,174,807 6,917,124
25 10,077,036,216 §,589,547,273 7,126,400 364
25,847,906,281 24,330,461,354 22,867 056,762
10 ' 5,312,001,597 5,103,106,874 4,852 728,436
31,159,907,878 29,447 568 228 27,719,785,198

P 46,030,031,166

P 44.588,410,419

P 40,622,006,692

See Notos 1o Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEM

REVENUES AND INCOME
Real setets salca
Rental income
Hotel operations
Serviee income
Grain on sale of investment in associate
Finance and other income

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cont af real carate sdles
Cost of rentals and serviges
Cost of hotel operations
Operating expenses
~Equiry sharc in et Insses of associates
Finance costs and other charges

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
TAX EXPENSE

NET PROFIT

(A Subsidiary of Megawarkd Camporation)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LIOSS)

Remeasurements of retirement benefit plan
"T'ax income (expense)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net profit atrtibutable to:
Company's shareholders
Non-controlling integest

Total cumprehengive income attributable to:

Comgpany's shareholders
Non-cantrolling interest

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Bagic

ENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018, 2017 AND 2016
{Amounis fn Phifippire Pesos)
2017 2016
{As Restated — {As Restated —
Netes 2018 see Note 2) see Note 3

18 P 4370555422 P 5256759,101 P 3924,661,780
11,13 426,536,057 161,253,835 104,881,942
8 223,058,354 349,155,484 353274211
2 134,709,245 134,082,713 108,814,82¢
16 - 113,069,227 22,459,513
19 365,750,049 144,664,766 205,555,122
7,521,509,127 _ 6158990215 4.779,647,304
2 3,015,683,870 2,584,998,130 1,503,875,810
2t 202,125,585 139,524,416 99,615,960
s} 158,162 392 218,820,207 225,931,874
n 1,292,381,362 1055,916,541 849,604,280
10 183,383 33,983 532,733
19 314,018,949 169.194,17¢ 92,729 701
4,985,555,551 3,968,486,956 3,172,290,358
2,535,953,576 2,190,503,260 1.607,357.036
23 811,666,522 675,965,604 469,611,335
1,724,287,054 1,514,537,596 _ LA37.74570

22 27,619,383 12,753,035 { 1,885,118)
2 ¢ 6,663,399)  ( 3,495352) 514,538

20,955,984 9,257,685 { 1,370,580
P 1,745,243,038 P 1523795279 F 1,136,575,121
P 1,495,316,796 P 1,453,107,596 E 1,025,566, 443
228,970,258 61,430,000 112,179,253
P 1,724,287,054 P 1514,537,596 P 1,137,745701
P 1,516,272,786 P 1,462365,279 P 1024195863
228,970,258 61,430,000 112,179,258
P 1,745,243,038 I' 1523795279 P 1,136,375,121

2

P 0.136 P 0.132 P 0.093
P 0.132 F 0.128 P 0.091

Dilated

Fee MNowws 10 Consalideted Financfal Statemangs,

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVIGE
LARGE TAXPAYERS ASSISTANGE DIVISICN
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Subsidiaty of Megaworkf Corporstion)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018, 2057 AND 2016

(Amounts in Phifippine Pesos)
2017 2016
{As Restated — (A5 Restated —
Notes 2018 see Note 2} see Note 2)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit hefore tar P 2,535,953,576 P 2,190,503,260 P 1,607,357,036
Adjustroents for:
Finance costs 19 205,395,234 98,101,836 83,914,220
Depreciation and amortization 20 195,819,007 129,832,310 110,533,127
Finance income 18 { 134,795,289 ) ¢ 47,104806)  ( 82349,M7)
Impairment losses 6,10,24 18,675,002 - -
Gain on bargain purchase 1 { 10,774,664 ) - : -
Sharc-bazed cmploye: compensation 25 3,307,158 10,039,313 18,527,020
Equity share in net losses of associzres 10 183,393 33,983 532,733
Gain on sale of iavestment in associate 10 - ¢ 113069297} ¢ 82,459,513
Opexating prefic before warking capital changes 2,813,759.417 © 2,268336,660 1,458,054,90¢
Deerease (increase) in trade and other recetvables ( 1872,83,011) 1,048,130,612 2,618,615,619
Increase in contract assers { 1,169,646,617) [ 314819506} 1,652.900,689)
Diccrease (incrense) in invedtories BOBM0398  ( 2844331553) (  3,508.692693)
Decrease (inceease) in prepaypments and other suerent assers 244,137,247 { T20,441268) 440,150,353
Increase i advances to real estate PrOpErty owmers { 58,745,9%6) ( 2140635193  ( 9.996,722)
Inerease (decrease) in trade and other payables 574,954,340 536,954,325 { 506,980,675 )
Increzse (decrease) in conteact fisbilisies 88,237,057 30,591,286 ) 1,011,186,355
Increage {dececase) in customers® deposits { 288,605,799) ¢ 260,421,006 ) 66,280,510
Incresse in retizement benefit obligation 10,512,214 5,006,786 10,783,655
Increase in other non-current lishifites 126,622,966 112047405 362,251,349
Cath generared from (used in) operations 1,066,499,216 { 410,192351) ¢ 391,548,438 )
Interest received 108,490,206 28,243,890 35,875,015
Interes: paid { 272,173,519) 147,854,045} | 122,160,346
Cash paid for income tazes { 125,823.877) 119,167,557) 23.7B4,020)
Net Cash From (Used in) Operating Activities 776,992,026 { 648,970,063 | 501,617,783 )
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions 1o:
Investment propecty 11 { 1,135,608,754) | 1,395218010) ¢ 1,630,585,335 )
Property and equipment i2 ( 66,616,825) ¢ 123,361,564) 42,478,969
Collections of advances to related Farties 24 395,915,633 116,037,437 140,053,015
Cash advances granted to related parties 24 4 153,787,028 ¢ 128,965,167)  ( 79,578,628
Increzse in other non-current assets 5,404,331 209,07 644 { 409,482,404 )
Proceeds from disposals of properry and equipment iz 14,256 1,202,820 10,572
Proceeds from sale of investment in associate 10 - 297,454,675 240,508,438
Net Cash Used in nvesting Activitics ¢ 956,679.267)  ( __ 1023,778256) (_ 1,812,155311)

Baiance branght forzard (P __179,687,261) (P _ 1672,748319) (P 2313771,100)




2017 2016
{As Restated - (As Restated -
Moges 2018 see Note 2) see Note 2)

Balares carried foraard (P___179687,261) (P 1672748319) (P 2,313,771,100)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of interest-bearing loans 4 { 1,045,157,127y  ( 871,155,846) ¢ 72,916,667)

Cash advances obtained from related parties 24 395,008,400 416,228361 20,520,439

Repayrents of advances from related parties “ { 346,280,172} | 129890007 | 23,048,972 )

Redemption of preference shares 25 ( 251,597,580 ) - -

Proccods from avaslment of interest-bearing loans 14 50,000,000 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000

Cash dividends paid { 20,075,535 ) - ’ -

Proceeds from issuance of shates of stock of 2 subsidiary 0 - _ 188,948 438 604,633,313

Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Acdvitics ( L21Z,111,014 3 1,721 033,953 2,529,190,113
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALEN'TS { 1,39L,798,275 ) 48,285,634 215,419,013
NET INCREASE IN CASH DUE TO

ACQUISITION OF A SUBS{DIARY - 4,922,420 - -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING (JF YEAR 3,158,177,984 3,109,892,350 2,894 473,337
CAEH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR P 1,732 129 P 3,158,177 984 P 3,109,852 350

Supplemental Information an Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities

In the nummal course of busingss, the Group entess into non-cash transactions such as exchanges or purchascs on account of rwal estate and other assets.
Moseover, reclassifications of investment propesty and propesty and equipment have been made. These non-cash activities are not reflected in the

congolidated statements of cash flows (see Notes 11 and 12).

Iz addition, the Group entered into a lease agreement with a third party involving development sights aver pareels of land. The Group recognized an
intangible asset and advance rental 2s 2 tesvit of the said transaction and are included as part of Other Nog-current Assels and CGther Non-current Lighities

accounts, respectively, in the consolidated statements of fnancial pesiton (s¢¢ Notes 13 and 17).

See Notes to Cangalidated Financisl St
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Subsidiary of Megaworld Cortporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Global-Estate Resonts, Inc. (the Company or GERI) was incotporated in the Philippines on
May 18, 1994, primarily to engage in the horizontal development of residential subdivision
lots, integrated residential, golf and other leisure-related properties, and vertical
development of mixed-use towers. The Company zlso engages in land acquisitions and
maintains an ﬁ]veutory of raw land for future development. As a stock corporation, the
Company’s corporate life is 50 years,

On July 26, 2017, the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the
change in the Company’s registered office and principal place of business from 7* Floor,
Renaissance Towers, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City to 16" Floor, Alliance Global Tower,
36™ Street cor. 112 Avenue, Uptown Bonifacio, Taguig City. The related approval from the
Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) was obtained on October 3, 2017.

The Compzny is a subsidiaty of Megaworld Corporation (Megaworld or the parent
company) with 2n ownership interest of 82,31%. Megaworld is 67.00% owned by Alliance
Global Group, Inc. (AGI), the Company’s ultimare parent company.

Megaworld was incorporated in the Philippines primarily to engage in the development of
large scale, mixed-use planned communities or townships that integrate residential,
commercial, leisure and entertainment components. Megawotld is presently engaged in
property-related activities such as product design, construction and property management.
Megaworld’s real estate portfolio includes residential condominium units, subdivision lots
and townhouses, as well as office projects and retail spaces. The tegistered office of
Megaworld, which is also its principal place of business, is located at the 30 Floor, Alkiance
Global Towet, 36" Street cor. 11® Avenue, Uptown Bonifacio, Taguig City.

AGI is a holding company with diversified investments in real estate, food and beverage,
manufacturing, quick setvice restautants and tourism-oriented businesses. AGI’s registercd
office, which is alsc its primary place of business, is located at the 7% Floot, 1880 Eastwood
Avenue, Fastwood City CyberPark, 188 E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue, Quezon City.

The shares of stock of the Company, Megaworld and AGI are listed af the PSE.

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVERTT
ARCARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE |
WARGE TAXPRYERS ASSISTANCE 017510
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The Company holds interests in
together with the Company, herein

L1 Composition of the Groap

Subsidiaries;
Fi-Estate Properties, Inc {FEPI)
Allan Holdings Inc. (AHI)
Blue Sky Airways, Inc, {(BSATy

@

@

Fil-Estate Subic Development Corp. (FESDC} (=)
Fil-Power Constroction Equiprment
Leasing Corp. {FPCELC) ()

Golden Sun Airways, Inc. {GSAT) {2)
La Compafia Dc St Barbar, Inc. (LCSBI) {a)
MCX Cerporation (MCX) {a}
Pioneer L5 Realty Corp. (PLRG) ()
Prime Airways, Inc. {PAT) f2)
Sto. Domingo Place Development Corp. (SDPDC) {a}
Fil-Pawss Concrete Blocks Corp. (FPCBC) &)
Fil-Estate Industrial Pack, Inc. (FEIPT) @
Sherwood Hills Development Inc. {SLIDT) {a)

Fil-Estate Golf and Develgpment, Inc, (FEGDT)
Golforee, Inc. (Golforce) {b)
Southweods Ecocenttum Camp. {SWEC) &)

Philippine Aquatic Leisure Cazp. (PALC} {c)

Fil-Estate Usban Development Corp. (FEUDC)

Novo Sierra Holdings Corp, INSHC)

Elite Comrunities Properry Services, Ine. {ECPST &

Megaworld Global Ftate, Inc. (MGET (e)

Torin Lakes Cozp. (TLC)
Twin Lakes Hotel, Inc. {TLHI) @

Greanfront Properties, Inc. {OP])

Glebal Hornes and Communities, Inc, {GHCT)

Southwoods Mall, Inc. (SM)

Asgociales:

Boracay Neweosst Hotel Group, Inc. (BNHGT) (=)

Fil-Bstate Network, Inc. (FENT)

Fil-Estate Sales, Inc. (FEST)

Fil-Esrate Realty and Sales Associates Ing, (FERSAT)

Fil-Estate Realty Corp. (FERC)

Nasugtn Properties, Ine. {NPI) -4

Non-controlling interests (NCT) in 2018 and 2017 represent the interssts not held by the Group in FEIPT,
TLC, TLHI, OPI and SMI. In 217 and 2016, additional NI were tecugnized ansing frorm Megrworld®

sharer {sce Note 10.2),

All subsidiaries and associares were incorporated in the
to the sain business of the Company,

100%
150%;
0%
We%
e
100%
0035
100%4
7%
55%
100%%
100%
60%
60%
160%
100%
bit )
0%
1%
5%
50%
190%
1%

15%
20%
2%
20%
20%
14%

the following subsidiaries and associates
after referred to as the Group):

10004 100%
100% 100%
100%, 10004
100% 100%
10084 1C0%
100%, 100%
100%, 100%:
lqﬁ% 100%
160% 100%
100% 100%
100%a 100%
100%, 100%
79% T9%
55% 55%
100% 100%
100% 100%
60% 0%
60% 60%
100%: 100%%
100% 100%
60% 60%
51% 51%
509% 50%
100% 100%
51% 5%
1584 30%
20% 20
20% 2%
20% 0%
20% 200
14% 14%
. SHDL, SWEC, PALC, MGHL

(collectively,

s subscoiption to SMT's urdssucd

Philippines, operate within the country and are engaged in businesses related



Explanatory notes:
(@) Subsidiarics of FEPE percentage ownership represents effective ownesship of GERI.
(¥} Subsidiaries of FEGDT; percentage ownership represents effective ownership of GERIL
{€)  Subsidiary of SWEC,
{d} Subsidiary acquired in 2018. ECPSI js engaged primarly to manage and sdrminister real sstate properties,
(e} Subeidiary acquired in pricr years primarily to merket the Group’s projects.
{£ A subudiary of TLC. The Company is incarparated in 2018 to operate Twis Lakes Hotel, one of the real estate projects of
TLC,

&  Associates because GERI hag a representation in the boards of directors

1.2 Business Combinations

On Januaty 2, 2018, the Company acquited 100% of the issued shares of ECPSI o manage
and administer the Group’s zeal estate propetties as disclosed in Note 1.1. Aggtregate
inforration at acquisition date is as follows:

Fair value of assets acquired:

Cash P 5109920
Trade and other receivables 43,694,405
Prepayments and othet current assets 582,725
Property and equipment — net 2,024,638
51,411,688

Fair value of Habilities 2ssumed { 40,449,524)
Fait value of net assets 10,962,164

Fair value of consideration transferred { 187,500)

Gain on batgain purchase P 10,774,664

The fair value of trade and other receivables approximate their carrying amounts since these
are short term in nature, None of the teceivables have been impaired and it’s expected that
the full outstanding balance can be collected. The gain on bargain purchase is presented
under Finance and Othet Income in thé 2018 consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (see Note 19.1).

BCPST’s revenues and net loss since the acquisition: date included in the 2018 consolidated
statement of comprehensive income amounted to P11.1 million and P10.2 millicn,
respectively..

1.3 Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2018 (including the comparative consolidated financial statements for
Decembet 31, 2017 and the corresponding consolidated Bgures as of January 1, 2017) were
authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors (BOD} on Aprl 8, 2019.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these

. consolidated financial statements are summarized below and in the succeeding pages. The

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

(@

&)

(©

Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards {PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the Financial
Repotting Standards Council (FRSC) from the proncuncements issued by the
International Accounting Standards Boatd, and approved by the Philippine Board of
Accountancy.

The consolidated financial statements have been ptepared using the measurement bases
specified by PERS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The measurement
bases atre more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. 'The Group presents all
items of income and expenses in a single consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

The Group presents a third consolidated statement of financial position at the beginning
of the preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a
retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a material effect on the
information in the consolidated statement of financial position at the beginning of the
preceding period. The related notes to third consolidated statement of financial position
ate not required to be disclosed.

The Group presented a third consolidated statement of financial position representing
the comesponding figures as of January 1, 2017 due to certain restatements and
reclassifications made in the 2017 and 2016 consolidated financial statements as a result
of the Group’s adoption of the new standard and interpretations [see Note 2.1(c)].

Prior Period Restaterments and Reclassifications of Accounts

In 2018, the Group adopted PERS 9.{2014), Financial Instrumenis, which was applied
using the transitional relief aliowed by the standard. This allowed the Group not to
restate its prior periods’ financial statements. The adoption of PFRS 9 (2014) has
resulted in changes in the Group’s accounting policies on impairment of financial assets
patticularly on the application of the expected credit lass (ECL) methodology for trade
and other receivables and advances to related patties. As to classificaion and
measurement, there’s no significant impact to the Company’s financial assets, which are
all accounted for at amortized cost [see Note 2.2(a)(1if)].



Furthet, the Group adopted in 2018 PERS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and
the related Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC) Question & Answer (Q&A)
2016-04, Adoption of PFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, on Salk of Residential
FProperties under Pre-completion Contracts, and PIC Q&A 2018-12, PFRS 15 Implementation
Lisues Affecting the Real Estate Industry, which wete applied retrospectively to each prior
teporting petiod in accordance with PAS 8, Acwmmting Policies, Changes in Aciounting
Estimates and Errors. The details of the impact of the adoption of these new standard
and interpretations are fully disclosed [see Note 2.2{z){iv)].

The Group also adopted the following PIC Q&A retrospectively in accordance with
PAS &:

e PIC Q&A No. 2018-11, Classification of Land by Real Estate Developer, requires rcal
estate developers to classify land based on management’s intention and apply the
appropriate accounting treatment as required by relevant standards.

e PIC Q&A No. 2018-15, PAS 1— Classification of Advances tv Contraciors in the Nature of
Prepaymenis: Current vs. Non-current, clarifies how the advances to contractors should
be classified in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The effects of the adoption of PFRS 15 and various PIC Q&A, on the assets, liabilities

- and equity accounts are shown below and in the succeeding page.

As of Decomber 31, 2017

Effects of Adoption
PFRS 15 and PIC Q&A
As Previously PIC Q&A 2018-11 and
—Reported 201812 2018-15 __AsRestated
Charnges in Current Assess
Trade and other
receivables — net T 7510485609 (P 5494,779204) P - P 2,015,706405
Contract assets - 774,308,579 . 774,308,579
Inventories 13,672,725,773 2,388,225 340 2327259819 18,388,210,932

Property development costs 2,307,230,667 (  2,307,230,667) - -
Prepayments and other

cutrent asgets — net 3,388,2R2,094 102,017,167 { 169.961,300) 3,320,337.961
Changes in Non-curreni Assets
Trade and other
receivables - pet 1L,674659,009 ( 293,661,727, - 1,380,997,282
Contract assets - 1,586,225,489 . 1,586,225,489
Land for future
development 7,159,861,264 - { 7,159,861,264) -
Investment property 4.660,476,369 - 4.832,601,445 9,493,077,814
Other non-current
assets — net 378,401,908 - 169,961,300 548,363,208
Changes in Curvent Liabikities
Trade and other payables {  3,124,666,725) 142,318,174 ( 62,800,573) (  3,043,149,124)
Contract liabilitics - { 18,939,519) - { 18,939,519}
Reserve for property :
development ¢ 710,777.423) 710,777,423 - -
Deferred income on
real estate sales ( 1,053,474,471) 1,053,474 471 - -

Ealanee bronght formard (P__1.357.264.474) (P 62 B0(,573)
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Balance carried forward (®_1,357,264474) (P____62.800.573)
Changes in Non-current
Linbiligies
Contract lizbilities . P - ( 061,555,540) - P 961,655,540)
Reserve for property
development ( 1432301414) 1432101414 . .
Deferred income on
real estate sales {  1,097,366,783) 1,0Y7,366,783 - -
Deferred tux .
Tiabilities — net (  783281911) { 46,474,943) - ( 829,756,854)
Othet non-current
Ligbilities {___1,168,392,604) - 62800573 ( 1,105,592,031)
Net increase in equity b 164,073,240 P -
Changes in Equity
Retained carnings P 8413466150 P 176,081,123 F ; P 8580,547273%

Mon-controlling interest 5,115,114,757 12,007,883) - 5,103,106,874
P 164073240 P -
* Excoluding imhact resniting from adption of FFRS 2
Ag of janpary 1, 2017
PFRE 15 and PIC QaA
As previously PIC Q&A 2018-11 and
Reported 2018-12 2018-15 __AsRestated
Changes in Current Asseis
Trade and other
recefvablas — net P 4758709,542 (P 2841508686) P - P 1917200856
Contract assets - 846,955,887 - 846,955,887
Inventories 13,213,636,647 2.056,356,923 2,364,014,274 17,634,007 844
Property development costs 2,080,873,698 {  2,080,873,698) - -
Prepayments and other

current #ssels — net

Chanpes in Nuon-current Assels

Trade and other
receivables — net

Contract assets

Land for future
development

Investment property

QOther non-current
assets — net

Changes in Cwrrent Liabilisies
Trade and other payables  (
Contract liabilities
Reserve for property

development {
Deferred income on
real cstate sales {

Changes in Nop-current
Liabikizies
Contract lisbilities
Eeserve for property
development ({
Deferted income on
reul estate sales {
Dieferred tax
liabilides — net {

Net increase in equity
Changes #n Egnity

Retained earnings i
Noo-controlling intezest

3,399,229 256

97,728,110 { 389,965,665 3,106,991,701

3030882238 (  2,647,952,779) . 382,929,459
- 805,944,802 - 805,944,802
7,320,600,459 - ( 7,320,600,459) -
3,082,307,218 - 4,956,586,185 8,038 893,403
376,716,055 . 389,965,665 766,681,720
2,467,488,530) 164,630,477 . (2,302,858 053)
- ( 11,836,124) - ( 11,836,124)
1,214913,452)  1,214,913,452 . -
1927,562,389)  1,927,562,889 . -
. {  999330231) . { 999350231)
1,147,853,194)  1,147,853,194 - .
553,027 814) | 553,027,814 . .
543,266,217 ( 14,695,221) - (557,961,438

6896235136 P 230,161,228 P .

4,864,132,855 {

u 21R, 756,800 F -

P 7,126,400,264

11,404,419) - 4,852,728,436

P_218756800 P -
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The effects of prior period adjustments on certain line items in the consolidated statements
— of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are
semmarized below.

Resl estate sales
Realized gross profit in pdor years®

Net profit attnbutable to:
Company’s shareholders

2017

As Previously
Reported

Hifects of
Adoption of
PFRS 15 and

PIC Q&A
. 201812

P 4,539,943 525

B 1,507,187701

P 716,815,666

P 54,080,105)

_ AsRestated

P 5,256,759,191

real estate sales 819,143,063 {  819,143,063) ;
. Finance and other income 335585485 |  190,920719) 144,664,766
Cost of real estate sales { 2,233,205497) ( 151,792,633) ( 2,384,998.130)
Deferred gross profit on real estate sales { 480,164,208) 480,164,208 -
— Operating expenses { 1,064,984,618) 0,068,577 (  1,035,916041)
Finance costs and ather charges { 102,098.295) | 67.095,884) ( 169,194,179
. Tax expense - { 644,185,943 3L.778721) ( 675,965,664
. Net effect in profit (P___ 54,683 569}

P 1A53,107.596

Non-controlling interest 62,033,464 | 603 464 61,430,000
B__ 34683560
_ Earnings per share:
Basic i 0.137 P 0.005) P 0.132
— Diluted G133 | 0.005) {.128
- 2016
Effects of
_ Adoption of
PERS 15 and
As Previcusly PIC Q&A
- Reported 2018-12 As Restared
— Real estate sales P 4374,131,604 (P 449,360014) P 3924,661,780
Realized gross profit in prior yeats”
real estate sales 385,637,871 ( 385,637,871 -
o Finance and other income 339,762,121 { 134,206,999, 205,555,122
Cost of real estate sales { 2118,104,275) 214228465 (  1,903,875,810)
- Deferred pross profit on real estate sales { 823,220,794) 823,220,794 -
Operating expenses (  B59.457,976) 0,853,606 (  849,604,280)
— Finance costs and other charges { B3,974,995) ( 6,754,706) ( 92,729,701)
Tax expense { 453,760,645) ( 15,850,690) { 469,611,335)
_ Net cffect in profit B___ 55382775
— Net profit attdbutable to:
Company’s shareholders P 965,519,650 P 60,046,784 P 1025566443

_ MNon-controlling mterest 116,843,267 (4664009} 112,179,258
B 55382775
Larnings per share:
— Basic P 0.088 P .00 P 0.093
Diksted 0.086 0.005 0.001
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The effects of prior period adjustments on certain line items under cash flows from
opetating and investing activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are shown below.

2017
Effects of Adopfion
PFRS 15 and PIC Q&A
As Previously PIC Q&A 2018-11 and
Reported 201812 2018-15 As Restated
Cask flows from opsrating
activitier
Profit before tax P 2213407108 (P 22903848, P - P 2,190,503,260
Adjustment for
finance income { 202,648,200) 155,543,394 - { 47,104,808)
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other
receivables { 1.221,148,528) 2,269.279.140 - 1,048.130,612
Contract assets - { 314,819,506) - { 314,819,506)
Inventodes { 204,713203) ( 2,418,228,526) ( 131,749,734) (2,844,331 ,553)
Property development
COSts { 78,371,027) 78371027 - -
Prepayments and other
cuteent assets ( 398419737) (  102017,166) (  220004,365) (  720,441,268)
Increase (deccease) in:
Trade and ather payables 701,584,802 ( 164,630,477 - 536,954,325
Contract liabilities - { 30,591,296) - { 30,591,296)
Reserve for property
development (219,887,809 219,887,800 - .
Deferred income on
on real estate sales [ 329,749,449) 329,749,449 - -
- { 351,754,099
Cask flows from investing
acivitter
Additions to:
Investment property  ( 1,370,328,923) - { 24889,187) {  1,395,218,110)
Land hcld for futurc
development (156,638,921 - 156,638,921 ]
Decrease (increase) in
other von-current assets 10,932,721} - 220,004 365 209,071,644

- 351,754 099




2016
Effect: of Adoption
PFRS 15 and PIC Q&A
As Previcusly PIC Q&cA 2018-11 and
Reported 2018-12 2018-15 As Restated
Cash flows fivm operating
acliviics
Profit before tax P 1,536,123571 P 71,233,465 P - P 1,607,357,036
Adjustment for .
finance income 200,087,263) 117,737,646 . ( 82,349,717)
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other
receivables ( 14504427751)  4,069,058,370 . 2,618,615,619
Contract assets - { 1,652,900,689) ; ( 1,652,900,689)
Inventores ( 1,096,289,646) {  2412,403,047) . (  3.508,692,693)
Property development
costs { 4,148,555) 4,148,555 - -
Prepayments and other
Cusrent assets (732,387,908 { 97,728,110} 380,065,665 (  440,150,353)
Increase {decrease) in: :
Trade and other payables{ 364,662,501 (  142,318,174) - {  506980,675)
Contract liabilities ) 1,011,186,355 . 1,011,186,355
Reserve for property
development 538,893,413 (  538,893,413) ; .
Deferred income on
on real estate sales 420120958 429.120.958) - -
—m e 389,965,665
Cash flaws fron: investing
aolpveties
Additons to:
Investment property  (  1,598,754,365) - ! 31,830,970} {  1,630,585335)
Land held for future .
development { 31,830,970) ; 31,830,970 -
Decrease (increase) in
other non-current assets { 19,516,739} - { 389,965,665) | 409 482 404)
= (—3R9,565.665)
P - P -

(4) Functiona! and Presentation Currengy

These consolidated financial statetnents ate presented in Philippine pesos, the Group’s
presentation and functional currency, and all values represent absolute amounts except
when otherwise indicated.

Items inciuded in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using
its functional currency, the curtency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates.

2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

(@) Effective in 2018 that are Relevant to the Group

The Group adopted for the first time the following new standards, amendments,
interpretation and annual improvement to PFRS, which are mandatodly effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018:
PAS 40 (Amendment) Investrment Property — Transfers of
Investment Property
Shate-based Payment — Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

PFRS 2 (Amendments)
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PFRS O :  Financial Instruments
PFRS 15 :  Revenue from Contracts with Customers
International Financial
Reporting Interpretations
Commirtee (IFRIC) 22 :  Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration
Annual Improvement to ’
PFRS (2014-2016 Cycle)

PAS 28 (Amendments):  Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures —
Measuring an Associate or Joint
Venture at Fair Value

Discussed below and in the succeeding pages ate the relevant mnformation about these
standards, amendments, interpretation and improvement.

@

(i)

(@D

PAS 40 (Amendment), Investment Propersyy — Transfers of Investment Propersy. The
amendment states that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment
property when, and only when, thete is evidence of a change in use. A change of
use occuts if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property. A change in management’s intentions for the use of a property by itself
does not constitute evidence of a change in use. The amendment provided a
non-exhaustive list of examples constituting change in use. The application of this
amendment has no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 2 (Amendments), Share-based Payment — Classification and Measnrement of
Skhare-based Payment Transactions (effective from January 1, 2018). The amendments
contain three changes covering the following matters: the accounting for the effects
of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment;
the classification of share-based payment transactions with a net settlement feature
for withholding tax obhgationé; and, the accounting for 2 modification to the terms
and conditions of a share based payment that changes the classification of the
transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled. The apphcation of these
amendments did not have an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
staterents.

PERS 9, Financial Instruments (issued in 2014). This new standard on financial
instruments replaced PAS 39, Finandal Insiraments: Recognition and Measuremens, and
PERS 9 issued in 2009, 2010 and 2013. This standatrd contains, among others, the
following: :

e three principal classification categories for financial assets based on the business
model on how an entity is managing its financial instruments, i.e., financial assets
at amottized costs, fair value through profit and loss (FVIPL), and fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

e an expected credit loss (HCL) model in determining impairment of all debt
financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), which generally depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit sk since initial recognition of such financial assets; and,

¢ 2 new model on hedge accounting that provides significant improvements
ptincipally by aligning hedge accounting more closely with the risk
management activities undertaken by entities when hedging their financial and
non-financial risk exposures.
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The Group’s new accounting policies telative to the adoption of PFRS 9 are fully
disclosed in Note 2.4 while the related disclosures on credit sk ate presented in
Note 28.2, '

‘The impact of the adoption of this new accounting standard to the Group’s financial
statements are as follows:

» Consistent with the measurement under PAS 39, all financial assets pteviously
classified as loans and receivables, which are held by the Group to collect
contractual cash flows and that give rise to cash flows representing solely
payments of principal and interest, continue to be at amortized cost.

e The Group used ECL methodology for all debt financial assets not held at
- FVTPL. HCL is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company
expects to teceive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the
asset’s original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms, Thete is no transtion adjustment in relation
to the impaitment allowance on trade and other receivables and contract assets
as of January 1, 2018. Howeves, the adoption resulted in a transition adjustment
in relation to the impairment aliowance on certain advances to related parties
amounting to P11,135,011 as of January 1, 2018. Such amount was charged
against the opening balance of Retained Earnings account (see Note 28.2).

The Group neither has financial assets classified at FVTPL nor at FVOCIL. The
adoption of PFRS 9 has no impact on the classification and measurement of
financial liabilidfes on the Gtoup’s consolidated financial staternents. As of
December 31, 2018, the Group’s financial liabilities are classified and measured at
amortized cost. .

PERS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, together with the Clarifications fo
PERS 15 (hetein referred to as PFRS 15}, This standard will replace PAS 18, Revense,
and PAS 11, Construction Contracts, the telated Interpretations on revenue recognition:
IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, ITERIC 15, Agreement for the Construction of Real

- Estare, IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers, and Standing Interpretations

Committee 31, Revenne — Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. This new
standard establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when to
recognize tevenue and how much revenue to recognize. The core principle in the
said standatd is for an entity to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods ot services to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods of services.

Relative to the adoption of PFRS 15 in the Philippines, the FRSC also approved the
issuance of the following:

o PIC Q&A 2016-04, Application of PFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,”
on Sale of Residential Properiies undsr Pre-completion Contrasts. This Q&A clarifies that
sales of residential properties under pre-completion stage is recognized over
time on the basis that the entity’s performance does not create an agset with an
alternative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.
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» PICQ&A 2018-12, PFRS 15 - Implementation Lisues Affecting the Real Esiate Indusiry.
This Q&A provides guidance on the application of PFRS 15 to real estate
- industry,

o PIC Q&A 2018-14, PFRS 15 - Aceounting for Cancellation of Real Estate Sakes. 'This
Q&A provides guidance on the approprate accounting treatment for
cancellation of real estate sales.

Relative to the adopton of PFRS 15 and relevant PIC Q&As, the SEC issued the
following Memorandum Circulars (MC) to provide telief to the real estate industry
in the application of certain provisions of the new standard:

e MC No. 14 sedes of 2018. This circular allows the deferral of the following
provisions in PIC Q&A 2018-12 for a period of thtee yeats:

{a) accounting for the significant financing component in a contract to sell;
{6} treatment of land in the determination of percentage of completion; and,

(¢} treatment of uninstalled materials in the determination of percentage of
completion.

* MC No. 3 seties of 2019. This circular allows the deferral of the application of
PIC Q&A 2018-12-H, Awounting for Common Usage Area Charges, and
PIC Q&A 2018-14 for 2 period of three yeats.

The Group elected to defer the adoption of the accounting for the significant
financing component in a contract to sell under PIC Q&A 2018-12 in accordance

with MC No. 14 series of 2018 and the measurement of repossessed inventory at
fair value under PIC Q&A 2018-14 in accordance with MC No. 3 seties of 2019,

Had the Group elecied not to defer the above specific provisions, it would have the
following impact in the consolidated financial statements:

¢ The transaction price would have been lowet for seller-financed contracts and
higher for buyer-financed conttacts; and,

e The carrying amount of all repossessed inventory would have been higher and
gain from tepossession would have been recognized on most sales cancellation.

The Group’s adoption of PFRS 15 has resulted in changes in its accounting policies
(see Notes 2.5 and 2.15) and adjustments to the amounts previously recognized and
presented in the consolidated financial statements. The Group has applied PFRS 15
retrospectively to all outstanding contracts as of January 1, 2016 in accordance with
the standard’s transitional provisions. It has made the following adjustments to its
ptior period consclidated financial statements:

® reclassified portion of Installment contract receivables relating to rights to
payment which are conditioned upon the completion of units sold to Contract
Assets account; :

* restated the balances of Property Development Costs, Real Estate, Golf and
Resorts Shares for Sale, Real Estate Sales and Cost of Sales to teflect policy
changes on the determination of petcentage of completion;
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¢ presented Property Development Costs, and Real Estate, Golf and Resort
Shares for Sale as a single line item in the consclidated statement of financial
posttion under the account tite Inventones;

® restated interest income from real estate sales relating to Installment contract
teceivables recognized upon completion of the performance obligation;

¢ capitalized commissions directly related to contract acquisitions, previously
charged under Operating Expenses in the statement of comprehensive income,
as part of Deferred commissions under Prepayments and Other Current Assets
account in the consolidated statement of financial position and presented the
amortization of capitalized commissions under Operating Expenses i in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

¢ presented 2 Contract Liability account for the amount of consideration received
from customers in excess of the amount the Group is entitled to based on the
progtess of the development; and,

¢ restated Deferred tax expense and Deferred Tax Liabilities to account for the
temporary differences on the adjustments made.

In making its disclosures, the Group used a practical expedient not to present the
amount of transaction ptice allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as of
December 31, 2017, This is not expected to have a significant impact to the financial
statements. The Group did not use any other practical expedients in applying
PFRS 15.

The effect of the restatement on the affected assets, liabilities, and equity
components is presented in Note 2.1(c).

IVRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration. 'The interpretation
provides mote detailed guidance on how to account for transactions that include
the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a foreign cutrency. The
interpretation states that the date of the transaction, for the putpose of determining
the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary asset {arising
from advance payment) or hability (arising from advance receipt). If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for
each payment or receipt. The application of this interpretation has no impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle. Among the imptovements, the
following amendments are relevant to the Group but had no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as these amendments merely clarify

_ existing requitements:

o PAS 28 (Amendments), Investment in_Associates and Joint Ventares — Measuring an
Assoctate or Joint Venture at Dair Vaine. The amendments clarify that the option
for ventute capital otganization, mutual funds and other similar entities to elect
the fair value through profit or loss classification in measuring investments in
associates and joint ventures shall be made at initial recognition, separately for
each associate or joint venture.
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(6) Effective in 2018 that are not Relevant to the Group

The following amendments to existing standatds are mandatorily effective for annual

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 but are not relevant to the Company’s
financial statements: '

PFRS 1 (Amendments) :  First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial
‘Reporting Standards — Deletion of
Short-term Exemptions
PERS 4 (Amendments) :  Insurance Contracts — Applying PFRS 9,
Financial Instruments with PFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts

Effective Subsequent to 2018 but not Adopted Early

There are new PFRS, interpretations, amendments and annual improvernents to existing
standards effective for annual perods subsequent to 2018, which are adopted by the
FRSC. Management will adopt the following relevant pronouncements in accordance
with their transitional provisions; and, unless otherwise stated, none of these are
expected to have significant itapact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

@ P AS19 (Amendments), Employee Benefits — Plan Amendment, Curtatlment or Settlement
(effective January 1, 2019). The amendments requite the use of updated actuarial
assumptions to determine current service cost and net inferest for the remainder
of the annual reporting period after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement when the entity remeasures its net defined benefit liability (asset).

() PAS 28 (Amendment), Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures — Long-term Interest in
Associates and Joini Venture (effective from January 1, 2019). The amendment clarifies
that the scope exclusion in PFRS 9 (2014) applies only to ownership interests
accounted for using the equity method. Thus, the amendment further clarifies that
long term interests in an associate or joint venture — to which the equity method is
not applied — must be accounted for under PFRS 9 (2014), which shall also inchude
long term interests that, in substance, form part of the entity’s net investment in an
associate ot jolnt venture.

i) PFRS 9 (Amendment), Finantial Insiraments — Prepayment Features with. Negarive
Compensation (effective from January 1, 2019). The amendment clarifies that
prepayment features with negative compensation attached to financial instruments
may still qualify under the solely payments of principal and interest test. As such,
the financial assets containing prepayment features with negative compensation may
still be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCI.

(iv) PFRS 16, Leases (effective from January 1, 2019). ‘The new standatd will eventually
replace PAS 17, Leases, and its related interpretation IFRIC 4, Defermsining Whether an
Arrangement Contains a Lease. For lessees, it requires to account for leases “on-balance
sheet” by recognizing a “right-of-use” asset and a lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured as the present value of future lease payments. For this purpose,
lease payments include fixed, non-cancellable payments for lease eletments, amounts
due under residual value guarantees, certain types of contingent payments and
amounts due during optional periods to the extent that extension is reasonably
certain. In subsequent pedods, the “right-of-use” asset 1s accounted for similar to 2
purchased asset subject to depreciation or amottization.
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 The lease liability is accounted for similar to a financial Liability which is amortized

using the effective interest method. However, the new standard provides important
reliefs or exemptions for shott-tetm leases and leases of low value assets. If these
exemphons ate used, the accounting is similar to operating lease accounting under
PAS 17 where lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basts
over the lease term or another systematic basis (if moze representative of the pattemn
of the lessee’s benefit).

For lessors, lease accounting is similar to PAS 17°s. In particular, the distinction
between finance and operating leases is retained. The definitions of each type of
lease, and the supporting indicators of a finance lease, are substantially the same as
PAS 17s. The basic accounting mechanics are also similar, but with some different
ot tnote explicit guidance in few areas. These include variable payments, sub-leases,
lease modifications, the treatment of initial direct costs and lessor disclosutes.

With regard to the Group’s certain leases (see Note 27.2), the management assessed
that they will recognize tght-of-use asset and lease lability over its lease term
ranging from one to five years and plans to adopt the modified retrospective
application of PFRS 16 whete the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard
will be recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of Retained Earnings
account at the date of initial application. The Group will elect to apply the standard
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying PAS 17 and IFRIC 4
at the date of initial application.

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective from January 1,2019). The
interpretation provides clarification on the determination of taxable profit, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates when there is uncertainty ovet
income tax treatments. The core principle of the interpretation requites the Group
to consider the probability of the tax treatment being accepted by the taxation
authority. When it is probable that the tax treatment will be accepted, the
determination of the taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, vnused tax credits,
and tax rates shall be on the basis of the accepted tax treatment. Othetwise, the
Group has to use the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on the
surrounding citcumstances, in determining the tax accounts identified immediately
above.

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consolidaied Financal Statements, and PAS 28
(Amendments), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of Assels
between an Investor and its Associates or Joint Venture (effective date deferred indefinitely).
The amendments to PFRS 10 require full recogniton in the investor’s financial
statements of gains or losses arising on the sale or contribution of assets that
constitute a business as defined in PERS 3, Business Combinations, between an investor
and its associate or joint venture, Accordingly, the partial recognition of gains oz
losses {i.¢., to the extent of the unrelated investot’s intetrests in an associate or joint
venture) only applies to those sale of contribution of assets that do not constitute a
business. Cortesponding amendments have been made to PAS 28 to reflect these
changes. In addition, PAS 28 has been amended to clarify that when determining
whether assets that are sold or contributed constitute a business, an entity shall
consider whether the sale or contribution of those assets is part of multple
arrangements that should be accounted for as a single transaction.
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(vi) Annual Improvements to PFRS 2015-2017 Cycle (effective from January 1, 2019).
Among the improvements, the following amendments are relevant to the Group
but had no matetial impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as
these amendments merely clarify existing requirements:

o PAS 12 (Amendments), Inome Taxes — Tax Conseguences of Dividends. The
amendments clatify that all income tax consequence of dividend payments
should be recognized in profit or loss.

o PAS 23 (Amendments), Borrowing Cosis — Elgibility for Capualizaon. The
amendments clarify that any specific borrowing which remains outstanding after
the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended purpose, such borrowing will
then form part of the endty’s general borrowings when calculatng the
capitalization rate for capitalization purposes.

e PFRS 3 (Amendments), Business Combinations and PFRS 11 (Amendmeants), Joint
Arrangements — Remeasurement of Previously Held Interests in a Joint Operation. The
amendments clarify that previously held interest in a joint operation shall be
remeasuted when the Group obtains control of the business. On the other
hand, previously held interests in a joint operation shall not be remeasured when
the Group obtains joint control of the business.

(vili) Amendments to PAS 1, Preseniation of Financial Statements and PAS 8, Accounting
Poficies, Changes in _Accounting Estimates and Erors — Definivion of Marerial (effectve
January 1, 2020). The amendments clarify the definition of ‘materiality’ in PAS 1
and how it should be applied. The amendments also improve the explanations of
the definition and ensure consistency across all PFRSs and other pronouncements.

2 3 Basis of Consolidation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Company, and
its subsidiaries as enumerated in the Note 1, after the elimination of matesdal intercompany
transactions. All intercompany assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities under the Group, are eliminated in full
on consolidation. Unrealized profits and losses from intercompany transactions that are
recognized in assets are also eliminated in full. Intcrcompany losses that indicate impairment
ate recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Financial statements of entities in the Group that are prepared as of a date different from
that of the date of these consolidated financial statements wete adjusted to recognize the
effects of significant transactions or events that occut between that date of their reporting
period and the date of these consolidated financial statements. Adjustments are also made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries, associates, interests in joint
opetations and transactions with NCI as follows:

(@) Investments in Subsidiartes

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights to, vatiable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
powet over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date the Company obtains
control,
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The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and citcumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or mote of the three elements of controls indicated
above. Accordingly, entities are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method is applied to account for acquired subsidiaries. This tequires
recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the kabilities assumed and
any NCI in the acquitce. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
intetests issued by the Group, if any. The consideration transferred also includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incured and subsequent change in the fair
value of contingent consideration is recognized directly in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination ate measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any NCI in the acguiree either at
fair value or at the NCPs proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The excess of the considetation transferred, the amount of any NCI in the acquitee and
the acquisition date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition-date fair value of identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill.
If the consideration transferred is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference (negative goodwill)
is recognized directly as gain in profit or loss (see also Note 2.1 1).

Investments in Associates

Associates ate those entities over which the Group is able to exert significant influence
but not conttol and which are neither subsidiaries nor interests in a joint venture.
Investments in associates are initially recognized at cost and subsequently accounted for
using the equity method. '

Acquired investments in associates are also subject to the putchase method. The
purchase method involves the recognition of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities, including contingent liabilities, regardiess of whether they were recorded n
the financial statements prior to acquisiion. Goodwill represents the excess of
acquisition cost over the fair value of the Company’s share of the identifiable net assets

- of the acquitee at the date of acquisition. Any goodwill or fair value adjustment

attributable to the Company’s share in the associate is included in the amount recognized
as investment in an associate.

All subsequent changes to the ownership interest in the equity of the associates are
recognized in the Company’s carrying amount of the investments. Changes resulting
from the profit or loss generated by the associates are credited or charged against the
Equity Share in Net Losses of Assoclates account in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Impairment loss is provided when there is an objective evidence that the investment in
an associate will not be recovered (see Note 2.18).
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Changes resulting from other comprehensive income of the associates ot items that have
been directly recognized in the associate’s equity, are recognized in other comprehensive
income or equity of the Group, as applicable. However, when the Group’s share of
losses in an assocliate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, mcluding any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not tecognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments in behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently teports ptofits, the Group resumes recognizing its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits exceeded the accumulated share of losses that has
previously not been recognized. If the investment in associate is subsequendy sold, the
Group recognize in profit ot loss the difference between the consideration received and
the carrying amount of the investment.

Distributions received from the associates, if any, are accounted for as a reduction of
the carrying vaiue of the investment.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Tnterests in Joint Operations

A joint opetation is a joint arrangement wheteby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the arrangement. A joint control arises from 2 contractually agreed sharing of control
in an arrangement, which exist only when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. For interests in joint operations, the
Group recognized in its consolidated financial statements its assets including its share
of any assets held jointly; its liabilities including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
its tevenue from sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation; its
expenses including its shate of any expenses incurred jointly; and its share in the income
from the sale of goods ot services by the joint opetation. The amounts of these related
accounts ate presented as patt of the regular asset and liability accounts and income and
expense accounts of the Group and are measured and recognized in accordance with
the relevant financial reporting standards.

No adjustment and consolidation procedures are required for the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of the joint operation that ate recognized in the separate financial
statements of the joint operators.

Transactions with NCI

The Group’s transactions with NCI that do not result in loss of control ate accounted
fot as equity transactions — that is, as transaction with the owners of the Group in their
capacity as owners. The difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the net assets of the subsidiarty 1s
recognized in equity. Disposals of equity investments to NCI result in gains and losses
for the Group that are also tecognized in equity.
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When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any retained interest in the
entity is temeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount tecognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the telated assets ot liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit ot loss.

The Company holds interests in vatous subsidiaries and associates as ptesented in
Notes 1 and 10.

2 4 Financial Assets

Financial assets ate recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of
the financial instrtument. For purposes of classifying financial assets, an instrument is

‘considered as an equity instrument if it is non-detivative and meets the definition of equiry

for the issuer in accordance with the criteria of PAS 32, Finandal Instruments: Presentation. Al
other non-derivative financial instruments are treated as debt nstruments.

Regulat purchases and sales of financizl assets are recognized on their trade date. All financial
assets that are not classified as at FVIPL are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at FVTPL ate initially recorded at fair
value and transaction costs related fo it are recognized in profit or loss.

(a) Classification, Measurement and Reclassification of Financial Assets in Accordance with PERS 9

Under PFRS 9, the classification and measutement of financial assets is driven by the
entity’s businiess model for managing the financial assets and the contraciual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. Financial assets are categorized into the following
categodes: financial assets at amortized cost, financial assets at FVTPL, and financial
assets at FVOCL The financial asset category currently relevant to the Group is financial
assets at amortized cost

Financial assets ate measured at amottized cost if both of the following conditions are
met:

» the asset is held within the Group’s business model whose objective is to hold
financial zssets in order to collect con_t:actual cash flows (“hold to collect”); and,

e the contractual terms of the instrument give tise, on specified dates, to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Except fot trade teceivables that do not conizin a significant financing component and
are measured 2t the transaction price in accordance with PFRS 15, all financial assets
meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transacton costs. These are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment in value. '

The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost ate presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position as Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Recetvables [except
for Value-added tax (VAT) on contracts with customers, Advances to raw landowners
and Advances to officers and employees), Advances to Related Parties, and Refundable
deposits (patt of Other Non-current Assets account].
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For purposes of cash flows reporting and presentation, cash and cash equivaients
comprise accounts with original maturities of three months or less, including cash. These
generally include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convettible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

- Interest income is calculated by applying the effective intetest rate to the gross carrying

®

‘amount of the financial assets except for those that are subsequently identfied as

credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets at amortized cost, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial assets (after deduction
of the loss allowance). The intetest earned is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of Finance and Other Income.

Classification, Measuremens and Reclassification of Financial Assets in Awordance with PAS 39

Financial assets other than those designated and effective as bhedging instruments are
classified into the following categories: financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and Available-for-sale financial assets. Financial assets are
assigned to the diffetent categories by management on initial recognition, depending on
the purpose for which the investments were acquired.

The financial asset category relevant to the Group as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2017 is loans and receivables. '

[oans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the recetvables.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
end of the reporting petiod which are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented in the
consolidated statements of financial position as Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and
Other Receivables (except for VAT on contracts with customers, Advances to taw
landowners and Advances to officers and employees), Advances to Related Parties and
Refundable deposits (included as part of Other Non-current Assets).

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment loss, if any.

All income and expenses, including impairment losses, telating to financial assets that
ate recognized in profit or loss are presented as part of Finance and Other Income or
Finance Costs and Other Charges account in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Non-compounding intetest, dividend income and other cash flows resulting from
holding financial assets ate recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how
the related carrying amount of financial assets is measured.
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(&) Lmpairment of Financial Assets in Accordance with PFRS 9

(@

From January 1, 2018, the Group assesses its ECL on a forward-looking basis associated
with its financial assets cartied at amortized cost. Recognition of credit losses is no
longer dependent on the Group’s identification of a credit loss event. Instead, the
Group considers a broader range of information in assessing credit risk and measuring
expected credit losses, inclading past events, current conditions, reasonable and
supportable forecasts that affect collectability of the futute cash flows of the financial
assets. )

The Gtoup applies the simplified approach in measuring ECL, which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables, contract assets, and other
financial assets carried at amortized cost. These ate the expected shortfalls in contractual
cash flows, considering the potental for default at any point during the life of the
financia] assets. ‘To calculate the ECL, the Group uses its historical experience, external
indicators and forward-looking information to calculate the BCL using a provision
matrix. The Group also assesses impairment of trade receivables on a collective basis
as they possess shared credit risk charactetistics, and have been grouped based on the
days past due [see Note 28.2(b)].

The key elements used inlthe calculation of ECL are as follows:

o Probability of Defanlt — It is an estimate of likelihood of default over a given tme
horizon.

o Loss Given Defanit — It is an estimate of loss atising in case where a default occurs at
a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows of 2
financial instrument due from a counterparty and those that the Company would
expect to teceive, including the realization of any collateral.

o Esposure at Defanit — 1t represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
instruments subject to the impairment calculztion.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses over the expected life of the financial nstrument.

Impaisment of Financial Assets in Accordance with PAS 39

As of December 31, 2017, the Group assessed whether there is objective evidence that
loans and receivables is impaitcd. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and teceivables carried at cost has been incurted, the amouat of the impairment
loss is determined as the difference between the assets’ catrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred), discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate Or Curremnt
effective interest rate determined under the contract if the loan has a variable interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of
an allowance account. The amonnt of the loss shall be recognized in profit or loss.
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Ifin a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized
(such as an improvement in the debtot’s credit rating), the previously recognized
impaitment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The reversal shall not
result in 4 carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognized at the date of the impairment
is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

(¢} Derecognition of Financial Asseis

The financial assets (ot where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 2 group of
financial assets) are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from
the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Gtoup retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to tecognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized
botrowing for the proceeds received.

2.5 Inventories

Cost of real estate inventories includes acquisition costs of raw land intended for future
development, including other costs and expenses incurred to effect the transfer of the
property to the Group; telated property development costs; and bortowing costs on certain
loans incurred during the development of the real estate properties (see Note 2.21). All costs
relating to the real estate property sold are recognized as expensc as the wotk to which they
relate is performed.

Costs of real estate inventories arc assigned using specific identification of their individual
costs. These properties and projects are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs to complete and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The Group recognizes the effect of revisions in the total project cost estimates in the year in
which these changes become known. Any impairment loss from a real estate inventory is
charged to operations during the period in which the loss is determined.

Repossessed property arsing from sales cancellation s recognized at cost. The difference
between the cartying amount of the receivable or Contract Asset to be derecognized and the
cost of the repossessed propetty is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

2.6 Prepayments and Other Current Assets

Prepayments and other current assets pettain to other tesources controlled by the Group as a
tesult of past events. They are recognized in the consolidated financial statements when it is
probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the asset has a cost or
value that can be measured reliably.

Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future econornic benefits are expected to
flow to the Group beyond one year after the end of the reporting petiod or in the normal
opetating cycle of the business, if longer, are classified as non-current assets.



2.7 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except land, are carried at acquisition or construction cost less
subsequent depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, if any. As no finite useful life
for land can be determined, the related cartying amount are not depreciated. Land is stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing -
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repaits and maintenance are
charged to expenses as incurted.

Depreciation and amortization is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Building 50 years
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years
Transportation and other equipment 5 years
Building and office improvements 5-10 years

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation of property and
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate, at the end of each reporting petiod.

Fully depreciated and amortized assets are retained in the accounts untl they are no longer
in use and no further charge for depreciation and amortization is made in respect of those
assets.

An asset’s catrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s cattying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.18).

An item of property and equipment, inclading the related accumulated depreciation,
amottization and impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit ot loss in the year the item
is derecognized.

2.8 Investment Property

Investment property consists of patcels of land and buildings held for lease or for capital
appreciation ot both. Buildings are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Land is stated at cost less any impatrment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase ptice and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
improvements and renewals ate capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintenance are

charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is computed on z straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets
as follows:

Land development and improvements 20 years
Building and improvements 25-50 years
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The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depteciation of investment
property are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is wrtten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s cartying armnount is greater than its recoverable amount (see Note 2.18).

Transfers from other accounts (such as property and equipment ot real estate inventory) are
made to investment property when and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an opetating lease to another party, while
transfers from investment property ate made whes, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of the owner-occupation or commencement of development
with 2 view to sell.

For 2 ttansfer from investment property to owner-occupied ptoperty or inventories, the
cost of property for subsequent accounting is its carrying value at the date of change in use.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment propetty, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under Property and Equipment account
up to the date of change in use (see Note 2.7).

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain ot loss on the
retirement or disposal of an investment propetty is tecognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in the year of retirement or disposal.

2.9 Development Rights

Development fights pertains to the acquired rights to develop land owned by the
government over a period of 32 years (see Note 13). These rights are accounted for under
the cost model. The cost of the asset is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the
fair value of the other considerations given up to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition
ot production. Capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
nseful life as the life of this intangible asset is considered finite. In addition, development
rights are subject to impairment testing as described in Note 2.18.

Development rights, presented as part of the Other Non-current Assets account, 1is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
included in profit or loss in the year the itemn is derecognized.

2.10 Financial Liabilities

Financial labilitics, which include Intetest-bearing Loans, Trade and Other Payables
(except tax-telated labilities), Advances from Related Parties, Due to Joint Venture Partners,
Redeemable Preferred Shares and Other Non-current Liabilities account (except Advance
rental), are recognized when the Group becomes a patty to the contractual terms of the
instrument. These are initially recognized at their fair values and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using effective interest method for maturities beyond one yeat, less
settlement payments. All interest-related charges, if any, incurred on financial liability ate
recognized as zn expense in profit or loss under the caption Finance Costs and Other
Charges in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Interest-beating loans are raised for support of long-term funding of operations. Finance
charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, ate
charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest method and are
added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that these are not settled in
the pedod in which they arise.

Preferred shares, which carry a mandatory coupon or are redeemable on specific date or at
the option of the shareholder, are classified as financial liabilities and presented as a separate
line item in the consolidated statement of financial position as Redeemable Preferred Shares.

Dividend distributions to shareholders, if any, are recognized as financial liabilities when the
dividends are approved by the BOD. The dividends on the redeemable preferred shares are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as interest expense on
an amortized cost basis using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as cutrent liabilities if payment 1s due to be settled within
one yeat ot less after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business, if longet), or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defet
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Otherwise, these
ate presented as non-cutrent liabilities. :

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position
only when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiraion. ‘The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.11 Business Combination

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisiion method of accounting
[see Note 2.3(a)]. : '

Goodwill, if any, teptesents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s shate of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Subsequent to initial tecognition, goodwill, if any, is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for impaitment and catried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Negative goodwill, which is the excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of nect
identifiable assets acquired over acquisition cost, is charged directly to profit or loss.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated w0 cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units
are identified according to operating segment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to it.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer is required to remeasure its
previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and recognize
the resulting gamn or loss, if any, in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as
approptiate.
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Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with PAS 37, Prosisions,
Coningent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

2.12 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the Group’s BOD - its chief operating decision-maker. The BOD is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s products and
setvice lines as disclosed in Note 4, which represent the main products and services provided
by the Group. : '

Each of these operating segments is managed sepatately as each of these service lines requires
different resources as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried
out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting undet PFRS 8 are the same
as those used in its consolidated financizal statements, except that the following are not
included in arriving at the operating profit of the operating segments:

post-employment benefit expenses; :

expenses relating to share-based payments; _
tesearch costs relating to new business activities; and,
revenue, costs and fair value gains from investment property.

In addition, corpotate assets which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment ate not allocated to a segment.

There have been no changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to
determine reported segment profit or loss.

2.13 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resoutces and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may stll be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.

Provisions ate measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, including the
risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of
sitnilar obligations, the kkelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by consideting the class of obligations s 2 whole. When time value of money is material,
long-term provisions are discounted to their present values using a pretax rate that reflects
market assessments and the tisks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of
each teporting petiod and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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In those cases, where the possible outflow of economic tesoutce as a result of present

. obligations is considered improbable or remote, ot the amount to be provided for cannot be

measuted reliably, no liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Similarly,
possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the recognition
crteriz of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Group can
be virtually certain to collect from a third patty with respect to the obligation is recognized as
a sepatate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

2.14 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial ltabilities arc offset and the resulting net amount, considered as
a single financial asset or financial hiability, is reported in the consohdated statement of
financial position when the Group curtently has legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and
settle the lability simultaneously. The night of set-off must be available at the end of the
reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on a future event. It must also be enforceable in
the normal course of business, in the event of default, and in the event of insolvency or
bankruptcy; and must be legally enforceable for both entity and all counterparties to the
fnanctal instruments.

2.15 Revenue and Expense Recognition
Revenue comptises tevenue from sale of real properties, hotel opetations and leasing activities.

To determine whether to tecognize revenue from sevenue covered by PFRS 15, the Group
follows 2 five-step process:

identifying the contract with a customer;

identifying the performance obligation;

determining the transaction ptice;

allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations; and,
recognizing revenue when/as petformance obligations are satisfied.

IS .

For Step 1 to be achieved, the following five gating criteriz must be present:

a. the parties to the contract have apptoved the contract either in writing, orally or in
accordance with other customary business practices;

b. each party’s rights regarding the goods or setvices to be transferred ot performed can
be identified;

c. the payment terms for the goods or setvices to be transferred or petformed can be
identified;

d. the contract has commercial substance {i.e., the tisk, timing or amount of the future
cash flows is expected to change as a result of the contract); and,

e. coliection of the consideration in exchange of the goods and services is probabie.

Revenue is recognized only when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring control of the promised goods ot setvices to a customer. The transfer of control
can occut over time or at a point in time.
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A performance obligation is satisfied at 2 point in time unless it meets one of the following
ctiteria, in which case it is satisfied over time:

e the customer simultaneously teceives and consumes the benefits provided by the
‘Group’s performance as the Group petforms;
e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customet controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; and,
¢ the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
~ and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

The transaction price allocated to performance obligations satisfied at 2 point in time is
recognized as revenue when control of the goods o services transfets to the customer. If the
performance obligadon is satisfled over time, the transaction price allocated to that
performance obligation is recognized as revenue as the performance obligation Is satisfied.
"The Group uses the practical expedient in PFRS 15 with respect to non-disclosure of the
aggtegate amount of the transacton price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied
pesformance obligations as of the end of the seporting petiod and the explanation of when
such amount will be recognized. '

The Group develops teal properries such as developed land, house and lot, and condominiam
units. The Group often enters into contracts to sell real propetties as they ate being developed.
The significant judgment used in determining the timing of satisfaction of the Group’s
performance obligation with respect to its contracts to sell real propetties is disclosed in
Note 3.1(a). Sales cancellations are accounted for on the year of forfeiture. Any gain or loss
on cancellation is charged to profit or loss.

(@ Real estate sales — Revenue from real estate sales is recognized over time proportionate
to the progress of the development. The Group measures its progress based on actual
costs incured relative to the total expected costs to be incurred in complefing the
development. Revenue recognized from real estate sales is presented Real Estate Sales
in the consolidated statement of comptehensive income.

()  Hotel operations — Revenues from room accommodation and services ate recognized
over time during the occupancy of hotel guest and ends when the scheduled hotel
+oom accommodation has lapsed (i.e., the related room services have been rendered).
As applicable, invoices for hotel accommodations are due upon receipt by the
customer. For food and beverage, revenue is recognized at a point in time upon
delivery to and receipt of food and beverage by the customer.

(¢)  Service income — Revenue is recognized over time (i.e., time-and-materials basis as the
services are provided) until the performance of contractually agreed tasks has been
substantially rendered. Service income comprises fees from maintenance of golf
coutse and management fees. :

(d)  Marketing fees — Revenue is recognized over time in the same amount to which the
entity has the right of invoice to the customer. Any amounts temaining unbilled at
the end of the reportng period are presented in the statament of financial position as
receivables as only the passage of time is required before payment of these amounts
will be due. Marketing fees are presented as part of Finance and Other Income in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (see Note 19.1)




-29.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract to sell real property to customers ate recognized
as patt of Prepayments and Other Current Assets and is subsequently amortized over the
duration of the contract on the same basis as revenue from such conttact is recognized.
Other costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization of services or
receipt of goods or at the date they ate incurred. Finance costs are reported on an accrual
basis except capitalized borrowing costs (see Note 2.21),

Contract assets pertain to rights to consideration in exchange for goods or setvices that the
Group has transferred to 2 customer that is conditioned on something other than passage
of time. Under its contracts with customers, the Group will receive an unconditional night
to payment for the total consideration upon the completion of the development of the
property sold. Any rights to consideration recognized by the Group as it develops the
propetty are presented as Contract Assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Contract assets are subsequently tested for impaitment in the same manner as the
Group assesses impairment of its financial assets [see Note 2.4(c)].

Any consideration received by the Group in excess of the amount for which the Group is
entitled is presented as Contract Liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position. A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services to 4
customer for which the Group has received consideration (ot an amount of consideration
is due) from the customet.

If the transaction does not yet qualify as contract revenue under PFRS 15, the deposit
method is applied until all conditions for recording the sale are met. Pending the recognition
of revenue on sale of real estate, considerations received from buyers are presented under
the Customers’ Deposits accouat in the liabilities section of the consolidated statement of
financial position. :

2.16 Operating Leases
The Group accounts for its leases as follows:
fa) Group as Lessee

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substandally all the risks and benefits of
ownetship of the assct are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments
(net of any incentive received from the lessot) are recognized as expense in profit ot
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as repaits and
maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

(b) Group as I essor

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as opetating leases. I ease income from operating
leases is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, ot contains, a lease based on the substance
of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the atrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset.

Revenue from rentals is recognized on a straight-line basis over the duration of the lease term.
For tax purposes, rentzl income is recognized based on the contractual terms of the lease.
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2.17 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

The accounting records of the Group arc maintatned in Philippine pesos. Foteign cutrency
transactions during the year are translated into the functional currency at exchange tates which
approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign currency gains and losses tesulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monctary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
part of income ot loss from opetations.

2.18 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Gioup’s investments in associates, investment propetty, property and equipment,
development rights and other non-financial assets are subject to impairment testng whenevet
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recovetable. For purposes of assessing impairment, assets arc grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generaring units). As a result, assets
are tested for impairment either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s ot
cash-generating unit’s catrying amount exceeds ifs recoverable amount which is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management
estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the
cuitable interest rate in order to calenlate the present value of those cash flows., The data used
for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved budget,
adjusted as necessaty to exclude the effects of asset enhancements. Discount factors are

determined individually fot each cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of

sespective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risk factots.

All assets ate subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s or cash
generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

2.19 Employee Benefits
The Group’s employee benefirs ate recognized and measured as follows:
(a)  Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that dcfines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal
obligation for any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the
Group, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired.
Plat: assets may include assets specifically designated to a long-term benefit fund, as
well as qualifying insurance policies. The Group’s defined benefit post-employment
plan covers all regular full-time employees.
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The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position for a defined
benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the end of

the reporting period. The DBO is calculated annually by independent actuaries using

the projected unit credit method. The present value of the DBO 1s determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows for expected benefit payments using a
discount rate derived from the interest rate of zero coupon government bonds, that
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related post-employment liability. The
interest tates are based from the reference rates published by Bloomberg using its
valuation technology, Bloomberg Valuation (BVAL), in 2018; and by Philippine
Dealing and Exchange Corp. in 2017. BVAL provides evaluated prices that are based
on market observations from contributed sources.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experence
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on plan assets
{excluding amount included in net interest), if any, are reflected immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a chatge or credit recognized in other,
comptehensive income in the period in which they arise. Net intetest is calculated by
applying the discount rate 2t the beginning of the period, taking account of any changes
in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the pesiod as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net intetest is reported as part of Finance Costs and Other
Chatges or Finance and Other Income account in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Past-service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the pedod of a plan
amendment ot curtailment.

Termination Bensfits

Termination henefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Gtoup recognizes termination benefits at the
eatlier of when it can no longer withdraw the offer of such benefits and when it
recognizes costs fora restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37 and involves the
payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period ate discounted to theit present value.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences ate recognized for the number of paid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of each reporting period. They
are incladed in the Trade and Other Payables account of the consolidated statement
of financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as 2
result of the unused entitlement.

2.20 Share-based Employee Remuneration

The Company grants share options to key executive officers eligible under a stock option
plan. The setvices received in exchange for the grant, and the corresponding share options,
are valucd by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted at grant date. This
fair value excludes the impact of non-market vesting conditions (for example profitability
and sales growth tatgets and performance conditions), if any. The share-based remuneration
is recognized as an expense in profit or loss with 2 corresponding ctedit to retained earnings.
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The expense is recognized during the vestmg period based on the best available estimate of
the number of share options expected to vest. The estmate is subsequently revised, if
necessary, such that it equals the number that ultimately vests on vesting date. No
subsequent adjustment is made to expense after vesting date, even if share options are
ultimately not exercised.

Upon exercise of share option, the proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs up to the nominal value of the shares issued are allocated to capital stock
with any excess being recorded as additional paid-in capital (APIC).

2.21 Borrowing Costs

For financial reporting purposes, borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period

_ in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs

that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 2 qualifying
asset (i.e., an asset that tzkes 2 substantial period of time to ger ready for its intended use ot
sale) are capitalized as part of Inventoties account (sce Note 2.5). The capitalization of
borrowing costs commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale ate
in progress. Capitalization ceases when substantially all such activities are complete. For
income tax purposes, all interest and other bostowing costs are treated as deductible
expenses in the petiod in which they are incurred.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets, if any, is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalization.

2.22 Related Partty Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the
Group and its related partics, regardless whether a price is charged. '

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party ot
exercise significant influence over the other patty in making financial and operating decisions.
These parties include: (2) individuals owning, ditectly or indirectly through one ot more
intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the Group;
(b) associates; and, {c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting powet
of the Group that gives them significant influence over the Group and close membets of the
family of any such individual.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance
of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

223 Income Taxes

Tax expense tecognized in profit ot loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax
not recognized in other comprehensive income ot directly in equity, if any.

Cutrent tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal authotities
relating to the current ot prior reporting petiod, that are uncollected or unpaid at the reporting
period. These ate calculated using the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal petiods to
which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense in profit or loss.
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Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on temporary differences at the end
of each reporting petriod between the tax base of assets and liabilities and theit carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions,
deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the carryforward of unused
tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profir will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assets ate reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profit will be available to allow such deferred tax

assets to he recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates have been
enacied or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to
recover ot settle the carrying amount of its assets and labilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting petiod
and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be availabie to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities ate recognized as a component of tax expense
in profit oz loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or direcdly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income ot directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set-off current tax assets against cusrent tex labilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same entity and the same taxation authority.

2.24 Equity
Capital stock represents the nominal value of shates that have been issued.

APIC represents premium received on the issuance of capital stock. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from APIC, net of any related income tax
benefits.

Revaluation resetves pertain to remeasutements of retirement benefit obligation.

Retained earnings includes all current and prior period results of operations as reported in the
profit or loss section of the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and
shate-based employee remuneration, teduced by the amounts of dividends declared, if any.

Non-controlling interests represent the porton of the net assets and profit or loss not
attributable to the Company’s shareholders which arc presented separately in the Group’s
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within the equity in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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2.25 Basic and Diluted Earmings per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing consolidated net profit by the
weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the period,
adjusted retroactively for any stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split declared
during the current period.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the weighted average numbet of common shares
outstanding to assume conversion of potentially dilutive shares. Currently, the Group’s
potentially dilative shares consist only of share options (see Note 26).

2.26 FEvents after the End of the Reportng Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s financial
position at the end of the teporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed
when material to the consolidated financial statements. -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS
requires management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
futute events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may
ultimately vary from these estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

(a) Bualnation of the Timing of Satisfaction of Performance Obligations
(i) Real Estate Sales

The Group exercises significant judgment in determining whether each performance
obligation to develop properties promised in its contracts with customers is satisfied
over time or at & point in time. In making this judgment, the Group considers the
following:

e any asset created ot enhanced as the Group performs;

o the ability of the customet to control such asset as it is being created or enhanced;
the timing of receipt and consumption of benefits by the customer; and,

the Group’s enforceable tight for payment for performance completed to date.

The Group determined that its performance obligation is satisfied over time since it does
not have an alternative use of the specific property sold as it is precluded by its contract
from redirecting the use of the property for a different purpose. Further, the Group
has tights over payment for development completed to date as the Group can choose
to complete the development and enforce its rights to full payment under its contracts
even if the customer defaults on amortization payments.



)

©

-35-

(#) Hosel Operations

The Group determines that its revenue from hotel operations shall be recognized over
time. In making its judgment, the Group considers the timing of receipt and
consumption of beaefits provided by the Group to the customess. The Group provides
the services without the need of repetformance of other companies. This demonstrates
that the customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits of the Group’s
rendering of hotel services as it performs.

Revenne Recognition

The Group uscs judgment in evaluating the probability of collection of contract price
on real estate sales as a criterion for revenue recognition. The Group uses historical
payment pattern of customers in establishing a percentage of collection threshold over
which the Gtoup determines that collection of total contract price is reasonably assuted.
In 2018, the Group resssessed the historical behavior of its customets and determined
a change in percentage of collection threshold from 25% to 10% of the total contract
price, which tesulted to an increase of P3,648.5 million in revenues and corresponding
cost of real propetty sold of P1,614.6 million in 2018.

Deiermination of ECL on Trade and Otber Receivables, Contract Assets and Advances to Related
Parties (2018)

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate BCL for trade and other receivables.

' The provision rates are based on days past due for group of various customer segments

that have similar loss patterns (ie., by geography, product type, customer type, and
coverage by letters of guarantee and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The
Group’s management intends to regulatly calibrate (Le., on 2 annual basis) the matrix
to consider the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information
(i.e., forecast economic conditions). Details about the ECL on the Group’s trade and
other receivables ate disclosed in Note 28.2.

Tn relation to advances to related parties, PFRS 9 notes that the maximum perod ovet
which ECL should be measured is the longest contractual period where the Group 18
exposed to credit risk. In the case of these receivables from related parties, which ate
repayable on demand, the contractial petiod is the very short period needed to transfer
the cash once demanded. Management determines ECL based on the sufficiency of the
related parties’ highly liquid assets in order to repay the Group’s teceivables if demanded
at the reporting date, taking into consideration the historical defaults of the related
parties. If the Group cannot immediately collect its receivables, management considers
the expected manner of recovery to measure ECL. If the recovery strategies indicate
that the outstanding balance of receivables can be fully collected, the ECL is limited to
the effect of discounting the amount due over the petiod until cash is realized.

Based on the relevant facts and circumstances existing at the reporting date,
management has assessed that all strategies indicate that the Group can fully recover the
outstanding balance of its receivables, except for those discussed in Note 28.2.
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Distinction among Investment Propersy and Onmer-occupied Properties

The Group determines whether an asset qualifies 2s an item of investment property ot
owner-occupied property. In making its judgment, the Group considers whether the
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets held by an entity.
Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to
property but also to other assets used in the operations of the Group or for
administrative putposes. '

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for administrative purposes. If these portions can be
sold separately (or leased out separately under finance lease), the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the propetty is
accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary services
are so significant that a property does not qualify as investment property. The Group
considers each ptoperty separately in making its judgment.

Distinction Between Real Estate Inventories and Investment Properties

Residential and condominium units comprise properties that are held for sale in the
otdinary course of business. Meanwhile, investment properties comprise of land and
buildings which ate not occupied substandally for use by, or in the operations of, the
Group, noz for sale in the otdinary course of business, but are held primarily to earn
rental income and capital appreciation. The Group considers management’s intention
over these assets in making its judgment.

Determination of Significans Influence over Entities in which the Growp Holds Less than
20% Ouwnersbzp g

The Group determines whether significant influence exists over an investee company
over which the Group holds less than 20% of the investee’s capital stock. The Group
considers the ability to influence the operating and financial policies of the investee,
representation on the board of directors of the investee, provision of essential technical
information for the development of the various projects of these investees, and routire
patticipation in management decisions in making its judgment. Based on management’s
judgment, the Group has significant influence over these investee companies
(see Note 10.1).

Consolidation of Entisias in which the Company Holds 50% Ownership or Less

Management considers that the Company has de facto control over OPL even though it

does not hold mote than 50% of the ordinary shares and voting rights of this subsidiary
due to the factors discussed below.

The Company holds 50% equity interest over OPI and has: (1) the ability to direct the
relevant activities of the subsidiary; (2) the rights to varable returns from its involvement
with the subsidiaty; and, (3) the ability to use its power to affect its returns from its
involvement with the subsidiary. Based on management’s judgment, the Company has
control over OPI; hence, the said subsidiary was consolidated in the financial statements
of the Group.

Distinction between Operating and Finance Leases

Critical judgment was exercised by management o distinguish each lease agreement as
either an operating ot 2 finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant
risk and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure to
make the right judgment will tesult in either overstatement or understaternent of assets
and liabilities.
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Recognition of Provisions and Contingenctes

Judgment is exetcised by management to distinguish between provisions and

contingencies. Policies on recognition and disclosure of provision and contingencies
are discussed in Note 2.13 and relevant disclosures are presented in Note 27.

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant sk of

causing a2 material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period: '

@)

&)

@

(4)

Basiness Combinations

On initial recognition, the assets and liabilitles of the acquired business and the
consideration paid fot them are included in the consolidated financial statements at their
fair values. In measuring fair value, management uses estimates of future cash flows
and discount rates. Any subsequent change in these estimates would affect the amount
of goodwill if the change qualifies as a measurement period adjustment. Any other
change would be recognized in profit or loss in the subsequent period.

Revenue Recognition for Performance Obligations Satisfied Over Time

In determining the amount of revenue to be recognized for performance obligations
satisfied over time, the Group measures progress on the basis of actual costs incurred
relative to the total expected costs to complete such petformance obligation.
Specifically, the Group estimates the total development costs with reference to the
project development plan and any agreement with customers. Management regularly
monitors its estimates and apply changes as necessary. A significant change in estimated
costs would result in a significant change in the amount of revenue tecognized in the
vear of change.

Estimation of Allowance for ECL. (2018)

The measurement of the allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortized cost is an
area that requites the use of significant assumptions about the future €COnOMIC
conditions and credit behavior {e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting
losses). Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation used in measuring ECL
is futther detailed in Note 28.2.

Impaisment of Trade and Other Recesvables and Advances io Related Parties {2017)

Adequate amount of allowance for impairment is provided for specific and groups of
accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. 'The Group evaluates the
amount of allowance for impairment based on available facts and circumstances
affecting the collectibility of the accounts, including, but not limited to, the length of the
Group's relationship with the counterparties, the counterparties’ current credit status
based on known market forces, average age of accounts, collection experience and
histotical loss experience. The methodology and assumptions used in estimating future
cash flows are teviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.
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The carrying value of trade and other receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 6. Based on the evaluation of
management, there are no impairment losses required to be recognized on the Group’s
advances to telated patties as of December 31, 2017 (see Note 24).

Determination of Net Realizable Value of Inventories

In determining the net realizable value of inventories, management takes into account
the most reliable evidence available at the times the estimates are made. The future
realization of the cattying amounts of these assets is affected by ptice changes in the
different market segments as well as the trends in the real estate industry. These are
considered key sources of estimation and uncertainty and may cause significant
adjustments to the Groep’s inventories within the next reporting period.

Consideting the Group’s pricing policy, the net realizable values inventories are higher
than their related carrying values as of the end of the reporting periods.

Fair Value of Stock Optisns

The Company estimatcs the fair value of the executive stock option by applying an
option valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions on which the
executive stock option were granted. The estimates and assumptions used are presented
in Note 25.2, which include, among other things, the option’s time of expiration,
applicable risk-free interest rate, expected dividend yield, volatility of the Company'’s
share price and fair value of the Company’s common shares. Changes in these factors
can affect the fait value of stock options at grant date.

Estimation Useful Lives of Investment Property, Property and Equspment, and Development Rights

The Group estimates the useful lives of investment property, property aad equipment,
and development rights based on the period over which the assets are expected to be
available for use. The estimated useful lives of investment property, property and
equipment, and development right are reviewed periodically and are updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

The carrying amounts of investment property, property and equipment, and
development rights are analyzed in Notes 11, 12 and 13, respectively. Based on
management’s assessment as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, there are no changes m
the estimated useful lives of those assets as of the end of the reporting periods. Actual
results, however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by changes in
factors mentioned above.

(b) Fair Valne Measnrement of Investment Property

Investment property is measured using the cost model. The Group determines the fair
values of building and building improvements using the discounted cash flows valuation
technique since the information on current or recent prices of assumptions undetlying
the discounted cash flow approach of investment property is not available. The Group
uses assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period, such as: the receipt of contractual rentals; expected future market
tentals; void pedods; maintenance requirements; and appropriate discount rates. These
valuations are regularly compared to actusl market yield data and actual transactions by
the Group and those reported by the market. The expected future market rentals are
determined on the basis of current market rentals for similar properties in the same
location and condition.
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For land and land development and improvements, the Group determines the fait value
of land through appraisals by independent valuation specialists using market-based
valuation approach where prices of comparable properties are adequate for specific
market factors such as location and condition of the property.

A significant change in these elements may affect prices and the value of the assets. The
fair value of investment properties is disclosed in Notes 11 and 30.3.

Determination of Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews its defetred tax assets at the end of each reporting pedod and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be avatlable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Management assessed that the deferred tax assets recogmized as at December 31, 2018
and 2017 will be fully utilized within the prescribed period of availment. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets as of those dates is disclosed in Note 23, '

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

PFRS requites that an impairment teview be petformed when certain impatrment
indicators are present. The Group’s policy on estimating the impairment of
non-financial assets is discussed in defail in Note 2.18. Though management believes
that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the consolidated
financial statements ate appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these
assumptions may matetially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting
impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations.

In 2018, certain investments in associates wete found to be impaired, hence, the related
carrying amounts wete written off (see Note 10). No impairment losses were recognized
on investment ptoperty, property and equipment, development right and other
non-financial assets for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016
{(see Notes 11, 12 and 13).

Valuation of Post-emplayment Defined Benefit Obligation

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of post-employment defined
benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in
calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates and
salary rate increase. A significant change in any of these actuarial assumptions may
generally affect the recognized expense, other comprehensive income or losses and the
carrying amount of the retirement benefit obligation in the next reporting petiod.

The amounts of retitement benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of the
movements in the estimated present value of post-employment benefit, as well as the
significant assumptions used in estimating such obligation ate presented in Note 22.2.

Basis for Revenne Recognition Bemchmark

The Group recognizes its revenue from sale of real estate in full when 10% or more of
the total contract price is received. Management believes that the revenue recognition
criterion. on percentage of collection is approptiate based on the Group’s collection
history from customers and number of back-out sales in prior years. Buyet’s interest in
the propetty is considered to have vested when the payment of at least 10% of the
contract price has been teceived from the buyer and the Group has ascertained the
buyer’s commitment to complete the payment of the total contract price.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
4.1 Business Segments

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of products and setvices provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and setves different matkets. The Group is
engaged in the development of residential and office units including urban centers
integrating office, residential and commercial components. The Real Hstate segment
pettainis to the development and sale of residential and office projects. The Rental segment
includes leasing of office and commercial spaces. The Hotel Operations segment includes
hotel services, sale of food and beverages, and parties and events services. The Sexvice
Income segment relates to maintenance of golf courses. The Corporate and Others segment
includes marketing services, general and corporate income and expense items. Segment
accounting policies are the same as the policies described in Note 2.12: The Group generally
accounts fot intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties
at current market prices.

4.2 Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities

Segment assets ate allocated based on their physical location and use or direct association
with a specific segtnent and they include all operating assets used by a segment and consist
ptincipally of operating cash, receivables, real estate inventories, property and equipment,
and investment property, net of allowances and provisions. Similar to segment assets,
segment liabilities aze also allocated based on their use or direct association with a specific
segment. Segment liabiliies include all operating liabilities and consist principally of
accounts, wages and taxes curtently payable and accrued liabilities. Segment assets and
segment liabilities do not include deferred taxes.

4.3 Iatersegment Transactions

Segment revenues, expenses and performance include sales and purchases between business
segments. Such sales and purchases are eliminated in consolidation.

4.4 Analysis of Segment Information

The tables presented in the succeeding pages present tevenue and profit information
regarding industry segments for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 aad
certain asset and liability information regarding segments at December 31, 2018, 2017 and
2016.
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f and for Year Ended December 31, 2018

TOTAL REVENUES
Sales to external costomers

Intersegment sales

Total rovenucs

RESULTS
Segment resuls
Unallocated expenses
Ineorne from operations
Finance incotne
Fmance costs
Equity share in net

losses of associates

Foteign currency gain — net
Incame befors tax
Tax cxpense
Met profit before

non-controllyg mterest

Hoo-commolling interest share in

net profit

Net income attributable to

the Company's shareholders

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Segment asgets
peestments in and advances
to associates and other
related parties
Unalloczted assets

Total assets

"L'ovtal segment labdlites

OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Project and capital expenditnres

o intion and

i3

Hotel

Service

Corporate

P 6,370,355,422 P 426,536,057 P223958,354 P134,709.245 P 226936988 F -

SE.06E147

—F242608 (142.308.845)

D6370555422 P 42602204 [P223958554 EL34709245 ENAITO686 (143000843

E 2327578504 P 264658067 E_9.998290 P 6417041 E1375A50R% (F143 308545

35,957,754

P34,538,739,968 P5,805,530,033 P740,574150 P268,982,557

100,841,535 -
{ 205,395234) -

¢ 183,393) -
4,013,772 -

P3,069,450,671 P -

1,606,455,807 -

P 7,382,696,066

L 7,382,£96,068

F 2,602,719,142

2,602,719,142
134,799,285
{  205,395.234)

{ 183,%93)
. 403772

2.535,953,576
{ B11.668.522)

1,724 287,054

— 228970258

P44,423,575,359

1,606,455,807

P 1812230047 PL137,817170 P 6,458,940 P 1,901,964

23,088,114

93,167,264

17,337,257

33,220,394

P L9201 F -
29,005,978 -

P 3,020,398,322
195,819,007
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As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017 — As Restated

Hotel Service Corporate
‘TOTAL REVENUES
Sales to external customers P 57256759191 F 161,258,835 F 349155484 P134082713 P 210829187 F - P £,111,885,410
Intersegment sales - 56,380,397 = - 60161697 (116542094} -
Total evemues P5256735191 P 217659272 BA4g1sSeRs BIMOEA7IS P20700SRe (RUAK2004 B EILERGAI0
RESULTS
Segmen: rosuits P 2622758397 PI20046E50 P (2644561 P I4NCAGOR PAISIAT] (RLIGSA004) P 2241534273
Unallocated expenses . _
Incarne from opotations 2,241,534,273
Finance mcome 20,601,111 - - - 26,503,695 - 47,104,R06
Finance costs - - - - [ 58,101,835 - { 98,101,838)
Equity shate in ngt )
losses of associates - - - - { 33,583 - { 33,983
Income befare rax 2,190,503,260
Tex expense {675,965 664)
Met prafit hefore
non-controlling misnest 1,514,537,596
Non-controlling interest share in
net profit __ 61,430000
et income atmberable o
the Company's sharshilders E_1,453,107.506
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Segment aseets F32,609,9%2,135 P4,315,092,680 D671,0B8,445 P359957,756 P4165639240 P - P42,721,750,256
Investments in and advances
o associates and other
related parties - . - - 1,866,660,163 . 1,866,660,163
Unalloeated assets - - - - = = =
Total assets B2 40912135 P4915,00 680 P AM 0R8445 P3S0GCTZHE PAGAZ299408 B__- B44,iR%.410.419
Totel segment Jiabilitics P1274 34377 P 4264731 P 16504361 P269305T16 PLSZ2AVIAOR P .- . PISIARGII
OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION
Project and capita) cependitres P 3,3 63,178,424 P1AA126282 P 4096410 B 19482902 F 98,335,561 P - T 4,588,217,570

Deprediation and amortizaticn 25,230,588 26,615,043 18,080,532 33,352,501 26,575,543 - 129,822,310



TOTAL REVENUES

Sales to axterns] customers

Entersegrnent sales

Total revetiues

RESULTS

Segment results

Unallocated expenses

Income from operaticns

Finance income

Finance costs

Equity share in et
losses of associates

Foteign curtticy ghin — net

Income before ax

Tax expense

HNet profit before

non-controliing intezest

Non-controlling interest share in

net profit

Net facome attabutable to

the Company's shareholders

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Segment assets
Investments in and advences
to associates and othes
relzted parties

Unallocated stzets

Total assets

Total segrent liabilities

OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION
Prujec: and capital cxpenditures

Depreciation and amottization
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As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016 — As Restated

Hote Service Corporate
P 3,524,661,780 P 104,851,942 P353214211 P 108,814,826 P 199183967 P - P 4690,816,746

- 50,176,586 - - AMAITG6EL (114594267 -

PA024661780 B 165058525 P 353274215 PIORRIFDE P263601A6R (EL1AS94267) E4.690E1G7T4G

1,604,973,342
21,648,621 - - - 60,701,096 - 82,349,717
- - - - {  85,914,220) - (B4

} . . . t 532,733} { 532,133)

. - - - 6,480,930 - 6480830
1;6'3‘?,35?,036

(—469,611,335)

1,137,745,701

_ 12179258

B_L02% 556,447

P30,250,124,666 P3,183,235,473 P T6L349,418 P2I64TEA36  PANR068985 P - T38,583,854,828
. . . - 2,038,151,864 . 2,038,151.864

T 3119220414 PLEBT54366 P 3540275 P 5836954 P 200746 P - P4,799,920 341
22,681,175 8758404 24151831 26711819 28,229,438 - 110,333,127



.4.5 Reconciliations

Presented below is a reconciliation of the Group’s net revenues to the revenues presented
in its consolidated staternents of comprehensive income. '

017 2016
{As Restated — {As Restated —
_ 2m8  _ seeNote)  seeNoje2]
Net tevenues

Total segment revenues P 7,526,004,911 P £228,427504 P 4,805411,013
Elimination of intersegment

~ revenues (. 143,308,845) ( 116,542,004) { _ 114,594,267}
Revenues as repotted

in consolidated profit or lnss P 7,382,696066 P 6111885410 P . 4,690,816746

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following coraponents as at the end of the reporting
periods: '

2018 2017
Cash on hand and in banks P 1,221,982,477 P3,023,045,320
Shot-term placements 549,319,652 135,132,664

P 1771,302,129 P3,158.177.984

Cash in banks generally earn interest at tates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term
placements ate made between 15 to 65 days at prevailing market interest rates and earn
annual effective interest of 1.00% to 2.25% in 2018 and 2017,

Interest income earned from cash in banks and short-term placements is included as part of
Finance income under the Finance and Other Income account in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 19.1).
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6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account is composed of the following as at December 31:

2017
(As Restated —
Notes 2018 see Note 2)
Current:
Installment contract and
other trade receivables P3,992,175,923 P2,073,695,789
VAT on contracts with
customers 369,037,588 98,433,509
Advances to officers and
employees 243 224,031,792 196,857,741
Advances to raw landowners 58,652,413 32,196,800
Others 13,242 235,628,196 168,161,198
4,879,525,912 2,569,345,037
Allowance for impairment ( 540,342,300) ( 540,342,300)
Unearned discount and
interest (. 21,392446) (__ 13,296,332)

4,317,791,166 2,015,706,405

Non-current:
Instzllment contract

receivables 1,129,261,668 1,245,352,049
VAT on contracts with

customers 17,359,681 155,336,762
Unearned discount and

interest (__134.786,084) (___ 19,691.529)

1,011,835,265 _1,380,997,282
P5.329.626,431 P3.396.703.687

Installment contract receivables represent receivables from sale of real estate and resort
shares for sale and are normally collectible monthly within one to five years. The titles to
the real estate and resort shares sold remain with the Group until such receivables are fully

collected. The installment period of sales contracts averages from three to five years.

Iastallment contract receivables are noninterest-bearing and are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method based on the interest rate of comparable financial
instraments in the market. Interest income from amortization amounted to P33.6 million,
P20.6 million, and P21.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, and is presented as part of Finance income under the Finance and Other
Income account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income

{(see Note 19.1).

Meanwhile, the related day-one loss on the discounting of the interest free installment
contracts receivables amounting to P64.6 million, P58.6 million and P4.7 million for the
years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, is presented as Day-one loss
under Finance Costs and Other Charges account in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income (see Note 19.2).
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VAT on contracts with customets represents the VAT component of the contract price of
real estate sales 1o the extent recognized either as installment contract receivables ot contract
assets.

Advances to officers and employees are nonintetest-bearing, unsecured and settled through
salary deduction or liquidation.

Advances to raw landowners ate noninterest-bearing cash advances pertaining to amounts
advanced by the Group to certain raw landowners as down payment for lots to be acquired.

Other receivables include interest receivable from cash and short-term placements in banks
and rent receivables from third parties and related parties.

At the end of 2018, an impairment analysis using the provision matrix to measure ECL was
petformed. Management determined that certain receivebles with no allowance for
impaitment wete impaired and should be written off. Accordingly, Impairment loss
amounting to P9.9 million was recognized and presented as part of Miscellaneous under
Operating Expenses in the 2018 consolidated statement of comptehensive income
(see Note 20). As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, certain past due accounts ate not
provided with allowance for impairment to the extent of the expected market value of the
property sold to the customer since the titles to the real estate properties sold remain with
the Company until such receivables are fully collected.

INVENTORIES
Except for the portion of Golf and tesorts shares for sale stated at net tealizable value,

inventories at the end of 2018 and 2017 were stated at cost. The details of inventoties are
shown below.

2017
(As Restated —
2018 see Note 2}
Real estate fot sale P10,586,399,146  P11,047,294,827
Golf and resort shares for sale 2,837,501,920 2,816,204,114
Raw land inventory 2,354,761,268 2,305,892,826
Property development cost 2,243.707,288 2,307,230,667
18,022,369,622 18,476,622,434
Allowance for impairment ( 88,411,502} { 88,411,502)

P17,933,958.120  P18,388210,932

Real estate for sale mainly pertains to the accumulated costs incurred in developing the
Group’s horizontal and condominium projects and certain integrated-tourism projects,
including capitalized borrowing costs amounting to P123.2 million and P144.3 million for
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, tespectively. The said interest was incurred
in relation to the interest-bearing loans obtained in 2016 and 2015 {see Note 14). The
capitalization rate averaged 6.01% and 4.45% in 2018 and 2017, tespectively.

Golf and resort shates for sale pertain to proprietaty or membership shates (landowner
shares and foundets shares) that are of various types and costs. The cost of the landowner
resort shares is based on the acquisition and development costs of the land and the project.
The cost of the founders shares is based on the par value of the resort shares which is
P100 per share.
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Raw land inventory pertains to acquisiion costs of raw land intended for future
development, including other costs and expenses incurred to effect the transfer of title of
the property to the Group.

Property development costs include on-going costs incurred by the Group for its own
projects. In addition, this account also includes the costs incurred by the Group for the
joint development of various projects that are treated as jointly controlled operations; there
were no sepatate entities created by these joint venture agreements. The jointly controlled
operations are undertaken under project agreements with different venture partners. The
costs relating to these joint projects repzesent the amount of investments placed by the
Group as original investor/developet ot the amount assigned/transferred to the Group by
associates ot by related parties who were the original investors/developers in the project
agreernent. '

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group neither has other contingent liabilities with
regard to these joint ventures nor that the probability of loss that may arise from contingent
Habilities is remote.

There ate no impairment losses recognized in 2018, 2017 and 2016.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The composition of this account is shown helow.

2017
(As Restated —
Notes 2018 see Note 2)
Input VAT ' P1,107,248,959 P1,116,873,129
Advances to contractors
and suppliers 982,293,185 1,713,442,753
Creditable withholding tax 197,362,945 130,166,614
Prepayments 24.2 182,184,614 91,879,103
Deferred commission 18.3 168,584,563 161,257,704
Others 24.2 87,119,827 120,318,230
2,724,794,093 3333,937,533
Allowance for impatrment (13599572} 13,599.572)

P2.715,194.521 P3.320.357.961

Advances to contractors and suppliers, which are noninterest-bearing and unsecured,
pertain to amounts advanced to the Group’s contractots and suppliers as down payment for
setvices to be rendered and goods to be delivered to the Group.

Deferred commission represents incremental costs of obtaining a contract to sell real estate
ptopetty to customers, which are subsequently amortized over the duration of the contract

on the same basis as revenue from such contract is recognized.

There are no additional impaitment losses recognized in 2018, 2017 and 201 6.
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ADVANCES TO REAL ESTATE PROPERTY OWNERS

This account represents advances to teal estate propetty owners and various charges in
connection with several project agreements entered into by the Group. The terms of the
agreements provide that the Group will undertake the improvement, subdivision and
development of the properties. The agreements further stipulate that the Group and the
property owners shate either in the form of the developed real estate properties or upon
collection of sales proceeds using certain pre-agreed sharing ratios. Collections of the
advances from the said property owners are generally received upon sale of property owners®
shares in the projects.

The outstanding amounts, net of uneamed discount and interest, at the end of the reportin
_ g D g
period are as follows:

2018 2017
Advances to real estate
propetty owrers P1,286,302,028 P1,244,190,475
Unearned discount and interest (. 46,875,186) (___ 30,778,859)

P1,239.926,842 P1193,411,010

The advances to real estate propetty owners ate classified in the consclidated financial
position as follows:

2018 2017
Current | P 185671144 TP 179,603,536
Non-current 1,054,255,698 1,013,808,080

P1239.926842 PL.193411.616

The net commitment fot construction expenditures of the Group amounted fo:

2018 2017
Total commitment for
construction expenditures P5,874,923,108 P5,593,987,493
Total expenditures incurred (_4,981,520,218) (_4,757,008,463)
Net commirment P _893.402,890 P _836,979.030

The Group’s interests on jointly-controlled operations and projects range from 50% to 85%
in both 2018 and 2017. The list of the Group’s jointly controlled projects (which are not
jointly-controiled entities) are as follows: '

Alabang West

Caliraya Spring

Forest Hills

Kingsborough

Monte Cielo de Pefiafrancia
Mountain Meadows

Newport Hills

Pahara @ Southwoods

Sta. Barbara Heights Phase 2 & 3
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¢ Holland Park
e 3Sta Barbara Heights Shophouse Disttict

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group has neither other contingent liabilides with
regard to these joint ventures nor has assessed that the probability of loss that may atise
from contingent liabilities is remote.

The amortization of unearned discount and interest amounting to P3.9 million in 2018 , 2017
and 2016 is presented as part of Finance income under the Finance and Other Income account
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 19.1).

The real estate propetty owners related to the Alabang West, Pahara @ Southwoods and
Holland Park projects wete charged to marketing fees in 2018, 2017 and 2016 amounting to
P153.8 million, P41.9 million and P69.9 million, respectively, which are presented as
Marketing fees under Finance and Other Income accouant in the consolidated statements of
comptehensive income (see Note 19.1}.

All of the Group’s advances have been analyzed for ECL. Based on management’s evaluation,
expected loss is not significant.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
10.1 Investments in Associates

The components of the carrying values of investments in associates accounted for under
the-equity method at the end of the reporting petiods are as follows:

2018 2017
Acquisition costs: _
NPI ' P 734,396,528 P 734,396,528
BNHGI 109,216,973 109,216,973
FERC 28,000,000 28,000,000
FENI 10,000,003 10,000,003
FESI 7,808,360 7,808,360
EERSAI 4,000,000 4,000,000
Write off ( 49.808,363) -
843,613,501 893,421 864
Accumulated equity share
in net losses:
Balance at beginning of year 47,109,726 47,075,743
Equity share in net losses
for the year 183,393 33,983
Write off ( 44.899.429) -
Balance at end of year 2,393,690 47,109,726

In 2018, the Group wrote off its investments to FERC, FENI, FESI and FERSAL The
cattying amount of these investments amounting to P4.9 million was recognized as
impairment loss and is presented as Impairment loss under Finance Costs and Other
Charges account in the 2018 statement of comprehensive income (see Note 19.2).
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In 2017 and 2016, the Group sold portion of its ownership intetest in BNHGI to a
third party for P297.5 million and P240.9 million, respectively. Gains from these
transactions amounted to P113.1 million and P82.5 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively,
which represent the excess of the consideration received over the book value of disposed
investment and are presented as Gain on Sale of Investment in Associate in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. No similar transaction occutred in 2018.

Significant influence that exists in these associates is brought about by the Group’s provision
of essential technical information for the development of the varous projects of these
Investee companies.

The place of incorporation, which is also the principal place of business, of the Group’s
associates is presented below.

(z) BNHGI, NPI, FESI — Renaissance Towers, Metalco Avenue, Pasig City
(3) FERC, FENI, FERSAI — Paragon Plaza, Reliance St., Mandaluyong City

The aggtegated amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and net loss of the associates are as
follows:

Decomber 31, 2018

Cutrent Non-curzent Current Nen-current

BNHL P 194282361 P 1606056250 P 196,755,377 F - F - P 135,712)
NPI 261236740 _ 5411008680 __1317.006155 . 9713 (. 1164541)
P__455519101 P 7017064930 P 1SI3761L532 P - P 9713 (B___1300.253)

TDecember 31, 2017
Current MNon-cugrent Current Non-current

BNHGI T 194277,153 P 1,606056250 P 106477895 P - P - (B 135,930)

NPl 262,401,281 5,411,008,680 1,517,006,155 - 10,354 97,096)

FERC 277,874,390 - 209,508,750 - - -

FERSAI . 157,909,404 - 173,014,080 - - -

FESI 9,751,538 1,819,006 9,539 557 6,694,417 . -

FENI 98,510,739 - 93,113,013 - - -
P_1000725105 P 7058883936 P 19986M0.450 P 6604417 P 10354 (F 233.026)

The fait values of the associates’ shares of stock are not available as of the end of the
report'mg pexiods.

Based on the assessment of the management, aside from those that have been written off
in 2018, the investments in associates are not impaired due to the active efforts of the Group
to taise funds in order to push through with the associates’ projects.
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10.2 Subsidiaries with Material Non-controlling Interests

The Group includes subsidiaries with material NCI, with details shown below.

Proportien of Ownership
Interest and Voting Profit {Loss) Accumulatedd
_Rights Heldby NCI  ____ Allocared vo NCI NCI
Name of Material m7 2017
_Subsigiary _ NCI__ 2018 2017 2018 {AsRestated) 20018 (A Restared)
TILC Various
stockholders 49% 40%, P 117,741,364 P 51,613,083 P3,412,305.956 P 3,299,181,805
SMI Megawarld 49% 49% 31,093,333 ( 3,055,323) 963,167,303 932,073,970
SWEC Various
srockholders 40% 40% 30,728,429 B,2B5,978 246,294,195 235,225,766
OFI Vaoous
stackholders 0% 50% 12,650,492 11,195,392 262,459,175 215,808,687

In 2016, Megaworld fully paid its unpaid shates subscriptions to SMI amounting to
P541.6 million as of December 31 2015. In addition, the Company and Megawotld
subscribed additional common shares of SMI amounting to P68.1 million and P63.0 million,
respectively, maintaining their ownership interests. In 2017, the Company settled its unpaid
subsctiptions to SMI amounting to P204.2 million and subscribed to additional shares
increasing its ownership to 51% as of December 31, 2017.

Management assessed that control is still retained by the Company [see Note 3.1{g)]-
No dividends were paid by the above subsidiaries to the NCI in 2018, 2017 and 2016.

The place of incorporation of TLC, SMI, SWEC and OPI is summarized below.

(2} TLC and SMI — Renaissance Towers, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City

(5) SWEC — Southwoods Ecocentrum, Brgy. Soro-Soro, Biftan, Lapuna

(;) OPI — 5% Floor, F&M Lopez II Building, 109 C. Palanca St,, Legaspi Village,
Makati City

In 2017, the SEC approved the change in the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company’s subsidiaries (TLC and SMI) from its place of incorporation to 16" Floot,
Alliance Global Tower, 36 Street cor. 11 Avenue, Uptown Bonifacio, Taguig City.



s7804 tpoq U pazu30a91 (sso]) ygord S I SWES ) IFT SILEPISANS IS JO (ssof) swoouy
sasuayaxdwos 8303 vanoadsar A1 P0uY {107 PUT 8107 FERL Y BT 2wOdTT aasuagaIdwos o ou 3aey IO PUe JHMS TS “TL

(TFTI0TERT D GITe0rd D TP ) GFEETE — DELT00T D GeeeorT  4) TIFIsetsy O (BeTIereet )

- - e - - - ((ri x4 7) TE60C6T
(g16°¢850zz ) (Lo6'WE'sy ) - - STETrE LEY SIV'902°CET Y96 kST 096181°0¢T
oL LOS“LIY 695691 $E6'8F9 (erv'avaise ) (sosmuray ) (csr'zev'sze ) (zszisno'sze )
660°che0s d (BOFshe'ey  a) Gorposle &) (0pPosIE ) eveimhIz A TEILZST 4 (ev'soleor o) (smsor )
WL Fe0eSsd Woiloe d ZIOREL d (WIS QO TBLSred d Fereociol 4 SR &
AN A Zer sy gresecs [N COgTE0T ) TEETe0IE  TROeNYEr  RSTHEATENL
2666611 A ZeV0SYTH d 996SZHTI 4 SKOTSN'Or A (ES0BIE  d) SYL9ETE A €80CLOLS  d poMIRLUIE d
ORI NP d KO0 3 TROWEI d DLCTereh d OIRCTEE d  TeGer J TRCS00°86¢ Td
TROTRETT 4 SITGEVT07 d 0OIToic o GS6TPECOM d OUGTI0CC6 d TOCI9TE96 d 0018l 660 ed J86TOE CIF £
TEOTEEIL I GITCoTT0. A OV9oesco d TeCUhioot d OOBLITOLG d FSCoere00td Joccrsceved OSLTOETETTd

TO0RFIL d TeolETord WOTOTSer 4 OcTTOTZerTd INCIOVETd ZW0MF00Cd Z00 86 e ed
s sY) BHIT e eY) BI0Z ZT02 ST0Z T(pIETI V) BI0Z
LM0Z 102 L102
IO DHMS FT0ES DL

(mopz3n0} mopyu gses 1

soyes o3uemysxo wiioaog jo Yooy
somanse Suoweug

(us pasiz) TOX USED J9N]
sagiapze Supsaaw;

{u1 pasn) won) gsTd PN
sograpoe Jugesado

u; (pasn) mnTg [seD 13N

seak ay) 20 (ssaf) ygaig

1DN 93 A1qEIngine 5834
sy ¥oy (s50f) 1gorg

Levediiinsy At 10 S32D[OYIAIBYE O)
a|qeInquwe read 303 J0§ (sso)) IgoIg
SR04

£330 AUONTOI-TON]

Amedwor) 3y J0 sIapjoyaeys
o ajqeIngume Omby

SOMETEY [,

19556 I ],

-%0[aq TmoYys S ‘suonemwrp dnoxdenur 330399 “[JQ PUE DIIMS TINS “D'LL 3O UONEIIOUL [EIUELY POZHELIuNS Sy I,

IN%-]



- 53-

10.3 Interest in Unconsolidated Stm_ctured Entities

The Group has no interests in unconsolidared structured entities.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Gtoup’s investment ptopetties comprise of buildings and several parcels of land which
are owned to earn rental income or for capital appreciation ot for both. The gross carrying
amounts and accumulated depreciation and amortization of investment properties at the
beginning and end of the reporting periods are shown below. '

Dccember 31, 2018
Cost
Acrumulated depreciaton
and amcrization

Net carcying value

December 31, 2017 - As restated
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

and amortization

Net carrying value

Jenuary 1, 2017 — As restated
Coat
Accumulated deprediation
and amorization

Met carrying value

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of investment property at the beginning and end

Land and Construction
Building and  Lacd Development in
_lmprovements . and Improevements Progrens Totel _

P 48R7,003,477 P 6,202,106714 P 35373334 P 11,124,483,52%
( 447,050.268) ( 139,705,539 - { 586,755,805
B_4439083211 P 6062401175 P 35373334 P_10,A37.727,720

P 2345772744 P 5750966547 P 1892135480 P 9988874771
{_3560M .48 139,705,554 - { 495.796,957)

P 28450162 P 5726077361 P 2,087,141989 P 8441669512
(__ 263071545) { __ 139704564) - (_402776,109)

of the reporting periods is shown in below.

Balance at Jaouary 1, 2018, as restated,

net of accunulated depreciztion
and amortzaton

Addirions

Reclessificatums — ust

Depreciation and amortization
chexges for the year

Balance ar December 31, 2018,
net uf accumulated depreciation
zod amortization

Balance at January 1,2017, as restzied,

net of arenmulated depreciation
and amonizaton

Additions )

Rerlassifications — net

Depredation and amortzation
charpes for the year

Balance at December 31, 2017, a5 testated

net of accumulated depreciation
and amordzation

Land and Canstructiun
Building and  Land Deveiopment
_Improvements . and Improvements ‘_Bmglﬁe_ _ . Total

P 1989681326 P 5611261008 P 1892135480 P 9,493,077,814

684,468,587 451,140,167 - 1,135,608,754
1,856,762,146 . {  1856,762.146) -
{___ 90g9asE - - i 901,958 A48)

P_ 4439953211 P _GO6ADLI76 E 35573334 P.10,837.727,720

B 345378617 P 5586372797 F 2087141989 F B,J25,893,403

3,104,057 24,880,187 1,367,224 B66 1,395.218,11¢
16447,812,719 - [ 1,562,231 375) 85,561,344
4 26614067 ¢ D76 - (o 26615047)

P__ 1989681326 P 5611261008 E_ LB92135480 E__9403(M814



-54-

The Group adopted PIC Q&A 2018-11, Classtfeation of Land by Real Estate Developer,
retrospectively. In previous years, land, including other costs and expenses related to the
transfer of title of the propetty, wete presented as Land for Future Development and only
reclassified to Property Development Costs account (a real estate inventory account), when
the development of the property starts. Upon the adoption of PIC Q&A 2018-11, land with
undetermined future use was reclassified to Investment Property [see Note 2.1(c}].

In 2017, the Group reclassified certain building and the related improvements and certain
office improvements with carrying amounts of P59.7 million and P25.9 million,

respectively, to investment property as such properties ate held to eatn rentals and(or) for
capital appreciation (see Note 12).

The construction of the office towets of SMI was completed in 2018 while the mall building
was completed in 2017.

Rental revenues recognized in 2018, 2017 and 2016 amocunted to P379.6 million,
P114.4 million and P58.0 million, respectively, and ate presented as patt of Rental Income
in the comsolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 24.2). Depreciation
charges substantially represent the direct costs in leasing these properties. Other operating
costs in leasing these properties include Real property taxes amounting to P21.6 million,
P16.6 million and P12.4 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and Repairs and
maintenance amounting to P7.6 million, P6.5 million and P4.8 million in 2018, 2017 and
2016, tespectively. Real property taxes is included as part of Taxes and licenses while Repairs
and maintenance is presented under Operating Expenses account in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 20). '

Except for the Construction in progress and land held for undetermined furute use, all of
the Group’s investment propetties generated rental income as at December 31, 2018, 2017
and 2016.

Based on management’s estimate, the fait value of building and improvements amounted to
P7,447.3 million and P2,331.7 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, as
determined by calculating the present value of the cash inflows anticipated until the end of
the life of the investment property using a discount rate of 10%.

On the other hand, the fair value of land and land development and improvements
amounted to P26,662.9 million and P26,007.2 million as determined through appratsals by
independent valuation specialists using market-based valuation approach where prices of
comparable propetties are adequate for specific market factors such as location and
condition of the property as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectvely.

Moreover, the carrying value of construction in progress approximates its fair value 2s of
December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Other information about the fair value measurement and disclosutes related to the
investment property are ptesented in Note 30).3.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The gross cartying amounts and accumulated depreciation and amortization of propetty and
equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting periods ate shown below.

Office Furmit T 7 ! Building and
’ Fixtures and and Other Office
December 31, 2018
Cost r LEUOOE P 986,116,047 P 221495877 P 260901365 P SRBDE43S P 1,569,009.729
Accumlated depreriation
and amortization = - (__340385.358) {_ 162463115) (_ 205,505026) { 247293287 | 733.002.827)
Net carrping amount P__.1600,080 P 645,750,680 P E9.030760 P E5A06343 P J4.67.30R E__BASG4A002
Drecember 31, 2087
Cast P 1,600,000 P 984,116,047 P 177825088 P 241,903,027 P 92966874 F 1500411034
Accunulated depteciation
end amortization —_— (. NG055473) ( 145,641361) {__ 162,866,087) { 14915,125) {___A¥7.478,048)
KNet cartying atnount B 1LA00AF B 630060572 B 34183708 E__79036940 P.. 7R051740 P BE20%20R¢
Jatnaary 1, 2017
Cost P OLA00000 P 1092934684 P 160,131,640 P 212080004 T 64051505 P 1,530,807,823
Accumulated dcpmciauon
and - (— 33775390% {_ 127204001) (. 122247.090) {_ 23856988) (  £10,481,829)
Net carrying amount B___ 1600000 P_T785,760884 P 32927639 P___ROR42ER4 P 40194607 P 920325954

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property and eqmpment at the beginning and
end of the reporting petiods is shown below.

Ofiice Pumiture, Tramsportation  Building and
Fixturer and aod Other Difice
— land  __ Building _Equipment  _Eguiptment  Improvements _ Total

Balance at January 1, 2018

net of accurmulated

deprecintion and amattizarion P 1,600,000 F 70,060,572 P 34183725 P 79036940 P 705,740 P BELYILIBE
Additions - - 41,688,907 18,998,342 5,929,562 £6,616,825
A i 2,024,638 2,024,638

acquired subsidi - - 024, - - 024,
Disposals il . - { 14,256) - - { 14.236)
Depreciation znd amortization .

charges for the year s (. aamas) (__ISES266) ( 4Z638.939) (o 9814203) ( 95613201)

Balance at December 31, 2018,
net of accumulated

cepraciation and amortizaion  P____ 1600000 P 645750680 P 50032762 P _S3A%343 P 74067008 P _R36,946,902

Balatice at Janaary 1, 2017
net of accunulated depreciabon

and emortzanon F 1,600,000 P 735760894 P 32027430 P 89842854 P 40194 607 P 920,325,904
Additions 245 862 18,040,544 31,237,232 73,837,026 123,361,564
Disposals - { 309,151) { B93,678) - { 1,202.823)
Reclassifications - { 59,675,853] - - { 25,905,491 | 83,581,344 )
Depreciaton and amorlization

chatges for the year ST 26,270,331) ( 16,475,307} { 41.149.468) { 10,075.293) {___ 93,070,361

Balance 2t December 31, 2017,
net of accamulsted depreciation

and amortization P 1600 P _6006ST P 3418725 P 790369 B JANSIZ45 E.R62952,986

In 2017, the cettzin building and the related improvements and office improvements were
reclassified to investment property as such propetties are solely held to earn tentals
(see Note 11).

The Group's fully depreciated assets that ate still being used in operations has a total original
cast of P152.2 million and P248.5 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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13, OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

4.

‘This account consists of:

2017
{As Restated —
Note 2018 see Note 2)
Development rights — net P 265,076,899 P 274,323,765
Advances to contractots 148,909,857 169,961,300
Refundable deposits 282 118,009,922 100,812,423
Others 1,715,331 3,265,720

P 533,712,009 P_548363,208

On October 29, 2015, the Company acquired development rights over 10,994.86 sg.m.
undivided portions of land (the Subject Premises) owned by a government entity located in
Quezon City for a period of 32 years.

North Trangle Depot Commercial Corpotation (NTDCC), a third party, has offered to
lease it from the Company on October 29, 2015 up to the expiration of the development
rights. As part of the consideration of the lease between the Company and NTDCC, the
Company shall reimburse NTDCC for the accumnuiated development rights payments
telated to the Subject Premises in the amount of P294.4 miillion. In addition to the advance
tental, NTDCC is also obliged to pay annual rent to the Company amocunting 1o
P62.5 million starting on the third anniversary of the lease up to 2025. The amount of
P294 4 million was recognized as Development rights by the Company to be amortized over
the term of the lease of 32 years. The advance rental from NTDCC, amounting to
P294.4 million at the start of the lease was recognized as Advance tental to be amottized
ovet the lease term and presented as Advance rental under the Other Non-current Liabilities
account in the consolidated statements of financial position {see Note 17).

Amortization expense related to the development tights 2mounted to P9.2 million in 2018,
2017 and 2016 and is included as part of Depreciation and amortization under the Cost of
Rentals and Services account (see Note 21.2) while the rental income atising from this
transaction amounted to P46.9 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, and is inclnded as part of
Rental Income account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. Rental
receivable recognized from the aforementioned transactions amounted to P57.7 million and
P81.0 million 25 of December 31, 2018 and 2017, tespectively, and 1s presented as part of

" Others under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of

financial position (see Note 6).

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS

The Group’s interest-bearing loans are broken down as follows:

2018 2017
Curtent P1,574.466,462 P1,086,538,462
Non-current 2.486,305,898 3,969.391,025

P4,060.772,360 P5,055.929 487



-57-

In November 2018, SWEC renewed its credit line facility with a local bank amounting to
P150.0 million, which shall be used for working capital purposes. In December 2018, initial
loan drawdown for this line amounted to P50.0 million, payable within 180 days.

In December 2017, the Company obtzined an unsecured long-term loan from a local bank
amounting to P2.0 billion. The loan is payable quarterly for a term of five years commencing
on the beginning of the fifth quarter from the initial drawdown date. The loan bears a
floating intetest rate and is payable quatterly in atreats. The outstanding balance pettaining
to this loan amounted to P2.0 billion as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

In 2016, the Company obtained a P2.0 billion loan from a local bank with principal to be
paid in quarterly instalments, commencing on the 5th quarter from date of initial drawdown.
This loan carries a floating interest rate, which is repriced every 30 to 180 days as agreed by
the parties. On October 25, 2018, the interest rate was fixed subject to repricing after one
yeat. The interest is payable quarterly in arrears. The outstanding balance pettaining to this
loan amounted to P1.3 billion and P1.8 billion as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

In 2015, the Company obtained a P1.5 billion loan with a term of five years from the initial
drawdown, inclusive of a grace period on principal repayment of two years. The loan bears
a fixed interest rate payable quarterly in arrears. The outstanding balance pertaining to this
loan amounted to P0.7 billion and P1.2 billion as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively,

In 2015, OPI obtained a long-term unsecuted interest-beating loan from a local financial
institution. The loan will mature on May 28, 2020 and beats a fixed interest rate of 5.04%.
The outstanding balance pertaining to this loan amounted to P0.1 billion and P0.2 billion as
at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Group has properly complied with the loan agreements’ covenants as of the end of the
teporting period (see Note 31).

The total accrued interest payable amounted to P14.3 million 2and P11.1 million as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, is presented as part of Accrued expenses undet
the Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated staternents of financial position
(see Note 15).

Total interest costs incurred atiributable to these loans amounted to P257.9 million,
P167.6 million and P125.4 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectdvely. Of these amounts,
P123.2 million, P144.3 million and P101.1 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, were
capitalized by the Company as part of Inventories account (see Note 7). Interest charged
to expense is presented as part of Finance costs under Finance Costs and Other Charges
account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 19.2).
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of:

2017
(As Restated —
Notes 2018 - see Note 2)
Trade payables P2,651,529.446 P2,047,134,414
Liabilities for land acquisition 445,025,128 440,082,027
Accrued expenses 14, 25.3 310,161,069 292,031,102
Income tax payable 43,358,180 130,633,870
Retention payable 17 40,383,531 62,800,573
Others 24.6 109,430,827 72,467,138

B S ————

B3,599,888,181 P3,045,149.124
Liabilities for land acquisition represent the unpaid portion of raw land acquired by the Group.

Accrued expenses reptesent accruals for dividends on preferred shares, commission, utlities,
professional fees, outside services, interest and other expenses incurred in the normal
operatons of the Group.

Retention payable pertains to amount withheld from payments made to contractots o ensure
compliance and completion of contracted projects equivalent to 10% of evety billing made by
the contractor. Upon completion of the contracted projects, the amounts are remitted back
to the contractots. Those which are due to be remitted beyond 12 months from the end of
the repotting period is presented under Other Non-cutrent Liabilities in the consolidated

statements of financial position (see Note 17).

Other payables consist primarily of refund Hability [as required by Republic Act (R.A)6552,
Realty Instalbment Buyer Acf), unearned rentals, payables to government and other regulatory

agencies.
DUE TO JOINT VENTURE PARTNERS

This account represents the share of joint venture (JV) partnets in the proceeds from the
sale of certain projects in accordance with various JV agreements entered into by the Group.

The details of the account are as follows:

20618 2017
Due to golf share partners and
lot owners P 395,424,643 P 407,655413
Deferred interest expense - ( 11.280,462)

P_395.424,643 P _396,374901

The amottization of deferted interest amounting to P11.3 million in 2018 and P19.8 million
in 2017 and 2016 is presented as part of Finance costs under the Finance Costs and Other
Charges account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 19.2).
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17. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

The details of the account are as follows:

Notes 2018 2017
Retenton payable 15 P 820,919,633 P 771,756,301
Advax‘lce rental 13 265,911,811 277,393,525
Security deposits 134,887,028 42,647,341
Others 10,496,525 _ 137948064

P1,232.214,997 P1.105,592,031

18. REVENUES
18.1 Disaggregation of Revenues

The Gtoup derives revenues mainly from sale of real properties and hotel operations. An
analysis of the Group’s majot sources of revenues is presented below.

2018

Geographical areas
Luzon
Visayas

~ Mindanao

Types of product or services
Residential lots
Residential condominum
Commerdial lots and spaces
Room accommodation
Food and beverage
Other toom services

2017

Geographical areas
{azon
Visayas

Types of product or services
Residential lots
Residential condominium
Commezcial lots and spaces
Room accommodation
Food and beverage
Other room services

Segments
Hotel

_RealFstate  _ Operations  __ Total
.P 4,287,652,369 P 3,930,738 P 4,291,583,107
2,082,370,927 220,027,616 2,302,398,543
532,126 - 532126

P 6,370,555422 P__ 223,958,354 P_6,594,513,776
P 3,117,432,561 P - P 3117432561
3,068,377,154 - 3,068,377,154
184,745,707 - 184,745,707

- 194,768,503 194,768,503

- 28,229,958 28,229,958

- 059,803 950.893%

P 3401259785 P - P 3401,259,785
1,855,499 .,406 349155484 2.2 39

P 5956759091 P 349155484 P 5605914675

P 2992810359 P . P 2,992,810,359
2,032,759,770 - 2,032,759,770
231,180,062 - 231,189,062

. 305,740,597 305,740,597

; 41715777 41,715,777

- 1,699.110 1,699.110



-60-

2010

Geographical areas
Luzon P 1954,124484 P - P 1,954,124 484
Visayas 1970537206 ___ 353274211 __2323811,507

Types of product or services

Residential lots P 1,893284305 P - P 1,893,284,305
Residential condominium 1,504,349,507 - 1,504,349 ,507
Commetcial lots and spaces 527,027,968 - 527,027 D68
Room accommodation - 307,776,404 307,776,494
Food and beverage - 42,844 235 42,944,255
Other room services - 2 553 462 2,553,462

P 3924661780 P_ 353274211 P_4277935991

18.2 Contract Accounts

The significant changes in the contract assets and liabiliies balances during the year are as
follows:

a.  Conrract Assets

The Group’s contract assets ate classified as follows:

2017
{As Restated —

2018 see Note 2)
Cutrent P2,394,582,192 P 774,308,579
Non-current 1,135,598,493 1.586,225.455

P3,530,180,685 D2.360,534,068

The significant changes in the contract assets balances during the year ate as follows:

2017
{As Restated —
2018 see Note 2)
Balance at beginning of vear P2,360,534,068 P 1,652,900,689
Transfets from contract assets :
recognized at the beginning of ycar

to installment contract receivables  (  571,936,412) (  845,553,164)
Increase as a result of changes in
measurement of progress 1,7 029 1,553,186,543

Balance at end of year P3,530,180,685  P2.360,534.068
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b, Contraci Liabiltties

The Group’s contract liabilities is classified as follows:

2017
{As Restated —
_ 2018 see Note 2
Current P 272,728,734 P 18,939,519
Non-cutrent 796,103,382 961,655,540

P1068,832116 P 980595050

The significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year ate as follows:

2017
(As Restated —
2018 see Note 2}

Balance at beginning of year P 980,595,059 - P1,011,186,355
Revenue tecognized that was

included in contract hiability at

the beginning of year ( 191,077,440) ( 21 9,959,196)
Increase due to cash received

excluding amount recognized

as revenue during the yeat _ 279314497 _ 189,367,900
Balance at end of year P1,068.832,116 P_980,595059

18.3 Direct Contract Costs

The Group incurs sales commissions upon exccution of contracts to sell real properties to
customers. Incremental costs of commission incurred to obtain contracts are capitalized
and presented as Deferred commission presented under Prepayments and Other Current
Assets in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 8). These arc amortized
over the expected construction period on the same basis as how the Company measures
progress towards complete satisfaction of its performance obligation in its contracts. The
total amount of amortization for 2018, 2017 and 2016 is presented as part of Commission
under Operating Expenses (see Note 20).

The movements in balances of deferred commission in 2018 and 2017 1s presented below.

2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year P 161,257,704 P 156,817,167
Additional capitalized cost 143,539,325 135,248,182
Amortization for the period (__136.212,466) (130 807.645)

Balance at end of year P_ 168,584,563 P.__161.257.704
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184 Transaction Price Allocated to Unsatisfied Performance Obligations

The aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to partially or wholly unsatisfied
contracts as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is P2.6 billion and P2.9 billion, respectively.

The Company expects to recognize revenue from unsatisfied contracts as of December 31,
2018 as follows:

Within a year P 1,451,270,899
Mote than vne year to three years 1,142,739.062

FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS
19.1 Finance and Other Income

Presented below are the details of this account.

2017 2016
(As Restated — (As Restated —
Notes 2018 see Note 2 see Note 2

Marketing fees 9 P 156,893,125 P 71,166,750 P 89,544,210
Finance income 569 134,799,289 47,104,806 82,349,717
Gain on bargain

putchase 1.2 10,774,664 - -
Foteign currency

gains — net 4,013,772 - 6,480,930
(5ain on refunds — net - - 0,238,406
Miscellaneous 89,269,199 26303210 _ 17,941,859

P_365,750,049 P 144664766 B 205,555,122

A gain or loss on refund arises when the amount required to settle a claim for refund by a
customer is lower or higher than the total amount previously collected from the said
customet.

Miscellaneous income includes forfeiture of reservation fees from custorets.
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19.2 Finance Costs and Other Charges
Ptesented below are the detzils of this account.

2017 2016
(As Restated —  (As Restated —
Notes 2018 __see Notc 2) see Note 2)
Finance costs 14, 16,
22.2,
24.4,
253 P 208,395234 P 98,101,836 P 85,914,220
Day-one loss 6 64,550,790 58,648,307 4,669,687
Lass on refund 39,163,991 8,447,577 2,085,019
Impairment loss 10.1 4,908,934 - -
Foreign currency
losses — net - 3,996,459 .
Miscellaneous - - 60775
P_ 314018949 P  169,194179 P 92,729,701
20. OPERATING EXPENSE BY NATURE
Presented below are the details of this account.
2017 2016
(As Restated —  (As Restated —
_Notes 2018 see Note 23 see Note 2)
Cost of real
estate sales 21 P 3,018,683,870 P 2384998130 P 1,903,875810
Cost of hotel
operatons 158,162,392 218,820,207 225,931,874
Salaries and employee
benefits 22.1 322,004,469 284,364,505 264,548,879
Commissions 18.3, 245 256,185,501 206,068,277 140,142,605
Depreciation and
amottization 11,12,13 195,819,007 129,832,310 110,533,127
Tazxes and Hcenses 11 133,313,517 136,568,954 75,614,195
Reatzl 24.2 124,324,359 93,124.371 66,647 682
Professional fees and
outside services 104,655,946 55,329,057 37,628,850
Utilities and supplies 66,194,670 36,154,751 53,604,269
Advertising and
promotions 23,985,331 33,122,797 17,592,189
Transportation 20,705,066 29,452,822 28,422 813
Repaics and
maintenance 11 7,627,554 6,471,277 4,778,681
Reptesentation 7,050,121 5,308,083 3,964,543
Gas and oil 1,813,747 1,738,812 1,025,794
Miscellaneous 24.6, 6, 28.2 230,827,659 177,904,441 144,656,613

P _4,671.353.209 P 3799258794 P 3079,027,924

Miscellaneous expenses mainly include insurance, membership dues, communication
expense, setvice fees charged by a stockholder and cost of materials and overhead incurred’
in relation to the maintenance of the golf course.
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These expenses are classified in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as
follows:

2017 2016
(As Restated - (As testated —
Note 2018 see Note 2) see Note 2
Cost of teal
estate sales 21 P 3,018,683,870 P 2384998130 P 1,903,875810
Cost of rentals
and setvices 202,125,585 139,524 416 99,615,060
Cost of hotel
operations 158,162,392 218,820,207 205,031,874
Operating expenses 292 362 1,055,916,041 849,604,280
DIRECT COSTS

211 Cost of Real Estate Sales

The composition of the cost of real estate sales for the year ended December 31 are as
follows:

2017 2016
{As Restated — (As Restated —
2018 see Note 2 see Note 2)
Land cost P 267,567,689 P 304,298,348 P 345,573,907
Construction costs 2,650,921,529 2,026,422,834 1,529,435,382
Borrowing cost 100,194,652 54,276,948 28,866,521

P _3.018.683,870 P 2384998130 P_1.903.875810
212 Cost of Rentals and Services
The composition of the cost of rentals for the year ended December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Depreciation and amortization P 126,988,960 P 68,773,320 P 52,939,081
Land development and

construction 38,436,901 36,193,434 23,878,030
Maintenance 21,051,763 19,823,025 13,077,918
Civil works and survey 11,276,510 10,618,328 7,005,269
Landscape 4,371,451 4,116,300 2,715,662

P 202125585 P 139524416 P 99.615.960
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213 Cost of Hotel Operations

The composition of the cost of hotel operations for thé year ended December 31 are as
follows: '

2018 2017 2016

Club bookings P 40,758,310 P 69,949,254 P 38,488,168
Utilites 35,798,386 42,914,818 53,171,391
Dutside services _ 15,524,569 22222711 54,823,824
Food and beverage 15,400,998 23,800,801 19,122,110
Salaries and employee benefits 11,193,765 15,479,178 14,358,408
Commission 8,773,523 14,706,728 -

Depteciation 7,754,502 8,600,171 11,489,669
Repairs and maintenance 5,426,110 ' 4,683,790 1,959,970
Miscellaneous 17.532.229 16,462,696 32,518,334

22. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

22.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits

Expenses recognized fot salaries and employee benefits are presented below.

Notes 2018 2017 2016
Short-terrm benefits P 307,379,874 P 260908938 P 234,702,757
Post-employment
defined benefit 222 11,317,437 13,416,254 11,319,102
Sharc-based
employee
compensaiion 25.2 3,307,158 10,039,313 18,527 021)
20 PB__322,004469 P__ 284364505 P 264548870
22.2 Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

@

®

Characteristics of the Defined Benefit Plan

The Group has an unfunded, non-contributory defined benefit plan covering all regular
employees. The plan provides for lump-sum benefits equivalent to 85% to 150% of the
employee’s monthly salary for every year of service depending on the numbet of yeats
of service. The normal retitement age is 60 years old and applicable upon completion
of five years of faithful and continuous setvice to the Group. However, an employee
who attains the age of 50 with the completion of no less than 10 years of service or has
completed 15 years of service and opts for an early retirement is likewise entitled to the
samc benefits.

Explanation of Amounts Presented in the Consolidated Financial Siatements

Actuarial valuations ate made annually to update the retirement benefit costs and the
amount of contributions. All amounts presented in the succeeding pages ate based on

. the actuarial vahmtion report obtained from an independent actuary in 2018 and 2017.



- 66 -

The movements in present value of the retirement benefit obligation are as follows:

2018 2017

Balance at bc‘:ginnjng of year P 63,688,766 P 60,775,015
Current service cost 11,317,437 13,416,254
Interest expense . 3,413,723 2,732,094

Actuarial losses (gains) arising from:
Changes in financial assumptions { 30,309,417) ( 10,114,558)

-Expeﬁegce adjustments 2,690,034 ( 2,638477)
Benefits paid ( 805,223) ( 481,562)
Balance at end of year P 49995320 P ___ 63,688,760

The amonnts of post-employment benefit recognized in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income are as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Reporeed in profit or loss:
Curtent service cost P 11,317,437 P 13,416,254 P 11,319,102

Interest cost 3.413.723 2.732.094 2,168,556

P 14731160 P 16148348 P 13487058

Reporded i other comprehensive income —
Actuatial losses {gains)

atising from:
Changes in financial
assumptions (P 30,309,417) (P 10,114,558) P 683,029
Experience adjustments 2,690,034 (_ 2,638,477) 1,202,089

(P__22,619383) (P 12753035 P 1885118

The amounts of current service cost incurred are presented as part of Salaries and
employee benefits under Opetating Expenses in the consolidated statements of
comptehensive income (see Notes 20 and 22.1). The amounts of interest expense
related to the retirement benefit obligation are presented as part of Finance costs under
the Finance Costs and Other Charges account in the consolidated statements of

comptehensive income (sec Note 19.2).

The amount recognized in other comprehensive income is included as an item that will

not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

In determining the amount of retirement benefit obligation, the following actuarial

assumptions were used for the reporting periods:

2018 ' 2017 2016

Discount rates 8.88% 5.37% 4.55%
Expected rate of salary increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
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Assumptions regarding futute mortality are based on published statistics and mortality
tables. The average expected remaining working life of employees retiring at the age of
60 is 24 years for both males and females. These assumptions were developed by
management with the assistance of an independent actuary. Discount factors are
determined close to the end of each tepotting period by reference to the interest rates
of a zero coupon bond government bonds with terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the post-employment obligation. Other assumptions are based on current
actuarial benchmarks and management’s historical experience.

Ritkr Asvociated with the Retirement Plan

The plan exposes the Group to actuatial risks such as interest rate risk and longevity and
salary risks.

(i) Interest Risk

The present value of the defined benefit ob]jgatidn is calculated using a discount
rate determined by reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, 2

dectease in the interest tate of a reference government bonds will increase the plan
obligation,

(#) Longevity and Salary Risks

The present value of the defined benefit obligation 1s calculated by refetence to the
best estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both during and after their
employment, and to their future salaries. Consequently, increases in the life
expectancy and salary of the plan participaats will result in an increase in the plan

obligation.
Other Information
The information on the sensitivity analysis for cestain significant actuarial ?ssumpﬁons
and the Group’s timing and uncertainty of future cash fiows related to the retirement plan
are desctibed below and in the succeeding page.

i) Sensitivity Analysis

Impact on Redrement Benefit Obligaton
Change in Inctease in Decrease in
Agsumbtons Asgumpdons Assumptions
December 31, 2018
Discount rate +/-6.5% P 2,307,258) P 2,621,598
Salary increase rate +/-1.0% 5,587,871 ( 4,434,027)
December 017
Discount rate +/- 0.5% (P 5,072,533) P 5,774,156

Salary increase rate +/-1.0% 36,063,970 ( 0,275,237)
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The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. This znalysis may not be representative of the actual change
in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would
occur in isolation of one another 4s some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Furthermore, in presenting the sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined
benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period, which is the samne as that applied in calculating the defined
benefit obligation recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did
not change compared to the previous years.

* Funding Arrangements and Bxpected Contributions

The pian is currently unfunded as at December 31, 2018. While there is no minimam
funding requirement in the country, the non-funding may pose a cash flow risk in
about 20 years® time when 2 significant aumber of employees is expected to retire.

As at December 31, 2018, the Group is yet to determine how much and when to fund -
the post-employment benefit plan.

The maturity profile for the next 20 years of undiscounted expected benefit payments
from the plan follows:

2018 2017
Within one year P 1,547,794 P 1,702,285
Mote than one year to five yeats 11,252,663 11,148,755
Mote than five years to ten yeats 45,763,752 27,167,750
Mote than ten years to 15 years 46,990,344 44,410,112
More than 15 years to 20 years 92,747,049 69,482,764

P__ 198301602 - P__ 153911666

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period is 24 yeats.
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23. CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES

The components of tax expense as reported in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
tncome ate as follows: '

2017 2016
{As Restated — {As Restated —
2018 see Note 2} see Note 2}

Reporied in profit or loss:
Current tax expense:
Regular corporate
income tax (RCIT) at 30% P 358,252,655 P 401248008 P 367,556,912
Final tax at 20% and 15% in

2018; and 7.5% in 2017 10,392,398 3,736,078 6,632,629
Minimum corporate
income tax (MCIT) at 2% 7.336,263 2,681,515 2,700,509
) 375,981,316 407,665,601 376,890,050
Utlizagion of MCIT - - ( 1,306,447)
- Deferred tax expense relating
to orgination and reversal
- of temporary differences 435,685,206 268,300,063 04,027,732

) - P__ 811,666,522 P 675965664 P __ 469611335

Reported in otber comprebensive income —
Deferred tax expense (income)
relating to remeasurements
of retirement benefit plan B 6,663,599 P 3495352 (B 514,338)

A reconcllistion of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutoty rates to income
tax expense reported in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income is as follows:

: 2017 2016
- {As Restated — {As Restated —
- 2018 see Note 2} see Note 2)

Tax on pretax profit at 30% P 760,786,073 P 657,150,978 P 482207111
Adjustments for income
subjected to lower

B incotue tax rates ( 5,257,593 ( 2,081,549) ( 3,463,493)
. Tax effects of:
Non-taxable income ( 3,302,392) ( 38,038,981) ( 87.201,825)
— Non-deductible expenses 57,760,414 48.106,419 60,267,513
Expired deferred tax assets 1,668,387 103,968 14,770,767
— Non-deductible
interest cxpense 11,633 1,155,399 1,302,818
— Unrecognized deferred
tax aysets - 0,517,941 5,232,259

Income tax benefit from
previously unrecognized
deferred tax assets - 51489 | 3,503,815)

Tax expense P 811,666,522 P  675965.664 P___469,611.335
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The Group’s net deferred tax liabilities relate to the following as at December 31:

2017
(As Restated —
2018 see Note 2)
Deferred tax liabilides:

Unrealized gross profit on

teal estate sales P 1415,753,628 P 1,013,020,075
Capitalized borrowing cost 91,028,056 89,636,503
Deferred commission 48,990,255 45,699,246
Rental income 42,737,027 25,033,639
Unrealized foteign exchange

gains — net 616,707 -

1,599,125,6 1,173,389.463

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for impattment ( 145,635,112} ( 145,635,112)
Accrued expenses ( 74,775,641) ( 86,270,882)
Share-based employee

compensation ( 70,659,784) ( 69,667,637)
Net-opetating loss '

. carry-over INOLCO) ( 16,493,280) ( 16,983,034 )
MCIT ' ( 12,718,287) ( 7,050,411)
Retirement benefit obligation ( 6,738,110) ( 16,824,888)
Unrealized forex losses — net - ( 1,200,645

(___327,020214) (___ 343.632.609)

P_1272,105459 P__829.756,854

The components of deferred tax expense (income) are as follows:

_ Consolidated Statemenes of Compreheneive Income
____ tnher Comprehensive lacome

2017 2016
(46 Restated — {4z Restated —
5 - S _meNow?  _seeNoted) 2018 2047 2014

Unselized ptofit on real estate sales P 402,733,553 P 243,459,137 P 83,847,807 P - 13 - P
Capitdired borrowing cost 1,391,553 17,591,038 13,851,441 - -
Fental income 17,703,388 12,439,426 4,112,042
Diefacred commission 329,008 12%,3007 10,002,599
Unrealized foreign exchange gains - net 616,707 1,717.427) 780,684
Arcmed expenses 15,495 241 12,625,345 { 20,069,377}
Share-based employee compensation  ( 992,147) ( 3,011,794] (  5558106)
NOLCO 489,754 { 5,184,108 ) 7,554,637 - - -
Retirement bepefit ohligaicn 3423378 3,904,0567 3,322 900} 6,463,395 3,495,352 ( 514,528)
MCIT ¢ 5,667.876) (  2,5771.547) 2,188,005 - - .
Uncealized foreign exchange loszes - net ____1200,645 = -
Defected tax expense (ncome) P 435685206 P.26R300081  E_94027.732 P_6663,399 P 3495352 (B 514558

The details of NOLCO, which can be claimed as deduction from the tespective entities” future
taxable income within three yeats from the year the loss was incurred, are shown below.

Year Original Applied Expired Remaining
_Incumed _ __Amount  _Duringthe Vear During the Year,  Balance _ Valid Until

2018 P 25720027 P - P . P 25,720,027 2021
2017 17,280,360 - - 17,280,360 2020
2016 11,977,213 - - 11,977,213 2019
2015 27,352,541 - ( 27,352,541 ) -

P 82330441 P - (E 27382848 B 54,977,600
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Majority of the entities within the Group are subject to the MCIT, which is computed at
2% of gross income, as defined under the tax regulations or RCIT, whichever is higher. The
total of the MCIT paid by certain subsidiaties, which can be applied as deduction from their
respective future RCIT payable within three years from the year the MCIT was incurred, are
shown below.

Year Original Appiied ired Remaini
_Incurred Amount. _ _During the Year .D_nnn]%;q_;lu.x:at_ ___BahLamg _ Valid Until

2018 F 7,336,263 P - P - P 7,336,263 2021
2017 2681515 - - 2,681,515 2020
2014 2,700,509 - - 2,700,509 2019
2015 1,668,387 - ¢ 1,668,387 ) .

B 1436674 P - (B 166R387) P 12716287

Certain subsidiaries within the Group did not recognize deferred tax assets in accordance with
the relevant accounting standards. The unrecognized deferred tax assets are broken down as
follows:

2018 2017
Allowance fot impairment P 132294356 P 131,960,306
NOLCO 11,745,716 5,667,926
Retirement benefit obligation 668,842 705,646
MCIT 377,648 361,323

P_ 145086,562 P 138,695.201

Management has assessed that for other entities within the Group, the net losses incurred
as well as the related NOLCO, can be recovered throuph their respective future opetations.

The Group opted to continue claiming itemized deductions for the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 in computing for its income tax due.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s related parties include its ultimate parent company, parent company,
associates, stockholder, related parties under common ownership, the Company’s key
management petsonael and others as described below.

24.1 Summary of Related Party Transactions

The summary of the Group’s transactions with its related parties for the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, and the related outstanding balances as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

Relared Parmy Amoupt of T — Outstanding Balavces .
- Category _Motes 2008 2m7 206 o ame 000 M7
Parent company:
Avalment of whrances —
ot of interest and repapments 244 (P 23L,558,725) (B 421,785509) (@ 27.421,263) (P 757.239,595) (F 524,640,870
Lease of office spaces 242 67,545,144 40,792 632 6,096,964 - -
Comumission expense 245 21,051,434 51,477,557 43558453 -
Services 249 8,571,420 8,571,429 17,142 R57
Anancintes:
Granting of cash adwances -
net of collections and redass 24.3 ( L128,561,143) [ 24,785,461} { 30,724,403) 53,903,282 182,464,425
Leasc of office spaces 242 - - - 530,028 580,028
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Relared Party —_ Amount of Transactions Ctstanding Boelances
Catsgory _Motes . 2018 2017 2016 — 28 7
Othet inrveatees of
sharchobders:
Granting of cash advances —
net of collertions 243 ( 125,550,886) 41,713,191 3E,749,784) 711,332,714 337,883,600
Availment of advances -
] net of repayments 24.4 [ 170,261,053} 7,563,419 23,048,972 { 244,655,243) (  414,915,296)
Lease of office spaces 242 123,418 617,098 617092 123,418 194,513

Based on management’s assessment, there are no impairment losses required to be

- recognized on the outstanding receivables from related parties with these transactions as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, except for certain advances to associates as discussed in
Notes 24.3 and 28.2 (c).

24.2 Lease of Office Spaces

(@)

&)

Group as a Lessor

The Company leases portions of its investment property to certain related partics with
rental payments mutually agreed before commencement of the lease. The leases have
terms ranging from one to three years, with renewal options, and include annual
escalation rate of 5%. The revenues earnied from these related parties are included as
patt of Rental Income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 11). The related outstanding receivables from these transactions are presented
as part of Others under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Note 6).

The telated receivables from these transactions ate short-terrn, unsecured,
noninterest-bearing and are generally settled in cash upon demand.

Company a5 a Lessee

In 2012, the Company entered into several operating leasc agreements as a lessee with
Megaworld, covering showrooms for advertising and promotional use. The leases have
terms ranging from one to five years with renewal options, and include annual escalation
rates of 5% to 10%. Rental expense incurted in relation to these leases is presented as
part of Rental under Operating Expenses account in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 20). There was no outstanding balance from this

transaction as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.

In 2016, the Company entered into 2 lease agrecment as lessee with Megaworld for
the new space where the Company transferred its office in 2017. In relation to this, the
Company’s prepayments and deposits amounted P47.9 million and to P45.2 million as
of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are included as patt of Prepayments
and Others under the Prepayments and Other Current Assets account in the
consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 8). Total rent expense
recognized amounted to P67.5 million and 40.7 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively,
and is presented as part of Rental inder Operating Expenses account in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (see Note 20).



_73.

24.3 Advances to Related Parties

The Group grants advances to its associates and other related parties for working capital
putposes. These advances to related parties are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and repayable
in cash upon demand. The balances of these advances, shown as Advances to Related Parties
account in the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, are as follows:

2018 2017
Associates P 53,903,282 P 182,464,425
Other investee companies
of shateholders 711,332,714 837,883 600

P 765,235,996 P1.020.348,025
A summary of transactions with these related parties are as follows:

Am of T tione

2018 2017 2016
Associates!
Balance at beginning of year P 182,464,425 P 211,249,886 P 241,974,289
Effect of application '
of PFRS 9 ( 11,135,011} - -
As restated 171,325,414 211,249,886 241,574,289
Collections (125,902,066 (  28834702)(  30,938172)
Cash advances granted 12,325,247 49,241 213,769,
Impairment ( 3,849,313) - -
Balance at end of year P 53903282 P 182464425 P 211249880
Other investee companies
of sharcholders: _
Balance at beginning of year P  R37,883,600 P 796,170,409 P 834,920,293
Cash advances granted 141,462,681 128,915,926 79,364,859
Collections (_}_@,Ql_.i.s_ﬁl) { 87.202.733)( 118,114,843}
Balance at end of year P__ 711332704 P _837,883600 P 796,170,400

The Group also has short-term, unsecured and noninterest-bearing outstanding advances
to officers and employees amounting to P224.0 milfion and P196.9 million as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which ate presented as Advances to officers and
employees undet the Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note ). These are settled through salary deduction or liquidagon.

As at December 31, 2018, management assessed that certain advances to associates
amounting to P3.8 million are not recoverable [see Note 28.2 ()] As at December 31, 2017,
based on management’s assessment, the outstanding balances of Advances to related parties
are not impaired, hence, no allowance for impairment losses was recognized.

24.4 Advances from Relared Parties

The Group obtains advances from its parent company and other related parties for working
capital putposes, These advances are unsecured and are repayable in cash upon demand. Also,
except for the advances from Megaworld, these advances are noninterest-bearing.
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The balances of these advances, shown as Advances from Related Parties account in the

consolidated statements of financial position as at the end of the reporting periods, are as
follows:

2018 2017

Parent company P 757,239,595 P 524,640,870
Other investee companies
of shareholders 2 5,243 414,916,296

P1,001,894,838 P 939,557,160
A summary of transactions with these related parties are as follows:

Amount of Transactions

2018 2017 2016
Parent company:
Balance at beginning of year P 524,640,870 P 102,854,961 P 75,433,698
Cash advances obtained 274,246,676 410,802,780 20,520,439
Repayments { 49,266,395) - -
Interest expense 7,618,444 10,983,129 6,900,824
Balance at end of year P_ 757,239595 P 524640870 B 102854961
Other invesiee companies
of shareholders:
Balance at beginning of year P 414,916,296 P 422479715 P 445,528,687
Repayments { 291,022,777 { 12,989,000) ( 23,048,972)
Cash advances obtained 120,761,724 5425581 -
Balance at end of year P 244655243 P 414916296 P 422479715

The 2dvances from Megaworld bear annual interest of 6.0%. The interest expense incurred
in 2018, 2017 and 2016 ate presented as part of Finance costs under the Finance Costs and
Other Charges account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 19.2).

The related unpaid interest of the advances from Megaworld amounting to P39.4 million
a0d P31.9 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, is included as part of the
Advances from Related Parties account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

24.5 Commissions

Ta the normal course of business, the Group pays commissionis to Megaworld for marketing
services rendered by the latter with the purpose of increasing sales from its
on-going projects. The commissions are based on pre-agreed rates and ate payable once a
certain percentage of the contract price has been collected. Commissions incurred in 2018,
2017 and 2016 are presented as patt of Commissions under Operating Expenses in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 20).

There was no outstanding balance from this transaction as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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24.6 Services

In 2018 and 2017, the Company obtained services from parent company for a fixed
consideration. The amount of expenses incurred from such transaction is recorded as patt
of Miscellaneous under the Operating Expenses account in the 2018, 2017 and 2016
consolidated statements of comprehensive income while the related outstanding payable,
which is short-term, unsecured, noninterest bearing and settled in cash upon demand, is
presented as part of Others under Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Notes 15 and 20).

24.7 Key Management Personnel Compensation

The Group’s key management personnel compensation includes the following:

Note 2018 2017 2016
Short-term benefits P 23,613,997 P 21,297,376 P 19,974,925
Share-based employee
compensation 25.2 3,307,158 10,039,313 18,527,020
Post-employment
defined benefit 4,768,956 5,047,508 3,834,342

P 31690011 P 36,384,197 P 42.336,287

EQUITY AND REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES

25.1 Capital Stock

Capital stock as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 consists of:

Shares Ampopunt
Common shares — P1 par vaiue
Authorized 20000000000 P20,000,000,000
Issued and outstanding
Balance at end of year 10986000000 D10.986,000,000

On November 23, 1995, the SEC apptoved the listing of the Company’s common shares
totaling 150.0 million. The shares were initially issued at an offer prce of P19.50 per
common share. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, there are 4,231 and 4,256 holders of
the listed shares, respectively, which closed at P1.13 per share and P1.43 per share,
respectively.

The Company also made additional listings of 2.2 billion, 5.0 billion and 2.5 billion shares
on January 11, 2007, January 20, 2011 and Augast 14, 2013, respectively.
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25.2 Employee Stock Option Plan

On September 23, 2011, the BOD of the Company approved an Executive Stock Option
-Plan {the ESOP) for its key executive officers. This was approved on November 8, 2011
by stockholders holding at least 2/3 of the outstanding capital stock. The putpose of the
ESOP is to enable the key executives and senior officers of the Company, who are largely
responsible for its further growth and development, to obtain an ownership interest in the
Company, thereby encouraging long-term commitment to the Company. The ESOP 1s
being administered by the Executive Compensation Committee of the BOD.

Under the ESOP, the Company shall initially reserve for exercise of stock options up to
500.0 million common shates of the Company’s outstanding shares to be issued, in whole
or in patt, out of the authotized but urissued shares. Stock options may be granted within
10 years from the adoption of the ESOP and may be exercised within seven yeats from date
of grant. The exercise price shall be at a 15% discount from the volume weighted average
closing price of the Company’s shares for twelve months immediately preceding the date of
grant. The options shall vest within three yeats from date of grant and the holder of an
option may exercise only a third of the option at the end of each year of the three-year
period. The Company shall receive cash for the stock options.

As of December 31, 2018, pursuant to this ESOP, the Company has granted the option to
its key company executives to subscribe to 400.0 million shares of the Company. Ar option
holder may exercise in whole or in patt his vested option, provided that, an opton
exercisable but not actually exercised within a given year shall accrue and may be exercised
at any time thereafter but prior to the expiration of said option’s life cycle. A total of
383.3 million and 350.0 million options have vested as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,

respectively, but none of these have been exetcised yet by any of the option holders as at
the end of the reportmg periods.

The fair value of the option granted was estimated using a variation of the Black-Scholes
valnation model that takes into account factors specific to the ESOP. The pnnclpal
assutptions used in the valuation are shown below.

Grant dates :  February 16, 2012, February 18, 2013
Mazch 7, 2014, March 9, 2015,
July 14, 2016

Vesting period ends :  February 15, 2015, February 17, 2016.
Match 6, 2017, February 16, 2018
July 13, 2019

Option life - ©  Seven years

Share ptice at grant dates : P2.10, P2.09, P1.60, P1.63, P1.02

Exercise price at grant dates . P1.93, P1.69, P1.50, P1.65, P1.00

Average fair value at grant dates . P2.27 P0.74, P0.42, P0.34, P0.24

Average standard deviation of

share price returns © 57.10%, 20.85%, 16.16%,

12.16%, 15.29%

Average tisk-free investment rates v 2.46%, 2.14%, 2.46%, 2.51%, 2.59%

The underlying expected volatility was determined by reference to historical date of the
Company’s shares over a period of time consistent with the option life.
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A total of P3.3 million, P10,0 million and P18.5 million share-based employee compensation
is recognized for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 respectively, and is
included as part of Salaries and employee benefits under Operating Expenses in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Notes 20 and 22.1), and is credited
to Retained Earnings in the equity section of the consolidated statements of financial
position.

25.3 Redeemabie Preferred Shares

On September 4, 2012, TLCs BOD approved the additional subscriptions to
1,258.0 million preferred shares out of TLC's authorized capital stock as partial payment fot
certain patcels of land with total fair value of P1,338.2 million. The SEC approved the
issuance through exchange of certain parcels of land on April 17, 2013,

Generally non-voting, these preferred shares earn dividends at a fized annual rate of 2.5%
subject to the existence of TLC’s unrestricted retained earnings. The accrued interest on
these preferred shates amounting to P1.9 million and P2.4 million as at December 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively, is preseated as part of Accrued expenses under the Trade and Other
Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 13). The
telated interest expense recognized amounting to P28.4 smillicn, P28.9 million,
P29.0 miltion in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is presented as part of Finance costs
under the Finance Costs and Othet Charges account in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 19.2).

The preferred shares have a maturity of 10 years and shall be redeemed on every anniversary
date beginning on the sixth anniversary date until expiration of the tea-year petiod. Only
1/5 of the aggregate face value of preferred shares may be redeemed pet year during such
redemption pedod, with ali remaining shates to be redecmed on the 10% anniversary date.
The sixth anniversary date was on December 3, 2018. Accotdingly, 1/5 of the aggregate

face value amounting to P251.6 million has been redeemed as of December 31, 2018.
Based on PAS 32, the preferred shares are considered as financial liabilities due to fixed
tedemption date and mandatory dividends to the holders. Accotdingly, the redeemable

preferred shares ate recognized at fair value on the date of issuance. The fair values of the
redeemable preferred shares on the date of issuance approximate their par value.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Farnings per share amounts were computed as follows:

2017 2016
{As Restated — {As Restated —
o018 _seeNote?)  _sceNoted)
Basic:
Net profit attributable to
Company’s shareholders P 1,495,316,796 P 1,453,107,596 P 1,025,566,443
Divided by weighted number of

cutstanding common shares 19,986,000,000 10,986,000.000 10.986,000,000

P 0436 P 0132 P 0,093
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2017 2016
(As Restated — (As Bestated —
2018 see Note 2 see Note 2
Diluted:

Net profit attributable to

Company'’s sharcholders P 1,495,316,796 P 1,4533,107,5%6 P 1,025566,443
Divided by weighted number of

outstanding common shares  __11,357,527,777 _ 11,318.638,888 _ 11.252,666.666

P ______ 0122 P 0128 P 0.091

In relation to the approved ESOP for key executive officers, the vested options exercisable
by any of the option holders are considered as potentially dilutive shates as at the end of the
teporting petiods.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

27.1 Opertating Lease Commitments ~ Group as Lessor

The Group is a lessor under several operating leases covering real estate properties for
commercial use (see Note 11). The leases, except for the development rights which have a
tetm of 32 yeats, have terms ranging from 1 to 25 years, with renewal options, and include
annual escalation rates of 3% to 10%. The average annual rental covering these agreements

amounts to P367.3 million,

Future minimum lease payments receivable under these agreements are as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Within one year P 643,955,467 P 325,857,821 P 31,055,507
After one year but not
more than five years 2,556,726,047 1,251,264,214 229,291,977
Mote than five years 12,531,731 - 1,930.533936 __ 338,964,509

P_ 5113213245 P_3.516655971 P 390.311,793
27.2 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee

The Group is a lessec under several operating leases covering office spaces and
condominium units for administrative use. The leases bave terms ranging from one to five
yeats with renewal options, and include 2 3% to 10% annual escalation rate. The average
annual rental covering these agreements amounts to P115.8 million. The future minimum
rental payables under these non-cancelable leases as of the end of the reporting periods are
presented below.

2018 2017 2016
- Within one year P 65,930,401 P 104,260,390 P 2,485,141
After one year but not
mote than five years 172,815,440 238,745,459 2.101,270

P___ 238745841 P___343005849 P 4,586,411
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27.3 Others

Thete ate other commitments and contingent liabilities that may arise in the normal coutse
of the Group’s opetations that ate not reflected in the consolidated financial statements. As
of the end of the reporting petiod, management is of the opinion that losses, if any, from
these items will not have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks in refation to financial instruments. The
Group’s financial assets and financial Habilites by category ate summarized in
Note 29.1. The main types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative
purposes. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to atre
desctibed below and in the succeeding pages.

28.1 Market Risk
(@)  Foreign Currengy Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are cartied out in Philippine pesos, its functional
currency. Exposutes to cutrency exchange rates arise mainly from the Group’s
United States (U.S.} dollar-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Philippine peso cash
flows are monitored.

US. dollar denominated financial assets, translated into Philippine pesos at
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 closing rate, pertain to cash and cash equivalents
amounting to P118.9 million, P107.5 million and P75.0 million, respectively. The
Group has no U.S. doliar denominated financial liabilities in 2018, 2017 and 2016.

If the Philippine peso had strengthened against the U.S. dollar, profit before tax would
have decreased by P13.2 million, P14.0 million and P2.7 million in 2018, 2017 and
2016, respectively. If the Philippine peso had weakened against the U.S. dollar, then
this would have increased profit before tax in 2018, 2017 and 2016 by the same
amouant. This sensitivity of the net result for the year assumes 2 + /-11.1%, +/-13.0%
and +/- 12.9% change of the Philippine peso/U.S. dollar exchange rate for the years
ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These petcentages have been
derermined based on the average market volatility in exchange rates, using standard
deviation, in the previous 12 months for 2018 and 2017 estimated at 99% level of
confidence. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s foreiga currency financial
instruments held at the end of the reporting petiod.

Exposutes to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of
transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is consideted to be reptesentative of the
Group’s foreign curtency risk.
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Interest Rate Risk

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Gtoup is exposed to changes in matrket interest
tates through its cash and cash equivalents and long-term intetest-bearing loans, which
are subject to varable interest tates (sec Notes 5 and 14). All other financial assets
and liabilities have fixed rates.

The sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax is analyzed based on reasonably
possible change for the year to a reasonably possible change in interest rates of
+/- 1.38%, +/- 0.52%, and +/- 0.26% in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively . These
changes ate considered to be reasonably possible based on obsetvation of current
matket conditions. The petcentage changes in rates have been determined based on
the average market volatility in intetest rates, using standard deviation, in the previous
12 months at 2 99% confidence level. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s
financial instruments held at the end of each reporting period, with effect estimated
from beginning of the year. All other variables held constant, if the interest rate
increased by 1.38%, 0.52% and 0.26% in 2018, 2017 and 2016, profit before tax
would have decreased by P31.5 million, P29.6 million and P5.3 million in 2018, 2017
and 2016, respectively. Conversely, if the interest rate decreased by the same
percentages, profit befote tax in 2018, 2017 and 2016 would have been higher by the
same amount.

282 Credit Risk

Credit sk is the risk when a counterpatty fafls to discharge an obligation to the Group. ‘The
Group is exposed to this risk for vardous financial instruments, adsing from granting loans
and receivables to customers and related parties and by placing deposits.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties,
identified either individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk
conuols. Where available at reasonable cost, external ratings and/ot reports on customers
and other counterparties are obtained and used. The Group’s policy is to deal only with
creditworthy counterparties.

The maximum credit tisk exposure of financial assets and contract assets is the carrying
amount of the related assets as shown in the consolidated statements of financial position,

as summarized below.

2017
(As Restated —
Notes 2018 sec Note 2)

Cash and cash equivalents 5 P 1,771,302,129 P 3,158,177,984
Trade and other

receivables — net 6 4,660,544,957 2,913,878,875
Contract assets 18.2 3,530,180,685 2,360,534,068
Advances to related parties 233 765,235,996 1,020,348,025
Refundable deposits 13 118,009,922 100,812,423

P10,845,273,689

P 9,553,751,375
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None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements,
except for cash and cash equivalents and installment contract receivables as descabed below.

(@

(%)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The credit risk for cash is considered negligible since the counterparties are reputable
banks with high quality external credit ratings. '

As part of Group policy, bank deposits are only maintained with reputable financial
institutions. Cash in banks which are insured by the Philippine Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to 2 maximum coverage of P0.5 million per depositor per banking
institution, as provided for under R.A. No. 9576, Amendment to Charter of Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corporation, are stll subject to credit risk.

The Group applies the low credit risk simplification. The probability of default and
loss given defaults are publicly available and are considered to be low credit risk
investments. It is the Group’s policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a
12-month basis. However, when there has been 2 significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance for impairment will be based on the lifetime ECL.
The Group uses the ratings from Standard and Poor’s to determine whethet the debt
instrument has significantly increased in credit risk and to estimate ECL.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, impairment allowance is not material.

Trade and Other Receivabies and Contract Assels

Credit risk of teceivables and contract assets from sale of real estate propetties is
managed primarly through credit teviews and analyses of receivables on a regular
basis. The Group undertzkes credit review procedutes for all installment payment
terms. Customer payments are facilitated through the use of post dated checks.
Exposure to doubtful accounts is not substantial as title to real estate properties are
not transferred to the buyers untit full payment of the amortization has been made
and the requirement for remedial procedures is negligible considering the Group’s
buyers’ profile.

The Group has used the simplified approach in measuring ECL and has calculated
ECL based on lifetime ECL. Therefore, the Group dogcs not track changes in credit
tisk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each teporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking information specific to the buyers and
the economic envitronment.

The Group considers trade receivables in default when contractual payment are 30
days past due, except for certain citcumstances when the reason for being past due is
due to reconciliation with customers of payment records which are administrative in
nature which may extend the definition of defauit to beyond 90 days. Furthermore,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or cxternal information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group.

An impaitment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix
to measure ECL. The provision rate is based on days past due of ll customers as they
have similar loss patterns. The credit enhancements such as advance payment and
value of the real estate for sale are considered in the calculation of impairment as
recoveties.
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The management determined that there is nio required ECL to be recognized since the
real estate sold is collateralized to the related receivable atsing from sale. Therefore,

there is no expected loss given default as the recoverable amount from subsequent
tesale of the real estate is sufficient.

Other components of receivables such as rental receivables are also evaluated by the
Group for impairment and assessed that no ECL should be provided. Rentai
receivables are secured to the extent of advance rental and rental deposit received from
the lessees, which are in average equivalent to six months.

(¢} Advances to Related Parties

ECL for advances to related parties ate measuted and recognized using the liquidity
approach. Management determines possible impairment based on the related patty’s
ability to repay the advances upon demand at the reporting date taking into
consideration the historical defaults from the related parties. Management assessed
that the outstanding receivables from certain related parties as of December 31, 2018
and 2017 are not recoverable since these related parties have no capacity to pay the
advances upon demand. Accordingly, impairment losses amouating to P3,849,313
was recognized in 2018 and is presented as part of Miscellaneous under Operating
Expenses in the 2018 consolidated statement of comprehensive income. In addition,
impairment loss amounting to P11,135,011 was tecognized as an adjustment to
opening balance of Retained Earnings account (see Note 24.3).

The Group does not consider any significant risks in the temaining advances to related
patties since Megaworld and other related parties, whose credit risks for liquid funds
are considered negligible, have committed to financially suppoxt these related parties
as part of AGP’s long-term corporate strategy. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
impairment allowance is not material.

28.3 Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows due in 2 day-to-day
business. Liquidity needs are monitored in vatious time bands, on a day-to-day and
week-to-week, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30-day projection. Long-term needs for a
six-month and one-year period ate identified monthly.

The Group maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 60-day pertods.
Excess cash is invested in time deposits or short-term marketable securities. Funding for
long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to sell long-term financial assets.

As of end of the reporting periods, the Group’s financial liabilities have contractual
maturities which are presented below and in the succeeding page.

o Cugemt bt L
Within 6tol12 15 Later than
_GMonthe _ Monthe = Xears SYears
Degember 51, 2018

Interest-beating loane . T 005840531 P  928,349361 P OZTIBAGETOS P
Trade and otiver payables 1,402,295,584 1,552,493.002 -
Advances from selated parties 1,001,894,838 -
Due o joint ventuse partness - - 395 424,643
Redeemahble prefarred shares - 268,957 813 772,152,973 -
Accrued dividends on preferred shares - 1,872,369 - -
Retention payable - 40383531 - 320,919,633

PA310030953 P 279256076 P_3905,943319 P__E20919633 -
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Cuerent - Nog-cument
Within 6o 12 15 Later than
_ GMonthse _  Monthe Years 5%ears
Decgmber 31,2017 — Ag Restated

Interest-bearing loan F 666224710 P 654,843,686 T 4212484397 P
Trade and other payables 1,015,741 852 1,316,803,594 - -
Advances from related pactes 939,557,146 - - . -
De to joint ventare partosrs - - 396,374,951 -
Redeemable preferred shates - 274,744 557 1,041,110,786 -
Accrued dividends on prefesred shaces - 2,363,845 - B
Retertion payable R 62800573 - 771,756,301

B2521523728 B 2311556255 P 5749970134 E 771756301

The above contractual maturities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ from the
carrying values of the liabilities at the reporting dates.

CATEGORIES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

29.1 Carrying Amounts and Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The carrying amounts and fair values of the categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities presented in the consolidated statements of financial position are shown below.

2017
2018 . (AsRestared —see Note )
Cazrving Pair {arrying Pair
_Motes, _ Values Values Yalues Valucs
Fingrcial assets
At amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents 5 F 1,/7,302,129 P 1,771,302,129 P 3,158,177.,9684 P 3,158,177,084
Trade and other receivables — nct 6 4,6606,544,957 4,660,544 957 2,913 878,875 2,913 878875
Advances to related parties . 243 765,235,996 765,235,996  1,020,348,025 1,020,348,025
Refundable deposity 13 _ 118005922 11R009.922 _ 100812423 100,812,423
P_7,315003,004 P_2,315,003,004 P 7193217307 P 7.193.217.507
Fingncial lisbifities
At amortized cost
Interest-bearing loan 14 P 4,060,772,360 P 3,988,865,408 P 5055,920487 P 4,993,005,727
‘Trade and other payables 15 2,954,788,586 2,054,788,586  2,332,545,445 2,332,345, 445
Advances from selated partes 24.4 1,00,894,838  1,000,894838 939,557,166 939,557,166
Due to joint venture DIIMETs 16 395,424,643 305,424,643 396,374,951 396,374,951
Retention payzble 15,17 261,303,164 B61,303,164 834,556,574 834,556,874
Redeemabile preferred shares 25 1,006,390,320 §77,096,033  1,257,987,900 1,056,292,185
Acirued dividends on proferred shares 15 _ 4872388 _ 1872369 2 363 845 2 363,845

P10,282,446,280 P_10,081,245,041 P10.319.315.668 P 10,354 786,193

See Notes 2.4 and 2.10 for a desctiption of the accounting policies for each category of
financial instruments. A desciption of the Group’s risk management objectives and policies
for financial instruments is provided in Note 28.
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29.2 Offscrting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitics

The Group has not set-off financial instruments in 2018 and 2017 and does not have
relevant offsetting arrangements. Currently, financial assets and financial habilities ate
settled on a gtoss basis; however, each party to the financial instrament (particularly related
parties) will have the option to settle all such amounts on a net basis in the event of default
of the other partty through approval by both parties’ BOD and stockholders or upon
instruction by the Group. As such, the Group’s outstanding advances to related parties
amouating to P765.2 million and P1,020.3 million can be offset by the amount of
outstanding advances from related parties amounting to P1,001.9 million and P939.6 million
as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 24).

The Group has cash in cettain local banks to which it has outstanding loans {see Note 14).
In case of the Group’s default on loan amortization, cash in bank amounting to
P774.5 million and P2,362.2 million can be applied against its outstanding loans amounting
to P4,060.7 million and P5,055.9 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively
(see Note 14).

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT AND DISCLOSURES
30.1 Fair Value Hicrarchy

In accordance with PERS 13, Fair Vaiye Measurement, the fait value of financial assets and
financial liabilities and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a recurring
or non-recurting basis and those assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for
which fair value is disclosed in accordance with other televant PFRS, are categorized into
three levels based on the significance of inputs used to measuze the fair value. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities
that an entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) ot indirectly (Le., derived from
prices); and,

) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on the
lowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of determining the market vaiue at Level 1, 2 market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regulatly available from an exchange, dealer, broket, industry
group, pricing service, or tegulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and reguilarly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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30.2 Financial Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for which Fair Value is
Disciosed

The table below summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s financial assets and
financial habilities which are not measured at fair value in the 2018 and 2017 consolidated

statements of financial position but for which fair value is disclosed.

— Levell =~ __Level2 =~ __ Leveld Total
2018:
Financial Assers:
Cash and cash equivalents P1,771,302,129 P - P - P 1,771,302,129
Trade and other receivables — net . S 4,660,544,957 4,660,544.957
Advances to related parties - - 765,235,996 765,235,996
Refundable deposits - - 118,009,922 118,009 922
PATMA0210 P - PASA790878  P.7,315003,004
Financial Liabilicics:
Interest-bearing loans P - P - P 3988865408 P 3988865408
Trade and other payables - - 2,954,788,586 2,954,788 586
Advances from relared parties - - 1,001,824,338 1,001,894,838
Due to joint venture partners - - 595,424,643 395,424,643
Retention payahle - - 861,303,164 861,303,164
Redeemable prefereed shares - - 877,096,033 877,096,033
Accrued dividends on preferred shares - - 1.872.369 18723469
P__- B__- P10,051245,041 P10,081,245,041
2017 — As Restated:
Financial Assers:
Cash and cash equivalents P3,158,177984 P - P ; P 3,158,177,984
Trade and other receivables — net - - 2,913 878,875 2,913,878,875
Advances to related parties - - 1,020,348,025 1,020,348,025
Refundable deposits - - _ 100812423 ___ 100,812.423
23158177984 P = B 4035039523 L 7393217307
Financial Liabilities:
Interest-bearing loans P - P - P 4993095727 P 40993095727
Trade and other payables - - 2,332,545,445 2,332,545,445
Advances from related parties - - 939,557,166 039,557,166
Due to joint venture partners - - 396,374,951 396,374,951
Retention payable - - 834,556,874 834,556,874
Redeemable preferred shares - - 1,056,292,185 1,056,262,185
Accrued dividends on preferred shares - - 2363 845 2,563,845
P__- B P10554786,195 P10554786,193

For financial assets with fair values included in Level 1, management considers that the
carrving amounts of those shori-term financial instruments approximate their fair values

due to their shott-term duration.

The fair values of the financial asscts and financial liabilities included in Level 3, which are
not traded in an active market is determined based on the expected cash flows of the
underlying nert asset or liability based on the instrument where the significant inputs requited
to determine the fair value of such instroments are not based on observable market data.
For those with short tetm duration, the carrying amount approgimates the fair value.
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30.3 Investment Property Measured at Cost for Which Fair Value is Disclosed

In estimating the fair value of these properties, management takes into account the market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the assets in their highest and
best use. Based on management assessment, the best use of the Group’s investment
property is its curtent use. The valuation process was conducted by the Group's
management with respect to the determination of the inputs such as the size, age, and
condition of the land and buildings, and the compatable prices in the corresponding
property location.

The fair value of the investment property was determined based on the following
approaches:

(z} Fair Valye Measurement for 1and and Land Develspment and Inmprovements

The Level 3 fair value of land and land developments and improvements was derived
through appraisals by independent valuation specialists using market-based vahation
approach where prices of comparable properties are adequate for specific market factors
such as location and condition of the property. '

(%) Fair Valne Measurement for Building and Improvements

The fair value of the Group’s building and improvements, which ate classified under
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, is determined by calculating the present value of the
cash inflows anticipated until the end of the life of the investment propetty using a
discount rate applicabile to these assets.

(iti) Fair Value Measurernent of Construstion in Progress

The Level 3 fair value of the construction in progress was determined using the cost
apptoach that reflects the cost to a matket participant to construct an asset of
compatable usage, construction standards, design and layout, adjusted for obsolescence.
The more significant inputs used in the valuation include direct and indirect costs of
construction such as but not limited to, labor and contractor’s architectaral and
engineering fees, insurance and legal fees. These inputs were derived from various
suppliers and contractor’s quotes, price catalogues, and construction price indices.
Under this approach, higher estimated cost used in the valuation will result in higher fair
value of the properties.

Also, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value hierarchy in 2013.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensute the Group’s ability to continue as

. a going concern and tc provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure,
i.e., equity and lizbilides. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the Hght of changes in economic conditions and the tisk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In ordet to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt. The Group also monitors its debt coverage ratio (DCR) in each of the reporting
periods. As at Decemnber 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group’s DCR is 1.60:1.00 and 1.95:1.00,
respectively.
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The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented on
the face of the consolidated statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting
petiods under review is summarized as follows:

2017
(As Restated —
2018 —seeNote2)
Total Habilities P 14,870,123,288 P 15,145,842,191
Total equity 31.159.907,878 29,442 568,228
Debt-to-equity ratio '  048:1.00 0.51:1.00

32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The reconciliation of Habilities arising from financing activities in 2018 and 2017 is presented
below. The details of net cash flows are presented in the consolidated statersents of cash

flows.

Interest-bearing  Advances from

Loans Related Parties
—f{SeeNote 15) _{(SeeNote2d)  Total
Balance as of January 1, 2018 P 5055929487 P 939,357,166 P  5,995486,653

Cash flows from Anancing activities:

Additional borrowings 50,000,000 395,008,400 445,008,400
Interest expense - 7,618,444 7,618,444
Repayments of borrowiags {1,045157,127) (____340289.172) (_ 1,385446.299)

Balance as of December 31,2018 PF_ 4,060,772,360 P _ 1,001,894.83% P 5062,667,198

Balance as of January 1, 2017 P 3927083333 P 525,334,676 P  4,452,418,009
Cash flows from financing activites:
Additional borrowings 2,000,000,000 416,228,361 2,416,228,361
Interest expense - 10,983,129 10,983,129
Repayments of borrowings 871,153,846) 12,589,000% ( £84,142,B46)

Balance 2s of December 31, 2017 P 5055970487 P 039557166 P & 095 486.653

33. EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

On February 20, 2019, R.A. 11232, Revised Corporation Code of the Philpppines (Code), was
enacted and signed into law. The R.A. amended certain provisions of the Corporation Code
of the Philippines effective March 8, 2019. Among the amendments, the removal of the
50-year limitation to corporate term for stock cotporations is deemed to be the most
televant to the Group. The management deemed further that other amendments and new
provisions contained in the revised Code are not material to the Group.
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Subsidiaty of Megaworld Cotporation)
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DECEMBER 31, 2018
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{1) Supplementary Schedules to Financial Statements
(Annex 68-E, SRC Rule 68)

Schedule
A Financial Assets (Marketable Securities)
B Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties
and Principal Stockholders {Other than Related Parties)
Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Hliminated
during the Consolidation of Financial Statements
Intangible Assets - Other Assets
Long-Tetm Debt
Indebtedness to Related Parties
Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuets
Capital Stock

O

T Mg

(2) Reconciliation of Retzined Eatnings Available for Dividend Declaration
(3} Map Showing the Relationship Between and Amoeng Related Parties

(4) List of Standards and Tnterpretations under Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
as of December 31, 2018
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GLOBAL-ESTATL RESORTS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
{4 Subsidiary af Megaworld Cotporation)
SCHEDULE B. - AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, RELATED PARTIES AND PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS (OTHER THAN RELATED PARTIES)
DECEMBER 31,2018
{Amaonnts in Phifinpine Pesas}

- -
Deductions Ending Balance
: . Balamnce at Beginning of] .
Name and Designation of Debror 5&:@ 2 Additions A Collecred R Writtenotf Cursent Not Careea Balance at End of Year

Amaunis Due from Related Pacies

FEMI F 3508B 400 T - P - 1 35,683,400 PP - B - B -

FLRC 25627956 - - 24,262,920 1,365,036 - 1,363 3364

FERSAT 409221 758 - . 41,703,069 T.514,600 - FA18680

FESL 39232001 - 39,232,001 - - -

BNHGCI 32,604,320 49,220 - - 32,743,530 - 32,743,530

N1 - 11,931,130 - - 11,951,130 - 1951, 130

MECG 324 897 - - i24,897 - 324897

Other related partics 337 843600 141,402,681 . 268,013,569 - 711,332,713 - 711332713
TOTAL P 1020348025 P 183,737,928 P 268,013569 P 140,896,380 P 763,235,996 D - P 765,235,996
Advances to Offfcers and Employees
tarceln, Catherine P - T - P - T - P - P - 3 -
Romualdez, Jennifee 935,577 - ) 9,455 - 926,123 - 926,123
Binag Macaraig, Mclady 620,521 - 25,361 - 535,160 B 535,160
Globio, Salvino 47,447 - 39,145 - 8,34 - 8,341
[Taguisar,, Hennie 2,543,320 2,185,002 - - 5,768,331 - 5,768,331
Sarmson. Ma Rica 216,337 - - - 216,337 - 216,337
Sanchez, Christopher COBMT - - - 8,947 - 8,947
Villaneva, [anic 221,033 200073 - - 421,107 - 421,107
Bravo, Melissa Anne 181,240 5,551 - - 186,793 - 186,793
Eirn, Meliza Anne 223025 - 84,157 - 129,768 - 139,768
Catbon, Thomas Ceorge M. o862 - - 3,562 - 60,862
David, Chatt 5. 216,107 - - - 210,107 - 26,17
[arung, Fred 235,162 - 5,371 - 125,791 - 135,791
Mangubat, Tehpe 252,143 - 41,645 - 70,498 - 170,498
Saunat, Kes Norwin 221,033 - TE,436 - 144,597 . 144,597
Lopesz, Gervinea 359,434 . - 96,702 - 262,732 - 262,732
Chintanz, Allan 310,147 - - 310,147
Hlerrera, Chostopher AR, D63 - 121,114 - . 359 845 - 350,840

TOTAL P 7,170,247 P 3300629 T 683,388 P - P 9877480 P - P 9,567,442




Fchedule © - Amounts Rereivable [

GLOBAL-ESTATE RESOETS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

1}

(A Sub

¥ O A, &

o Payable to Related Pacties which arc Fliminated during the Consclidation
Decetrber 31, 2018

{Amonntr ip PHiEEpine Pesed]

idd O
P

of Financial Soaterpents

inni Deductions Ending Balance
Name and Designation of Debtor Balance at Beginniny of Additions = S . £ Balance at End of Year
Year “Amounts Collected || Aroounts Written-off Current | Not Curvent
Amounts Receivable from Related Parties Eliminated During Consolidation:
[il Estate Property, Tne, P 7652268333 P 215,450,655 I P P 786718988 T - B 7,867.715,908
Newvo Sierra Holdings Corp. 353,022 - 353,022 - 353,022
Fil- Estate Urban Development Corparation 140,081,576 1,403,805 141,487,380 - 141,487,380
Qceanfront Properiies 175,064,704 40,60%,755 216,574,459 - 216,574,452
'I'win Lakes Corporation 1,740,891 78,453,596 80,194,487 - 80,194,487
Southwonds Mall, Inc. 436,017,472 146,464,085 584,485,558 - 584,485,558
Fil-Estatz Golf Developanent, Ine, - - - - -
Megaworld Global state Inc. 4,692,753 120,610 4,813,363 - 4,813,363
Giohal Homes and Comeuaitics Jne. 11,755 106,189,776 106,501,531 - 106,501,531
P 8,413,130,506 P 588,998,282 r P 9,002,128,788 P - P 9,002,128, 788
Arnounts Payable to Related Parties Eli d During Consolid
Megaworle Global Eatate Inc. 3 A5 P - r 1,413,141 P [ - r - P
P 1413141 P - P 1415141 P P - P - P -




GLORAT-FSTATE RESORTS, 1NC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
{4 Subsichiury of Meg I Cey P

Schedile 7 - Inomygble/ Grker Asscts
Dacembor 31, 28

[elemssms fir PhiGpmine Pesory
Charged to Cost and H Charged to Other HO:her Changes Add.iu‘ons‘ u
Descriptinn Beginning Balince Additions at Cost Expeoses Aecounts (Deductione) Ending Balanee

Dievefopraent Rights

I3

74,323,765

P - L2680 P -

P

265,076,839




GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
{4 Subsidiary of Megaworld Corporation)
/ Schedule B - Long Term Delr
Deccmber 31, 2018
{Ammorints in Plilippine Peror)

Amount shown under
Amount captivn " Cusrent portion of Amonnt shown vnder
Tidde of Issue and type of authorized by long-term debt" in refated || caption "Eong-Term Debt” in
obligaton indenture balance sheet related balance sheet

Bank loan P 4,060,772,360 P 1574466462 P 2,486,305,398




GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARTES
{A Subsidiary of Megaworld Corporatdon)
SCHEDULE F - INDEBTEDNESS TQO RELATED PARTIES (LONG-TERM LOANS FROM RELATED COMPANIES)
DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Balance at Balance at
Name of Related Party Beginning of Year End of Period
Megaworld Corporation P 524,640,870 P 757,239,595
Others 414,916,206 244,555,243

TOTATL P 939,557,166 P 1,001,8%4,838




GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
4 Subsidrsry of Megaworld Gomrstion)
SCULIMILE H - CAPITAL STOCK
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Namber of Shares Isswed
and oum:,,ﬂ;: :s Shown|  Number of Shaces Numbet of $hares Held by
. Number of Shares & HReserved for Qptions,
Title of [ssne . Under the Related .
Authorized .. VWarrants, Conversion .
Statement of Conditon and Other Rights Related Parties Ditectors, Officers Others
Caption and Employees
Comeaon Shares 20,00, K00, 000 10, 556,000,000 - 9,13,850,658 2,?22!6_54 1,93‘)1426,637




GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of Megawordd Corporation)
Reconciliation of Retained Eamings Available for Dividend Declaration
Faor the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Unappropriated Retained Earnings at Beginning of Year P 3,454,324,603

Prior Years® Outstanding Reconciling Ttems, net of tax
Deferred tax assets { 83,509,330 4

Unappropriated Retained Earnings at Beginning of Year, as Adjusted 3,370,725,204

Net Profit Realized During the Year
Net profit per audited financial scatements 1,169,610,157

Less: Non-actual /unrealized income, net of 1ax
Deferred tax income during the year { 5,722,475}

Add: Non-actual expensc, net of tax
Share-based employee compensation 2,315,011 1,166,202,0653

Ungppropriatcd Retained Earnings Available for
Dividend Declaration at End of Year P 4,536,927,957




ALLIANCE GLOBAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule C - Map Showing the Relationship Between Alliance Global Group, Inc.
and its Related Parties

Alliance Global Group, Inc.
(Pacent Company)

December 31, 2018
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Subsidiaics™*** Subsidiacies* °
N 0] )
wwstee schedule C-5 e subedle C-1 o

“Teavelless Intemational Hotel
Group, Inc. and Subsidiaties™™

1)

Adasns Propectics, Inc.
]

*esee sebecile C-2

| |

Golden Arches Development, Geeenspring
Inc. and Subsidiaries* =

#onsre sibedule C-3

-

Holdings Propertics, Ltd.
=S o ]

bt
nvestment Teavellers Group, Ltd. Infracorp Development,

Shiok Success International, Inc.

[0

Dew Dreams Intemational, Inc.

O]

Venezia Universal, Ltd.

Boracay Newcoast Resorts, Inc.

o

Pacific Coast Megacity, Inc.
0]

First Centeo, Inc. Alliance m_owﬁm_“oé Cayman Alliance Global Beands, Inc. Megaworld Resort Estates, lnc. ° Westside Gity Resorts Wosld, Inc.
@ [ m [ ° [0) W
Oceanic Realy Group Int) Toc. Toumsquace Development, Inc.
* it @ “Purple Farningos Amusernent
I and Leisure Corposation
[
ERA Real Estate Exchange, Inc. Gotien DandaATI Realty
o Corporation Red Falcon Amusement and
i) Leisure Corporation
[
20 _
— - Great Armerican Foods, nc.
MeKens ik Iatemational, Py Shiok Success Intemational, Ltd-
d. 3
~® o
@ McKester Ametica, Inc.
® Dew Dreams International, Lid.
®
Newtown Land Pactners, Inc.
O]
Legend
(1) Subsidiary A Megaworld Corporation £ Manila Bagshose Property Holdings, foc. K Megaword Global Estates, Inc. P Sonoma Premier Land, Inc.
@ B Adams Propertics,Inc. G Wesiside City Resorts World, Inc. L Megaword Contal Propecties, Inc. Q  Gilmore Propery Macketing Assccites Jnc
@  Jointy Contolled Bniity ¢ First Centeo, Inc. H  Touwnsquare Development, Inc. M Shiok Success International, Ltd. R EmpendorInc.
D Newtown Land Partness, Inc. I Megaworkd Resort Estates, Ine N Dew Dreams Intemational, Lid.
E__ Teavelless 1 Flotel Group, Ine. }_ Toin Lakes Corporation O FilEstate Propedties, In




ALLIANCE GLOBAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule C-1 - Map Showing the Relationship Between Alliance Global Group, Inc.
and Megaworld Corporation Group

December 31, 2018
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ALLIANCE GLOBAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule C-4 - Map Showing the Relationship Between and
Among Megaworld and Global Estate Resorts Inc. Group

December 31, 2018
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Glabal-Fsrate Resorts, Inc. and Subsidianes

(A Subsidiacy of Mey 4 Corporation)

Schedule of Philippine Fi ial Repordng jzrds and Tnterprelations
Adopted by the Secuarities and Exchange C ission and the
Fi {al Reporting Standards Council as of December 31, 2008

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERFPRETATIONS Adopted Not Nt
Adopted | Applicable
Frameworl for the Preparation and P ton, of Fi jub & 7
Coreeptual Brarmovork Phase b Objoctrees and Qualitstive Characteeistics v
Practice % M: C ¥ o
Phifippine Financial Reporting Sandards (PFRS)
First-time Adoption of Plohppine Finznci) Reproedng Stndands F
Amendments to VEKS 1: Additional Exemptions for Fiest-time Adoptens v
Amendments to PERS 1 Limited Exemptcn from Comparative PFRS T Disclosures for
FFRS1 Firgt-time Adnplers '
(Revised) | amendments to PIRS 1: Severe Hyperwilation and Reroval of Fixed Dae for
Fisst-time Adoptess 4
Amendments to PERS 1: Govemnment Loang s
Amendments o PFRS 1: Deletion of Short-terrn Excmptions v
Share-bascd Payment ¥
| Amendments 1o PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations s
z
FFRS Amecndments o PITS 2 Geoup Cash-setled Share-besed Payment Transactions v
Amendiments to PFRS 2 Classificarion and M, rent of Share-based T’aymcutTransartims e
Bust Hnaty
PFRS 3 usiness Combinanoms s
(Revised) | Amendment to PERS 3: Remeasurement ol Previously 1leld Intereats in a Jowt Operation y
(effeative Jawnary 1, 2018)
Insumance Contracts '
PFRS 4 Amendments to PAS ¥ and PFRS 4: Financial Cuarantes Conlracts v
Armendments 1o PERS 4 Applying PIRS 9, Tinancial Tnitsnienis with PERE 4, Trswrames .
rndraefs
PFRS 5 Non-current, Asscts | Leld for Sele and Diseoatinued Operstions s
PFR5 G Exploration for and ) ivaluation of Miners, Resources o
Financil Istoaments: Diselosures S
Amendments to FERS 7: Transition s
Amendmonts to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Finandial Assets N
smendsTents to DAS 39 and PRRS T: Rodassification aof Financial Assets - Tiffertive Date and y
Transition
PFRE T .
Ammendments to PFRS % Impeoving Dritclosures aboun Finanecal Tnstvments e
Amendments to PFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfors of Finsuial Assets 7
Amendments to TIFRS T: Disclosures ~ Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Ligailitics v
Amendments to PFRS T Mandatory Fi fective Date of FTRS 9 and Trausiten Disclosurcs v
PFRS 8 Cperating Segmeats v
Financia] Tnscouments (2014} s
PFRS 3 anendments to PERS 9: Prepapment Featurcs with Neguive C peTrsaLion®
epay 20 O <
(etfautive Jameary 1, 2079)
Crmsolidated Financial Seatements v
Amerdments o PIRS 16: Tooston Gusdance v
PFRS10 | fmendments o PERS 10: Jnvestment | tntities v
Amendments o PIRS 10: Sale or Canecbution uf Assess between an Tnvestor and its Associate y
o Jaint Venture® ffective e deferved indefinitely)
Amendments to PERS 10; Tnvestment Tntitles - Applynyg Lac Consolidarion Cxception v
Totnt Areangements s
Amendmenis (o PFES 11 Transidun Guidence v
PFRS 11 ] . L - . .
Amendments to PERS 11: Accounring far Acquisitions of Interests in Juint Cpemtions s
Amendment o PFRS 11: Remeasurement of Previously Held Toterests in a Joint Opetation
(gffeesive fawmary 1, 2019) v




PHILIFFINE FINAMNCIAL REPORTING $TANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted Not Not
Adupted | Applicable
Dhistlusure of Tuterests i Other Entitics '
Amepdments 1o PERS 12 Lrmsition Suidance v
PPRS 12 :
Amendments to PFRS 120 Juvestwenl Estitics '
Amendmeats to PFRS 10: Invesuoenl Gudties — Applying the Consolidanen Exception v
PFRS 13 Fair Yalue Measurement ¥
PFES 14 Fegulatory Deferral Accouats v
PFRS 15 |Reveqyce from Contract with Cuswmers v
PHERS b6 |Leases* {effectior Jammary {, 2009) v
Philippine Accoumting Stadards (FAS)
Prescriation of Financial Satements v
Amendments to 145 32 and PAS 10 Puttable Financial Tnszruments and Olbligativms fosieg on
Pas1 Tagendation s
Revised) |
Amendments to PAS 1: Peesentation of Ikems of Other Comprehensve Inzome v
Armendments to PAS 1: Dhsclosure Initiative v
PASZ laveatonies '
Staternent of Cash Flows v
PAST
Amendments ta PAS 7 Disclosure Tirfative ¥
PAS S Mcoombing Podicies, Changes i Aceounting Bsnmaies and Ermrs /
PAS 10 Events Afer the Reporting Period s
PAS T Censtruction Contmets 4
[neeme Taxes '
PAS 12 Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tas: Recovery of Undedying Assets v
| Amendments to A5 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tox Assets fur Uwealized 1.osses s
Properly, Flang 2ad Lgupiment s
PAS 16 Armeralinents to PAS 16 Bearer Plants v
Amendments to PAS 16 Clanfieation of Acesplable Merhods of Depreciation and v
. Amortisinon
PAS 17 T.zazes N
PAS 19 Employee Benefies v
{Revised} | ordments o PAS 1% Defuwd Benefic Plans - Employee Contributons v
PAS 20 Accounting far Croverunent Ciranes aad Diseloguee of Government Assistancs 4
‘The Effects oF Chamges in Sereipn Foachange Rates v
PAS 21 -
A Amemus: Net T i A Foregm Openmtion o+
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs v
(Revised) | Amendment t 145 3t Sligihility for Capinlization 7
PAS 24 ;
Tary Disclos v
(Resised} Telated 1ty Disclosures
PAS 26 Aczountiag and Reporting by Retirement Benelil Plans v
Separate Zmancial Statevents 7
PASD? - -
(Revised) Amendments to PAS 27, Investment Enntics ¥
Aumendments to PAS 27 Bauiry Method in Sepraae Finanoal Sraeements <
Iovestments in Assorintes and Joint Ventures s
Amendmments bo TFRS 100 Sale or Coneribution ul Asscis berween an Tnvestor and its Associzic v
o Joine Ventre* {ifewite da dyferred indefimiiels}
PAS 35 Amend 1 PAS 26; Tnvesnnent Eatites - Applying the Coasalidat Expaption 'd
(Revised) Amendment to PAS 28: Investmant m Associates - Measuring an Associate or [oint Venmme 2
bair Value
Amendment to PAS 28 Long-term Tocerest in Assneiares and Jount Yeatuze s
{effertsir Jamuiary 1, 2015)
TAS 20 Faenmcial Reportng in Hypernfhitonary Eeonomics
Fiuunial Inscruments; Prescntation v
Amendments o PAS 32 and PAS 1 Putble Fmancial Instnunents and Clligations Ansing on P
PAS 32 1 aquication
Amendments to PAS 32 Classification of Riglhts Tssues 4
Amendments 1o PAS 32 Offsetting Financia. fssets and Firancial Lhthnies v
PAS 33 Larmings Per Share ¥




PHILIPFINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted Not Not
Adopted | Applicable
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting 7
PAS 36 lmpairment of Asscts o 7
Amzndment to PAS 30 Recoverable Avnowd Disclosues for Non- foscal Assers e
PAS 37 Provisions, Centinygrenl Lialalies sl Contmpent Assets v
Iretangalle Assets W
PAR 38 A 1 | s g g - -
Amendments to PAS 38 Clarificarion of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Arnortization v
Investmert Prope
PAS 40 i d
Arnendrment o PAS 40: Tnvestment Praperty - Transfers of Tovestment Property '
pAS 41 Agericulame 7
: Amendments to PAS 41: Bearer Plants '
Philippine Intorprotations - I jrmal Financial Reporting Interpretations Carmmittoe (IFERIC)
IFRIC 1 Chenges in Lixisting Decormmasstoning, Restoration and Simdar 1aabihoes ™ v
IFRIC 2 Membecs' Shase in Co-opertive Dodities and Similar Jnstruments v
TERIC 4 Determitung Whether an Aeraapement Contins 2 Lease 7
TERIC § Rigthts to Interests Ansing from Decornaissioning, Restoranon and Favieonrmenral
Rehabiktation Vunds v
IFRIC 6 ]_iab.i]ities Arising from Parsicipating in 3 Specific Market - Waste Wlectrical and Flectranie v
Eqpuiprocat
- Applying the Resatement Approach under PAS 29, Faumeial Reporting in Hyperafluiooacy
EFRIC 7 : v
Econories
Resssessoeul of Hubedded Dedvadves™ 'd
IFRIC ¢ - .
Armemdnienes v Pinippoe Iiderpretation IFRIC-S and PAS 39 Umbedded Denvabves®™* v
IFRIC 10  (Tnterin Fiemucial Reportag and Topaivoent v
IFRIC 12 |Secvice Concession Armaingesineuts v
'AS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Berefic Asser, Muumun Pundicg Requirement: and ther v
Tnteraction
IFRIC 14 - -
Amendments to Philippine Interprenations IFRIC - 14, Prepaymeus ol a Moamem Fooding s
Requirernent and ther Tuterachion™*
IFRIC 16  |Hedges of a MNet fovestment wn a Foreign Operanon v
IFRIC 17 |Distributons of Non-cash Assets to Owners™ v
TFRIC 1% |bxtinguashing Firancial Liabilities with Equity Instnrments* e
IFRIC 20 |Stripping Costs in the Produckon Phase of a Surtace Mwe* s
IFRIC 2L ([levies s ]
1IFRIC 22 |Foreign Curreney Trlnsactions and Advance Considemtion '
IFRIC 23 |Unceominty Over Tncome o Urestments (efective fansary 1, 20191 ¢
Philippine Interpectations - Stiding Intcspresstions Committe: (SIC)
SIC-7 Introducton of the Buto v
SIC-10 {overnment Assstnce - No Specific Relation to Operating Sctivites s
BIC-13 Jositly Controlled linsites - Non-Monctary Conerbutions by Vennrers Ve
STC-15 Operating Leases - lneentves '4
SIC-25 Income Taves - Changes io the T Status of an Entiey or s Shaeho/ders™* '
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease '
SIC-29 Servicr Concrssion Arrangementy: Lisclosures 'd
SIC-32 Tntangalile Assets - Web Sie Costs™ '

* Thase standacds will be affactive for periods subserpent rn 2016 and ace not early adopted ay the Company.

¢ 'These standards have boen adupted i L suepatation of finzncial stuceacnts but the Company hasno eipgnificant pransacticns covered

m Loth years presented.




